. - o
~oiow-Up icRortare oot

B ,-iv .\Fr!= 7o PR £ ]ﬁ :
Marorials 7

REGISTRANT 'S NAME

*CURRENT ADDRESS

**FORMER NAME : L HOCESSED
**NEW ADDRESS L L j) THOMS ON

T e e L.

. FILE No. @2- M(D_O '. | FISCAL YEAR /f)ﬁ(\; —6_(0_

e Complere Jor lutda! submissions only ** Plase moce Rame end address changes

42G3-28 (INITIAL FILING) AR/S  (ANNUAL REPORT)

u “
12G32BR (REINSTATEMENT; ‘ STPPL  (OTHER) }
INST, ' -

DEF 142 (FROXY)

OICF/BY:

bire




i -2 A s

2 L LA P
COIPORATE Fudlbe

A S
2-A06

MM e

el

i — 4 X . R . o
T e e aa VOB vkl T W e oo e B

Annual Report

2006

STOCK CODE: 363




Contents

2 Corporate Information
3 Information for Shareholders and Financial Calendar
: 4 Chairman’s Statement
E 8 Group Business Structure
I 9 Business Review, Discussion and Analysis
i 20 Financial Review
i 27 Corporate Governance Report
: 42 Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles
|

52 Directors’ Report
61 Independent Auditor’s Report

63 Consolidated Income Statement

66 Balance Sheet

\

\

|

[

1

\ 64 Consolidated Balance Sheet

\

\

|

! 67 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

; 69 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
‘ 72 Notes to the Financial Statements

{ 146 Five-Year Financial Summary

1 147 Notice of Annual General Meeting
\

151 Glossary of Terms




[MPAFUL A A J1] Tl

PB Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2006

Corporate Information

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Lai Xing (Chairman)

Mr, Cai Yu Tian (Vice Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qu Ding (Vice Chairman & Executive Depuly CEQ)
Mr. Lu Ming Fang

Mr. Ding Zhong De

Mr. Qian Shi Zheng (Deputy CEQ)

Mr. Yac Fang

Mr. Tang Jun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Lo Ka Shui

Prof. Woo Chia-Wei

Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis

Board Committees

Executive Committee

Mr. Cai Lai Xing (Committee Chairmar,)
M. Cai Yu Tian

Mr. Qu Ding

Mr. Lu Ming Fang

Mr. Qian Shi Zheng

Mr. Yao Fang

Audit Committee

Dr. Lo Ka Shui (Committee Chairman)
Prof, Woo Chia-Wei

Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis

Remuneration Committee

Dr. Lo Ka Shui (Committee Chairman)
Prof. Woo Chia-Wei

Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis

Mr. Qu Ding

Mr. Hu Zi Li

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Mei Ling, Marina

Qualified Accountant

Mr. Lee Kim Fung, Edward

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Cai Yu Tian
Ms. Wong Mei Ling, Marina

Registered Office

26th Floor, Harcourt House,
39 Gloucester Road, Wanchal, Heng Kong

Telephone (852) 2529 5652
Facsimile  : (852) 2529 5067
Email . enquiry@sihl.com.bk
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

ADR Depository Bank

The Bank of New York

Investor Relations

PO. Box 11258, Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

Company Stock Code
Stock Exchange  © 363
Bloomberg . 363 HK
Reuters o 0363 HK
ADR © SGHIY
Company Website

www.sihl.com.hk




Information for Shareholders

Shareholder Enquiries

Company Contacy Details
Company Secretaricl Department

Address 26th Floor, Harcourt House,
39 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2876 2317

Facsimile (8521 2863 0408

Share Registrar
Secretaries Limited

Address 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2980 1766

Facsimite (852) 2861 1465

Financial Calendar

2006 Interim Results

2006 Final Results

Annual Report 2006

2007 Annual General Meeting

Register of Members

Record date for 2006 Final Dividend

Notice of 2006 Final Dividend

Dividend

2006 Interim Dividend of HK22 cents per share was paid
to Shareholders on 3rd October 2006,

2006 Propesed Final Dividend of HK30 cents per
share will subject to Shareholders’ approval be paid to
Shareholders on or about 8th June 2007.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 28th May 2007 to Wednesday. 30th May
2007, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. Notice of Divdend
will be despatched to Shareholders on or about Friday,
8th June 2007. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's Share
Registrar by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 25th May 2007.

Announced on Wednesday, 23rd August 2006

Announced on Friday, 20th April 2007

To be posted to Shareholders on or before Monday, 30th April 2007
To be held on Wednesday, 30th May 2007 at 3:00 p.m.

To be closed from Monday, 28th May 2007 to Wednesday, 30th May 2007,
both days inclusive

Wednesday, 30th May 2007

To be despatched to Shareholders on or about Friday, 8th June 2007
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Chairman’s Statement

During the year, the Group went through

a period of strategic changes. Seeking
breakthroughs while consolidating its existing
care businesses; developing new opportunities
while taking part in the restructuring of state-
owned assets and identifying new market
positioning in the course of developing

key strategies --- these strategic moves are
expected to strengthen the Group's core
businesses, broaden its profit base, and create
new opportunities for its future development.
The prospects of the PRC economy attract the
attention of the investors in the capital market.
This, together with the recovery of the Hong
Kong economy, has provided the Group a clear
direction for its development over the next
decade. With a solid foundation, the Group

is well positioned to share its success with its
Shareholders.

Broadening profit base with encouraging business growth

The overall business growth of the Group for 2006 was encouraging. Turnover increased by 13.7% to HK$6,851 million.
Profit attributable to shareholders grew by 22.4% to HK$1,258 million. Basic earnings per share increased by 21.5% to
HKS1.30.

Among the Group's varicus business segments, profit growth for the infrastructure facilities business was the highest.
Profit contribution from the segment increased by 230.9% to HK$615 million. Net profit from recurring operations of
consumer products business increased 27.1% o HK$595 million as Huizhong Automotive achieved a turnaround in
profits, and profits from the tobacco and printing businesses continued 1o grow. Net profit from recurring operations of
medicine business dropped by 31.0% to HK$163 million. The decrease was mainly atiributable to effects arising from the
change in rules and regulations towards the pharmaceutical industry in Mainland China and the fact that the comparative
figures included profit contributions from Sunve Pharmaceutical and other investment projects which were disposed
last year. After deducting exceptianal gains generated from the disposal of strategic investment projects in previous year,
losses in technology information business has been reduced from HK$46.40 million to HK$10.42 million.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of HK30 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of
+K22 cents per share paid during the year, the total dividend for the year amounted to HX52 cents. The dividend payout
ratio is 40%.




Chairman’s Statement

Implementing necessary
measures to strengthen core
businesses

The Group is commitied to focus on its core
businesses, in particular, the infrastruciure
facilities and medicine segments, striving
to increase profits and to enhance the
competitiveness of the enterprises in order to
sustain profit growth,

The widening and afteration works of the Hu-

Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section} commenced
during the year, doubling the original dual carriageway with four lanes to a dual carriageway with eight lanes. with
support from the relevant authority of the Shanghai Municipal Government, the Group shall receive compensations for
the deficiency in toll revenue brought about by the widening and alteration works during the construction period. This
would reduce the overall investment risks of the Group in the expressway, and ensure that income from the project
would not be adversely affected by the widening and aleration works, scheduled for completion in 2008. By then, the
traffic flow of the expressway will increase significantly. In the meantime, the Group is commitied to identify other high
quality toll road projects in order to broaden the income stream of the infrastructure facilities business.

In accordance with its established development
strategies, General Water of China continued
to focus on investment, operation and
management in the water services industry.
Three investment projects were added during
the year, bringing the number of contracted
projecis to 14, with a scheduled daily treatment
capacity of nearly 4.3 million tonnes. General
Water of China has become one of the most
influential water services enterprises in China.
Projects that have commenced operation
went smoothly. Ad ustment in water prices

underwent changes in an orderly manner. The
BOT projects were implemented as planned, and the revenue of water services business remained steady and satisfactory.
The company is now staying on a growth track. The Group will capitalise on opportunities brought about by the society’s
awareness of environrental protection and the opening of the water services market in Mainland China. The strategies of
investing in the water services industry and the outcomes were in general well received by the market,
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Chairman’s Statement

During the year, the Group initiated and implemented
various measures, in particular, “Intellectual Property
Management System”, “Research and Development
Incentives Scheme” and “Innovative Applied Research
and Development Projects Funding Scheme’, in order to
advocate and encourage innovation of its enterprises to
enhance their competitiveness. Satisfactory results were
achieved. The commercialization of the three 5tate Category
| New Drugs of the Group proceeded as planned: *Kai Li
Kang" was launched in the market in April 2006 and brought
to over 100 A-grade hospitals successfully. Obtaining
production approval in April 2006, the GMP Certificate of
the manufacturing facilities of “Oncorine” (H101 project) was

obtained in July and the product was available for sale in
the market by October. The construction and trial operation of the GMP factory of the “TNF" project was completed,
and applications for produciion approval were in progress. The innovation and independent development of MicroPort
Medical made another achievement and was awarded second prize of 2006 State Technology Advancement.

Member companies of the Group that are engaged in the consumer products business are all well established, with
excellent reputations, and maintaining prominent positions in the market. Through expanding market shares, cost
reduction measures and upiifting of product qualities, these companies are expected to maintain steady growth in future.

Reinforcing capital operation and optimizing business structure

During the year, the Group successfully completed the share reform plans for SI Pharmaceutical and Bright Dairy, the two
A-Share companies listed in Shanghai. In 2006, exceptional losses totalling HK$243 million were incurred by the Group.
After the share reforms, the Group held a stake of 43.62% and 25.17% tradable shares of S| Pharmaceutical and Bright
Dairy respectively. The market capitalization of the two companies amounted to HK$17.5 billion in total, representing a
significant uplift in market value (The calculation is based on the closing price of the refevant shares in the A Shares market of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange as at 20th April 2007). The companies' financing capabilities were expanded and opportunities
in capital operation were seen.

The Group disposed of its equity interest in Pudong Container during the year and entirely divested its port coniainer
husiness. An after-tax exceptional gain of HK$244 million was recorded, allowing resources reallocation and optimization

of businesses for the Group.

The investment portfolio of the Group consists of many high quality business projects. By exerting more efforis in capital
operation, the Group aims to realize the underlying value of its assets and to smoothly reconfigure its business structure
within the shortest possible period.




Chairman’s Statement

Prospects

The economy of Mainland China has continued to grow, with the gradual opening of the capital markets and acceleration
in capital market reforms. Along with continuous improvement and adjustments in industry policies, the Group is faced
with unprecedented development opportunities. By capitalizing on its unique position with Shanghai background,
it will integrate into a new round of the economic development plans in Shanghai, identify new opportunities in the
restruciuring of state-owned assets, strive to achieve scalable acquisitians and 1ap inte new business segments.

Looking ahead, the Group will count on the stable development of the consumer products business and concentrate its
investments in the infrastructure facilities and medicine businesses and consider tapping into the real estate business,
so as 1o maintain sustainable growth in operating profit. Meanwhile, efforts will be devoted to capture opportunities
arising from the new trend of capital development in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group will endeavour to take
advantage of the capital market conditions in both Hong Kong and China and to further optimize capital structure of the
Group. Resources will be consolidated in core businesses and efforts will be made to add value to its assets and increase

return from investments in order to maximize shareholders’ value.

Shanghai Industrial celebrated its 10th anniversary of listing in the market in 2006. On behalf of the Board of Directaors, |
wish to thank our Shareholders, financial institutions and business partners for their unswerving support in the past 10
years, and extend my sincere gratitude 1o our management team and staff members for their dedication and contribution
to the Group.

E Ak

Cai Lai Xing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th April 2007




[Iée VUL

[l gy

3l Shanghai Industrial Heldings Limited Annual Report 2006

Group Business Structure

At 315t December 2006

Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited

infrastructure Facilities

Toll Roads

—1  Hu-Ning Expressway (100%)

— Yongjin Expressway (309b)

Water Services

—1  General Water of China [50%)

Medicine

Chinese Medicine and
Health Food

—— Hangzhou Qingchunbao (55%)

Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical
{5198}

— Liaoning Herbapex (35%)

— Xiamen TCM {(619%)

Biomedicine

— Guangdong Techpool (51%*)

— Sunway Bictech {70.41%%)

Chemical Medicine

Changzhou Pharmaceutical
(58.16%6*)

Medical Equipment

— MicroPort Medical (14.14%)

Shanghai Medical Instruments
(99%")

Tobacco

— Naryang Tobacco (10085)

Dairy

— Bright Dairy (25.17%)

Printing and Paper Products

— Wing Fat Printing (93.44%)

Automobiles and Parts

—  Huizhong Automotive (509}

— SIC Transportation Electric {30%)

Supermarket Chains

— Lianhua Supermarket (2i.17%")

Others

Information Technology

— SMIC (5.85%)

shanghai Information

Investment {20%)

* The said interests are held by 5! Pharmaceutical



Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued to perform well during the year ended 315t December 2006. Turnover increased 13.7% to HK$6,851
million. Profit attributable to shareholders increased remarkably by 22.4% to HK$1,258 million. Basic earnings per share
increased by 21.5% to HK$1.30.

Net profit from recurring operations of infrastructure facilities, medicine and consumer products businesses amounied to
HKS$371 million, HK$163 million and HK$595 million, accounting for 33.2%, 14.6% and 53.2% of the Group's Net Business
Profit before Exceptional ltems respectively.

Highlights

2006 2005
HKS$'000 HKS'000
Turnover 6,851,023 6,025,285
Gross profit 2,543,945 2,305,580
Profit before taxation 1,736,712 1,449,603
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,257,778 1,027,940
Total dividend for the year HK52 cents HK42 cents

Earnings per share
- Basic HK$1.30 HKS$1.07

- Diluted HK$1.29 HKS1.06

Infrastructure Facilities

Commencing Hu-Ning Expressways’ widening and alteration works and committing further
investments in water services

Toll Roads

The 26-kilometre long Hu-Ning Expressway {Shanghai Seciion) is one of the busiest fransporiation trunk routes in the
Yangtze River Detta region. During the year, the traffic flow of the section reached 22.89 million vehicles, representing an
increase of more than 50% compared with the previous year. The significant increase was mainly due to the rapid upturn
of the traffic flow following the completion of the widening works of the Hu-Ning Expressway (Jiangsu Section) at the
end of 2005 and the commencement of the road works of Hu-Jia Expressway in October of the year.

The widening and alteration works of the Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section) commenced during the year,

doubling the criginal dual carriageway with four lanes 10 a dual carriageway with eight fanes. While successfully securing
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Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

favourable terms to limit the capital commitment
of the Group in respect of the construction work to
HK$1,680 million, the Group is entitled to receive
compensation for the deficiency in toll revenue during
the three years construction period. The toll revenue
and compensation received in 2006 amounted 1o
HK$452 million., The arrangement would reduce the
overall investment risks of the Group in expressways,
and ensure that income from the projects would not
be adversely affected by the widening and alteration

: \ works. Upon completion of the works, the traffic flow
of the expressway will increase significantly and contribute to the sustainable profit growth.

As at 31st December 2006, the Group invested a total of
approximately HK$700 million for the widening and alteration
works of the Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section). The
whole project is expecied to be completed in 2008.

The 70-kilometre long Yongjin Expressway (Jinhua Section)
starts from Shengzhou, Zhejiang in the east, and ends at the
transportation hub of the Jinhuachuan Village in the west,
passing through Jinhua, Yiwu and Dongyang. The Yongjin

Expressway (Jinhua Section) was in its first year of operation
in 2006 after completion of its construction work at the end of December 2005, with annual toll revenue amounted to
HK$107 million. The second half toll revenue of the year increased 15.9% over the first half showing signs of improvement
in traffic flow.

The completion and operation of the Zhuyong Expressway and the Ningbo Chengxi route which cut across the Yongjin
Expressway is expecied to further improve the traffic flow of the Yongjin Expressway (Jinhua Section).
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Water Services
In accordance with its established development strategies, General Water of China continued 1o focus on the operational

management of its existing projects and to further invest in new water services projects. During the year, three new
projects were added to General Water of China, namely, the sewage project in central Wenzhou, the city water supply
project of Suifenhe and the sewage treatment project in the river east of Xiangtan. The total investrent required for the
projects will exceed HK$120 million, adding daily water supply and sewage treatment capacity of 410,000 tonnes. General
Water of China has concluded a tota! of 14 investment projects in nine cities nationwide in the areas of water sources,
water supply and sewage up till 31st December 2006, with a scheduled daily treatment capacity of 4,299,000 tonnes,
being daily water supply capacity of 2,875,000 tonnes and daily sewage treatment capacity of 1,424,000 tonnes.

While continuing to explore new markets, General Water of China strived to complete the construction work of various
BOT projects on schadule and get ready for commencement of operation. During the year, the adjustment of water
supply prices proposed by Bengbu GWC was approved by the relevant government authorities. The increment ranges
from 8% to 36%. Reforms for utilities prices are underway in Mainland China, and this is expected to further benefit the
water supply projects owned by the company.

As for BOT/BOQ projects, the water sewage treatment project of Huzhou was generally completed and will commence
operation in 2007. The reservoir works in Tiger Lake, Huzhou is siill in progress. The construction of a 40-kilometre water
induction pipeline network will commence in the third quarter of 2007, and the construction of the reservoir is expected
10 be completed in 2008. The construction of the pipeline network of the Chongging sewage treaiment project was
completed at the end of 2006 and will commence operation in the first half of 2007. The construction of the sewage
treatment project in Shenzhen and the sewage {phase 1) project in eastern Wenzhou is still in progress, and is expected to

be completed in 2007.
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Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

Project name

10.

.

12.

13.

14,

Sewage treaiment project in
the new district of eastern Huzhou

Water supply project in Xiangtan

Water supply and sewage treatment
project in Changshou Chemical
Industrial Zone

Water generation project in Xiamen
Sewage treatment project in Xiamen
Water supply project in Bengbu

Project on sewage treatment plant in
Longhua, Shenzhen

Water supply project in Xianyang

"Yinshi Guo Wei” water supply project
in Xianyang

Project on reservoir and water
induction works in Tiger Lake, Huzhou

Sewage treatment project in eastern
Wenzhou

Sewage treatment project in central
Wenzhou

City water supply project in Suifenhe

Sewage treatment praject in river east
of Xiangtan

Project type

Sewage treatment

Water supply

Water supply

Sewage treatment
Water generation
Sewage treatment
Water supply

Sewage treatment

Water supply

Water supply

Water supply

Sewage treatment

Sewage treatment

Water supply

Sewage treatment

Daity
production
capacity

50,000 tonnes

425,000 tonnes

240,000 tonnes

40,000 tonnes
985,000 tonnes
784,000 tonnes
425,000 tonnes

150,000 tonnes

180,000 tonnes

300,000 tonnes

200,000 tonnes

100,000 tonnes

200,000 tonnes

110,000 tonnes

100,000 tonnes

Share of
interest of
General
Water of
China

100%

70%

100%

45%
55%
60%

90%

50%

100%

9%%

100%

709%

100%

100%

Location

Zhejiang
Hunan

Chongging

Fujian
Fujian
Anhui

Guangdong

Shaanxi

Shaanxi

Zhejiang

Zhejiang

Zhejiang

Heilongjiang

Hunan

During the year, the Group sold all of its equity interest in Pudong Centainer for a consideration of HK$447 million. The

disposal enabled the Group to further optimize its business structure and generated an after-tax exceptional gain of

approximately HK$244 million for the Group.
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Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

Medicine

Endeavoring to improve profitability of pharmaceutical business and enhancing vulnerability
to industry fluctuations

The operating enviror ment of the overall medicine industry in Mainland China went threugh significant changes in 2006
which adversely affected the operation of the pharmaceutical companies generally, Various measures were adopied
to enhance the profitability of the Group's medicine business and 1o enhance its vulnerability to industry fluctuations,
in particular, 1o advocate and encourage innovation of its enterprises to enhance their competitiveness; 1o strive for
commercialization of the three State Category | New Drugs of the Group; to achieve an impressive growth raie in the
sales of health food and OTC drugs which offset the adverse impacts brought by the declining sales of prescription drugs;

and to maintain the parsistent high growth rate of profit contribution from MicroPort Medical.

During the year, the Group introduced various measures, in particular, "Intellectual Property Management System’,
"Research and Develcpment Incentives Scheme” and "Innovative Applied Research and Development Projects Funding
Scheme”, in order to advocate and encourage innovation of its enterprises to enhance their competitiveness.

Among the Group's three State Category | New Drugs, "Kai Li Kang” was launched in the market in April 2006, and
accepted by over 100 A-grade hospitals. After the new drug certificate of "Oncoring” (H101 projeci) was obtained in
2005, the GMP certifizate was issued in July of the year and the product was launched in the market in October. The
consiruction and trial operation of the GMP plant for the "TNF" project was completed. The application of production

approval was in prograss.

Chinese Medicine and Health Food

During the year, the sales of "Qingchunbao” health food and OTC
drugs series resumed growth. Sales of health food series increased
by 15.2% compared with last year. The sales of "Qingchunbao" Anti-
ageing Tablets, an OTC drug increased remarkably by 26.2% to HKS$238
million. Nevertheless, due to the adverse news relating to other products
in the industry and the change in rules and regulations towards the
pharmaceutical industry in Mainland China, the overall sales of the

prescription drugs of the Group declined. This has offset the growth of
OTC drugs and health food businesses.
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Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

Biomedicine

Guangdong Techpool is one of the manufacturers with the most
comprehensive range of urinary protein products in Mainland China,
Its major product, "Techpool Luocan’, is an exclusive product range in
Mainland China. The company continued to expand the development of
Techpool Luoan's application in the area of critical illnesses, and focused
in the development of narcotic, burns, etc. with satisfactory results.
During the year, the product achieved sales revenue of HK$134 million, an
increase of 7.2% compared with last year.

Chemical Medicine

During the year, "Changzheu Pharmaceutical” brand series of chemical medicines recorded a turnover of more than
HK$300 million. Major medicine sales were satisfactory. Sales of "Captopril Tablets" and "Compound Reserpine Tablets”
increased by 18.8% and 15.5% respectively. Several major raw pharmaceuticals of the Company, namely "Raw Captopril’,
"Raw Hydrochlorothiazide”, achieved a satisfactory increase in sales of over 21.0% and 14.9% during the year. This has
offset the adverse effect bought by the decrease in sales of "Raw Qiangli Meisu”.

In addition, the Changzhou Pharmaceutical Factory, a subsidiary of Changzhou Pharmaceutical was permitted in early
2007 as the first 10 manufacturing enterprises supplying basic medicines for cities, communities and villages in Mainland
China, contributing positively to the medicine sales of the company. The said basic medicines Include "Paracetamol
Tablets", "Compound Reserpine Tablets', "Metformin Hydrochloride Tablets” and "Atropine Sulfate Injection”.

Medical Equipment
In 2006, the business of MicroPort Medical continued its rapid development,

further enhancing and expanding its sales. In particular, the sales network of
*Firebird Rapamycin-Eluting Coronary Stents” expanded into countries in the EU,
l.atin America, Japan and Southeast Asia, with accumulated sales of over 100,000
pieces. In 2006, the company’s innovation and independent development was
recognized through technology awards and honours of the State and locality,
including a second prize for the 2006 State Technology Advancement in the
design and key production technology for *Coronary Drug Stents”.




Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

Sales of Major Products in 2006

Product Name Type/Indication Sales

RMB'000
“Dengfeng” Shen Mai Injection Cardiovascular ‘ 270,514 -19.5%
"Dengfeng” Dan Shen Injecticn Cardiovascular | 120,583 -1.5%
"Hugingyutang” Stomach Rejunvenation Tablets Gastritis | 82,182 -45%
“Herbapex” Rupixiao Tablets Gynaecological | 110,778 -11.3%
"Dingl‘u" Xinhuang Tzblets Anti-bacterial, anti-inflammatory, hain relieving 80,666 +6.7%
“Qingchunbag” Anti-ageing Tablets Immunity strengthening | 245,521 +24.2%
“Qingchunbag” Yongzhen Tablets Health food | 32,043 +23.4%
“Qingchunbag” Beauty Capsules Health food . 52,504 -14.1%
"Hugingyutang” Herba Dendrobium Grain Health food | 49,287 -2.7%
“Techpeool Luoan” Urinary trypsin enzyme inhibitor | 137,970 +5.2%
“Changzhou Pharmaceutical” Captopril Tablets — Anti-hypertension 79,330 +18.8%
“Changzhou Pharmaceutical” Qiangli Meisu Raw pharmaceuticals | 52,220 -46.7%

Consumer Products

Maintaining sustainable business growth in consumer products business and setting
foundation of growing profit

Nanyang Tobacco and Wing Fat Printing are the Group's core businesses in consumer products segment, Both of themn
are maintaining sustainable business growth. The automobiles market in China showed signs of improvement. The
persistent increase in sales of automobiles boosted the profitability of the manufacturers of automotive parts. This has

offset the adverse impact arising from the decline in profits of Bright Dairy towards the consumer products business.

Tobacco
During the year, turnover for Nanyang Tobacco increased by 7.8% 1o HK$ 1,638 million, while its net profit after deducting
non-recurring factors in the previcus year increased 2.4% to HK$328 million. During the year, Nanyang Tebacco focused

its efforts to align with the market structure and enhance product quality. It also continued to strengthen its internal
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Business Review, Discussion and Analysis

control and technolegy enhancement.  Nanyang
Tobacco, whose products are mainly for exports, has
expanded its markets to include Thailand, the Middle
Fast, Australia, New Zealand as well as Indonesia. Sales
volume in the tax-free market and the PRC market
respectively increased remarkably by 30% during the
year.

During the year, Nanyang Tobacco implemented a

technical alteration for cut tobacco in accordance

with a comparison analysis result of different technical
parameters of cut tobacco processing. Apart from improving the product quality of the tobacco, the alteration also
reduced the aggregate consumption of materials. Also, the company established a series of procurement procedures
in respect of strengthening the quality control of raw tobacce, se as to strictly control inventory, minimize material

consumption and enhance corporate efficiency.

Dairy

As consumption in Mainland China becomes more
sophisticated, demand for quality products by consumers
continued to increase. Gn the other hand, competition
changed from low-end price competition to high-end
technology and product competition. The competitive

environment is becoming maore intense. In 2006, turnover
of Bright Dairy amounted to HK57,002 million, an increase
of 4.5% over previous year; while net profit declined
27.6% to HK5148 million.

During the year, by capitalizing on the "Fiftieth
Anniversary of the "Bright” Brand”, Bright Dairy organized a series of marketing and sales activities, attracting more than
6,000 outlets nationwide. Following the award of the "2005-2006 State Outstanding Leading Enterprise of Food Industry”
given by the Chinz Food Industry Association, Bright Dairy was awarded the title of "The Most Competitive Brand in
China" by the Ministry of Commerce, which reflecting the reputation of Bright Dairy in the market.

The eighth yogurt production plant of Bright Dairy was in trial operation during the year. The high automaticn and scale
of production of the yogurt plant will rank foremast in Mainland China and worldwide with a scale of operation for 650

tonnes in daily production capacity after completion.
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Printing and Paper Products

The recent development of Wing Fat Printing was
characterized by its divisionalised and vertical
integration strategy. While expanding its printing
business, Wing Fat Printing increased its stakes in
various well performed projects. This strategy was
proved to be effective. During the year, the turnover
for Wing Fat Printing increased by 48.15% 10
HK$1,400 million. Net profit grew 18.4% to HKS$149
million. ln 2006, Wing Fat Printing further expanded
its business of cigarette box production in Mainland

China under the favourable CEPA policy. Total sales
of cigaretie box packaging recorded a significant increase of 55.76% over last year.

In recent years, Wing Fat Printing has gone through rapid developments, Packaging materials seld to Nanyang Tobacco
accounting for the company's total business volume were declining, Apart from cigarette box packaging, Wing Fat
Printing also engaged in paper manufaciuring. The business ventures of the company were located in provinces in
Zhejiang, Henan, Hebsi, Shandong, Sichuan, Guangdong and Guangxi. This has enabled Wing Fat Printing 1o take the full
competitive advantage for regicnal resources and distribution. To further expand its production capacities, the company
established new factories through Huzhou Tianwai Paper and Jinan Quanyong Printing while Zhejiang Rongfeng Paper
added a production line for the manufacturing of cork paper.

The demand for high quality paper for printing products and packaging is expected 1o remain strong as a result of rapid
economic development and the technological advancements of related industries. Looking ahead, Wing Fat Printing
will continue to expand its business, and to structure its preducts in accordance with market demands and increase the

competitiveness of its products through tachnological impravement and cost controls.

Automobiles and Parts
The automobiles mar<et in Mainland China

showed signs of improvement in 2006
following two years of sluggish growth, It is
expected that this growth momentum will

remain in 2007. Nevertheless, the market = -

became increasingly competitive with the presence of additional brands, both local and overseas as well as joint ventures.
Meanwhile, domestic arands sought to expand overseas penetrating such major markets as Russia, the Middle East, South

America and Africa.
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During the year, Huizhong Automotive's results rebounded through market
exploration and cost reduction efforts. Turnover increased by 43.0% to
HKS5,533 millicn. Currently, the company mainly focused in the sales of parts,
while the sales of autcmobiles only accounted for approximately 19.8%.
The sales of parts remained focused on selling accessories ta Shanghai
Yolkswagen, followed by selling accessories to Shanghai General Motors.

In 2006, the company continued to take part in the domestic production
projects of accessories for Shanghai Volkswagen, Shanghai General Motors,
Shanghai Automotive, and completed the domestic production projects of FAW Volkswagen, Jinbei, Nanya, Ford and
Tianjin FAW.

SIIC Transportation Electric recorded satisfactory results during the year.  Net profit increased by 134.5% to HK568.84
million and tumover increased by 33.6% to HK$443 million. The aggregate sales of automatic windows, a major product
of the company, grew 44.2% to HK$170 million. Sales of exported goods of the company increased by 28.63% during the

year.

Supermarket Chains
During the year, the turnover for Lianhua Supermarket grew 15% to HK$1,597 million. Profit attributable to shareholtders

remained steady this year of HK$235 million. During the year, the number of stores of Lianhua Supermarket reached 107,
of which 78 were located in eastern China. As at 21st December 2006, the total number of stores directly and jointly
operated by Lianhua Supermarket reached 3,716 (excluding stores operated by the associates), of which 50% were
franchised stores. Franchise is an important and effective means for the company to expand its network. During the year,
Lianhua Supermarket had granted 259 additional franchises, in which 127 were supermarkets and 132 were convenience

stores.

To streamline the shareholding structure among Lianhua Supermarket, Century Lianhua and Lianhua e-Commerce and
enhance overall management efficiency, the Group transferred its non-controlling interests in Century Lianhua and
Lianhua e-Commerce to Lianhua Supermarket during the year, so as to increase Lianhua Supermarket's control over these
two projects, and enable the Group 1o share the investment benefit of these two projects by holding the interests of

Lianhua Supermarket.

Others -

After deducting exceptional gains generated from the disposal of strategic investment project in previous year, losses
in technology information business has been reduced from HK$46.4C million to HK$10.42 million. The net loss of
SMIC decreased significantly compared with last year. Turnover increased by 25.1% to HKS11.43 billion. in 2006, SMIC
strategically disposed part of its existing equipment, reducing the company's depreciation expenses, and enabling it to
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further improve its production technology. Curing the
year, the net prefit of Shanghai Information Investment
increased 42.5% to HK$12t million. During the year,
Shanghai Information Investment actively increased its
efforts in expanding investments in the education business
made use of networks, On the basis of the completion of
allocating the education information resources for Distance
Education Group, it planned 1o focus in the cooperation
projects on education contents for Distance Education
Group and Dongfang Cable and strived to explore and
develop the electronic payment and settlement business

and relaied businesses.

In addition, SI Pharmaceutical and Bright Dairy, both listed in the A Shares market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange,

completed their shae reform plans in June and October of 2006 respectively. The 56.63% non-tradable shares of Sl
Pharmaceutical and the 30.78% non-tradable shares of Bright Dairy held by the Group were converted to 43.62% tradable
shares and 25.17% tradable sheres respectively. Although the reforms brought about exceptional losses totalling HK$243
million for the Group the values of the shares increased significantly following the completion of the reforms. The current
market price of the <hares of S| Pharmaceuticat and Bright Dairy recorded an increase of approximately 127% since the
share reform plans were announced, with the market capitalization of the two companies amounted to HK$17.5 billion

respectively (The calculation is based on the closing price of the relevant shares in the A Shares market of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange as at 20th Aoril 2007).
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Key Figures
2006 2005 Increase
Financial highlights
Turnover (HK3'000) 6,851,023 6,025,285 13.7%
Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS$'000) 1,257,778 1,027,540 22.4%
Total assets (HKS'0C00} 23,658,128 21,972,155 7.7%
Shareholders' equity (HK$'000) 17,505,381 16,375,892 6.9%
Share information
Earnings per share - basic HK$1.30 HK$1.07 21.5%
Dividend per share HK52 cents HK42 cents 23.8%
- interim (paid} HK22 cents HK20 cents 10.0%
— final (proposed) HK30Q cents HK22 cents 36.4%
Number of shares in issue {shares} 968,504,000 967,533,000
Financial ratios
Gearing ratio {Note (1)) 10.0% 11.2%
Interest cover (Note (2} 21 times 23 times
Dividend payourt ratio 40.0% 39.3%
Note {1}: interest-bearing loans/{shareholders’ equity + mincrity interests + interest-bearing loans)
Note (7} {profit before taxation, interest expenses, depreciation and amertisation)/interest expenses
HK Cents HKS HKS
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I  Analysis of Financial Results

1 Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company
The profit attrioutable to sharehelders for the year 2006 was HKS1,257.78
million, an increase of HK$229.84 million or approximately 22.4% over the
year 2005.

The increase in profit attributable to shareholders was mainly due to
the compensation for the deficiency in twoll revenue from Hu-Ning
Expressway, the gain on disposal of an equity stake in Pudong Container
anc improvement in operating results of some invested entities, which
not only coff-set the losses resulting from the implementation of share
reform plans of 3l Pharmaceutical and Bright Dairy, but also generated
satisfactory growth in the profit attributable to shareholders.

2 Profit Contribution from Each Business

summarized as follows:

* Including loss of HKS214.96 million on share reform of S| Pharmaceutical

Including loss of HK527.74 miliion on share reform of Bright Datry

2006

HK$'000

614,694

Infrastructure facilities

Medicine (52,350
Consumer products 566,763
Information technology {10,417)
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HKS million
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0

The profit contributed by each business in the Group for the year 2006 and the comparative figures last year was

] L | L J —J
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

= Profit for the second half of the year
= Profit for the first half of the year

2005 Change
HK$'000 %
185,769 2309
235625 N/A
467,764 212
45,336 N/A
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2 Profit Contribution from Each Business (Cont'd)
The infrastructure facilities business recorded an increase in profit of approximately 230.9% for the year, which was
mainly attributable to an approximately HK$171.76 millien compensation for the deficiency in toll revenue due to
the widening and alteration construction of the A1l Expressway received by Hu-Ning Expressway and a gain of
approximately HK$243,67 million from the disposal of 10% equity stake in Pudong Container by the Group.

The decrease in profit contribution of the medicine business was mainly due to the inclusion of a disposal gain of
Sunve Pharmaceutical of approximately HK$35.25 million in prior year comparative, and the financial performances
of some entities for the year were adversely affected by a series of changes in policies towards the pharmaceutical
industry in the PRC,

The Group had implemented S| Pharmaceutical's share reform plan, under which all holders of freely transferable
shares of S| Pharmaceutical were given three non-freely transferable shares for every ten freely transferable shares
held by each such holder. This share reform plan obtained all relevant approvals in June 2006, and the Group
recorded a dilution loss of approximately HKS214.96 million.

The consumer products business was hit by a loss of approximately HK$27.74 million resulting from the
implementation of Bright Dairy’s share reform plan, under which all hclders of freely transferable shares of Bright
Dairy were given RMBB.46 in cash and 1.2 non-freely transferable shares for every ten freely transferable shares
held by each shareholder. 1n addition, as part of the share reform plan, the Group transferred 44,099,410 non-
tradable shares to Danone Asia Pte Lid.

Excluding the loss of Brighi Dairy's share reform plan, the consumer product business recorded an increase in
profit contribution of approximately 27.1%. Amang various entities under consumer product, the key profit
driver for the year was Huizhong Automotive, whose financial results improved as a result of its endeavors in
cost reduction and the general improvement in the PRC automobile market conditions. As for major profit
contributors, Nanyang Tobacco and Wing Fat Printing, maintained steady growth momentum.

Due to an ongoing inventory correction of some of its customers that have pushed out waler orders, SMIC
recorded an operating loss this year. However the loss has been significantly reduced in comparison with last year.

Full details of the operating performances and progress of incividual businesses for the year are contained in the
section headed "Business Review, Discussion and Analysis”.
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3

Increase

Turnover
The Group's turnover by principal activities for the year 2006 and prior year comparatives was summarised as
follows:
2006
HKS$'000
Infrastructure facilities 276,419
Medicine 3,729,130
Consumer products 2,845,474

6,851,023

The turnover of the Group in 2006 increased by approximately 13.7% over
2005, which was mainly driven by the newly consolidated subsidiaries
from the medicine and consumer product businesses, as well as the

considerable increase of toll revenue of infrastruciure facilities,

The completion of expansion and widening works of Hu-Ning Expressway
{liangsu section) had induced more traffic flow on Hu-Ning Expressway
(Shanghai sect on), resulting in a significant year-on-year increase in toll
revenue. In adclition, the sales tax on toll revenue was reduced to 3% with
effect from 1st June 2005. A full year's impact on this positive factor was
accounted for in 2006.

The turnover growth in consumer products business was attributable
to the organic growth in turnover of all subsidiaries and contribution of
Hebet Yongxin Paper which constituted a consolidating subsidiary since
September 2005 that only four months of its turnover was accounted for
in the prior year.

The increase in the stake in Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical 1 51% by the
Group was completed in July 2005, which gave an additional turnover to

181,578 522
3,567,264 45
2,276,443 250
6,025,285 13.7

40%
116%
54.4%
30%
378%
59.29%

mm Infrastructure facilities
£33 Medicine
/ Consumer products

the medicine tusiness this year since only six months of its turnover was accounted for in the prior year. This has

helped offset the adverse impacts on the turnover of the medicine business brought by the changes of policies 1o

the pharmaceutical industry in the PRC and media reports on quality issue of medicine products.
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4  Profit before Taxation
(1} Gross profit margin
Gross profit margin for the year was 37.1%, representing a decrease of approximately 1.2 percentage point
compared 10 38.3% last year. The decrease was attributable to the consolidation of the results of Hebei Yongxin
Paper since September 2005, which was engaged in paper production business with relatively lower gross profit

margin.

{2} Investment income
The increase in investment income was mainly due to a gain of approximately HK$268.07 million booked
this year from the disposal of 10% equity interest in Pudong Container, while investment income for 2005
was mainly derived from the disposal gain on investrment in China Netcom (HK} amounting to approximately
HK$91.74 million.

{3} Other income
Other income was mainly derived from a compensation received by Hu-Ning Expressway for the deficiency in
its toll revenue of approximately HK$171.76 million, representing a significant increase as last year comparative
mainly comprised the write back of provisions for the consumer products business and the re-investment tax
refund etc,

(4) Share of results of jointly controlled entities
Even though the market sentiment in the PRC automobile industry showed some signs of improvement,
automobile and component makers continued to experience tough times amid increasing raw material costs
and ail price. Huizhong Automotive, being the major jointly controlled entity of the Group, managed to turn
its results around to make profits again by implementing cost reduction and other measures, resulting in an
improvement in the share of results of jaintly controlled entities.

(5) Share of resulits of associates
Due to an ongoing inventory correction that some of its customers have pushed out wafer orders, SMIC still

recorded a loss this year but in a smaller magnitude; hence the share of results of associates increase this year.

(6) Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
The Group recorded a net gain on disposal of three medicine entities last year, including Sunve Pharmaceutical
and two invested entities of S| Pharmaceutical. In the absence of similar disposal this year, the net gain on
disposal of interests decreased significantly.

5 Dividends
The Group adopts a stable growth dividend payout policy. The Board of Directors of the Group has propesed to
declare a final dividend of HK30 cents per share, together with an interim dividend of HK22 cents per share, the
total dividend amounts to HK52 cents per share for the year. The payout ratio was approximately 40.0%, an increase
of 0.7 percentage point as compared with the payout ratio of approximately 39.3% in 2005.
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Il Financial Position of the Group HKS billion
18
1 Capital and Shareholders’ Equity =
The Group had a total of 968,504,000 shares in issue as at 31st December * = T
20086, which was increased by 971,000 shares as compared with the " _‘:77—1‘“ T
967,533,000 shares in issue at the end of 2005. The increase is mainly A e
attributable to the exercise of share options by employees R I e T e [0 = Bl S Y
8 _ | ] 3 e |
The Group maintains a stable financial condition. The shareholders' o | ] ] ié-ﬁ
equity, increased by approximately HK$1,129.49 million to HK$17,505.38 PO O T O _ﬂ_ |
million as at 3Ist December 2006, which was attributable to the net : HEE “_ N
profits and the increase in number of shares in issue for the year after o _J L] “jL L
deducting the cividend actually paid during the year. WIS e s 2000

£ Shareholders' equity

2 Indebtedness
(1} Borrowings

The Group took advantage of the liquidity in the banking and financial markets, and obtained a five-year term

and revolving syndication loan facilities of HK$3 billien during the year through a whally-owned subsidiary, SIHL

Finance Limited. This arrangement not only pravides re-financing for part of the existing loans with a lower

interest rate, it alse retains stand-by facilities at an attractive interest rate level for the Group.

As at 31st December 2006, the total borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,186.85 million
{2005: HK52,293.75 million), of which 83.3% (2005: 82.9%) was an unsecured credit facility.

{2) Pledge of assets

As at 31st December 2006, the following assets were pledged by the Group to banks in order to secure general
banking facilities granted by these banks to the Group:

{a) plani and machinery with a carrying value of approximately HK$22,857,000 (2005: HK$32,034,000);

{b) leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of approximately HK$195,494,000 (2005: HK$230,099.000);
{&)  motor vehicles with a carrying value of approximately HK$82,000 (2005; HKS165,000); and

{d) bank deposit of approximately HK$560,00C (2005: nil).

[n addition, 3t 31st December 2006, certain of the Groups plant and machinery with a carrying value of
HK$180,322,000 (2005: HK$158,548,000) were pledged to an independent third party which provided a
guarantee to a bank in respect of a bank loan granted to the Group.

At 31st December 2006, the Group had bank deposits of approximately HK$28.0 million {(2005: HK$28.0 million)
pledged to banks in respect of banking facilities granted 1o an associate.

(3) Contingent liabilities
As at 31st December 2006, the Group has given guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities utilized by
Xian Wing Far, Jinan Quanyong Printing and a third party of HK$64.80 million (2005 HK$19.63 million) in total.
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Bank Deposits and Short-term Investments

As at 315t December 2006, bank balances and shori-term investments held by the Group amounted to HK$6,805.56
million (2005; HK$6,068.40 million) and HK$1,660.11 million (2005: HK$1,070.04 million) respectively. The proportions
of US dollars, Renminbi and HK dollars were 59%, 29% and 12% {2005: 47%, 39% and 14%) respectively. Short-term
investments mainly consisted of investments such as funds, equity linked notes, bonds and Hong Kong listed shares.

Al present, the Group is in a net cash position, While having sufficient working capital and a healthy interest cover,
there are sufficient financial resources and fund raising capabilities, the Group is monitoring market situation and
seek opportunities to optimize capital structure should needs arise.

Management Policies for Financial Risk

Exchange Rate Risk

The Group mainly operates in China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the exposure in
exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the US dollar, HK dollar and Renminbi exchange rates.
Exchange rate fluctustions and market trends have always been the concern of the Group. As the HK dollar and
Renminbi are both under managed floating systems, the Group, after reviewing its exposure for the time being, did
not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks during the year.

Interest Rate Risk

To complement the repayment of the original syndication loan of HK$1,600 million, the Group terminated its related
interest rate hedging arrangement during the year. To exercise prudent management against interest rate risk, the
Group will continue to review the market trend, as well as its business operation needs and its financial position, in
order to identify the most effective interest rate hedging means for the HK$3 billion syndication loan raised in the
fourth quarter of the year

Credit Risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, eguity and debt investments, trade and other
receivables. The Group's trade and other receivables presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for
doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made according to the Group's accounting policy or where
there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, Ts evidence of a reduction in the recoverability

of cash flows.

With respect to the credit risk of the Group's ireasury operations, the Group's bank balances and cash, securities and
debt investments must be placed and entered into with financial institutions of good reputation. There are strict
requirernents and restrictions as 1o the outstanding amount and credit ratings on equity and debt investrments to
be held, so as to minimise the Group's credit risk exposure.
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The Company has made considerable efforts to maintain high standard of corporate governance. Throughout these
years the Company has continuously devoted to improve its corporate governance system. Moreover, through the
establishment of internal control mechanisms, the Company has enhanced transparency and accountability for the
operation of its businesses, and has assured that the operating and financial risks as well as the compliance of its business
operation are effectively monitored, and Shareholders' interests are thus protected,

Curing the year, in view of the changes in rules and regulations, the Company had provided professional training to the
financial officers of its member companies on matters concerning the implementation of new accounting regulations
in Mainland China, principles and requirements of internal control and financial systems, as well as financial risk
management. In addition to the internal audit having conducted on all directly owned entities held by the Campany,
the Company has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal system of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance
with the requirements of the Code of Caorporate Governance. The scope of such review covered financial, operaticnal
and compliance controls and risk management functions. Furthermore, during the year, the Remuneration Committee
had conducted an overall review on the policies and remuneration level for the Directors of the Company as a whole.
Adjustments were made to the structure of remuneration package according to the market trend, and basis of

determining the discretionary bonus and the cap amount of Directors’ remuneration was established.

Corporate Governance Structure

The governance structure of the Company is designed to take into account the multi-discipline and cross-territory
attributes of its businesses, with emphasis on highly efficient management. Set out below is the governance structure of
the Company:

Board of Directors

i
Audit Comrnittee Executive Committee Remuneration Committee

¥ L ‘

Management Executives

Investment Appraisal
Committee

Shanghai Regional
Head Office

Hong Kong Headquarters
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Compliance of Code of Corporate Governance

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2006, the Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors represents the highest level of authority in the governance structure of the Company. They are
mainly responsible for formulating the Company’s long term business development strategies and operational direction,
monitoring the Groups operations and financial performance, as well as leading and supervising the management to
ensure thorough implementation of the Board's resolutions and effective performance of their duties.

Composition of the Board

The Board has eleven members, of whom eight are Executive Directors, namety Mr. Cai Lai Xing, Mr. Cai Yu Tian, Mr. Qu
Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang, Mr. Ding Zhong De, Mr. Qian Shi Zheng, Mr. Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun, and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Lo Ka Shui, Prof. Woo Chia-Wei and Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis. Mr. Cai Lai Xing and
Mr. Cai Yu Tian are the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company respectively. The members of the Board
comprise experts from various professions who have served in relevant government authorities, enterprises or financial
institutions in Mainland China or Hong Kong. They have extensive experience in corporate and financial administration,
economic research and asset management. During the year, there was ne change in the composition of the Board.

No members of the Board are related among themselves in terms of financial, business and family. Brief biographical
details of the Directors and senior management are set out on pages 42 to 51 of this annual report and published in the
Company's website www.sihlcom.hk. In all corporate communications, the Company had disclosed the composition of
the Board zccording to the categories and responsibilities of the Directors.
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Nomination of Directors

The nominatien of the Directors is principally made by the controlling Shareholder of the Company recommending
candidates to the Company, and considered by the Board on the basis of the candidates' working experience, profession
and academic background, and the time and contribution they are able to devote to the Company. During the year, the
Company did not receive any nomination of Directors,

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices, Mr. Cai Yu Tian was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in December 2005, who was re-elected
by the Shareholders a the first general meeting after his appointment. Each Direcior (including those Directors who are
appointed with a specific term) is subject to be re-elected by rotation at least once every three years.

The Directors retired and re-elected in accordance with the Articles of Association at the Annual General Meeting in 2006
were Mr. Cai Yu Tian, Mr. Ding Zhong De, Mr. Qian Shi Zheng, Prof. Woo Chia-Wei and Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis. At the
2007 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 30th May 2007, four Directors are to be retired by rotation
and eligible for re-election, namely Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang, Mr. Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun. The brief biographical
detalls of the Directors 1o be re-elected at the 2007 Annual General Meeting are set out in the circular to Shareholders
regarding proposed ceneral mandates to repurchase shares and to issue shares and re-election of retiring Directors,
which was despatched 1o each Shareholder together with this annual report, so as to enable the Shareholders to make an
informed decision on their election.

Term of Directors

According to the Directors’ service agreement entered into between the Company and Mr. Cai Lai Xing, Mr. Cai Yu Tian,
Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Ding Zhong De and Mr. Qian Shi Zheng (al! of whom are Executive Directors} respectively, any party to
the agreemant may terminate the agreement by giving to the other party a six menths' prior written notice. In addition,
the Company also entered into letters of appointment with each of the remaining three Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, specifying an appointment term of three years, subject to renewal upon expiry, The

retiring Directars subject to rotation according to the Articles of Association are eligible for re-election during the term.
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As at the date of this repert, the years of services and term for each member of the Board are as follows:

Term of appointment

Positions in
Name of Directors the Board Years of service
Executive Directors
Cal Lai Xing Chairman 11 Years
Cai Yu Tian Vice Chairman and 1.5 Years
Chief Executive Officer
Cu Bing Vice Chairman and 25 Years
Executive Deputy CEQ
L.u Ming Fang - 5 Years
Ding Zheng De - 3 Years
Qian Shi Zheng Deputy CEO 5 Years
Yao Fang - 4 Years
Tang Jun - 3 Years
indenendent Non-Executive Directors
Lo Ka Shui - 11 Years
Woo Chia-Wei - 11 Years
Leung Pak To, Francis - 11 Years

Any party to the agreement may terminate the
agreement by giving to the other party a six

months’ prior written notice.

Any party to the agreement may terminate the
agreement by giving t¢ the other party a six
months' prior written notice.

Any party to the agreement may terminate the
agreement by giving to the other party a six

months' priar written notice.

Until 31st December 2008, subject to renewal

Upon expiry.

Any party to the agreement may terminate the
agreement by giving to the other party a six

months’ prior written notice.

Any party to the agreement may terminate the
agreement by giving tc the other party a six
months' pricr written notice.

Until 31st December 2008, subject to renewal
upon expiry.

Until 31st December 2008, subject to renewal
UpoN expiry.

Until 31st December 2007, subject to renewal

UpCen expiry.

Until 31st December 2007, subject to renewal

UpoN expiry.

Until 31st December 2007, subject to renewal
UpOon expiry.
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Responsibilities of Directors

Mr. Cai Lai Xing and Mr, Cai Yu Tian are the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company respectively, The
Chairman is mainly responsible for the management of the Board, providing leadership, ensuring effective performance
of the Board and that Directors receive adequate information on the agenda, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner before the meeting. The Chief Executive Officer is mainly responsible for the operation and management
of the Group’s businesses, leading the management executives and the members of the management to perform their
duties in accordance with the established business strategies and operation directions of the Board. The Company has
formulated an Interpretation on the Responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer for division of
responsibilities between the two roles.

The functions of the Company's Independent Non-Executive Directors include participating in board meetings to
bring an independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct; taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise; scrutinizing the performance of
the Company in achiaving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance. All
independent Non-Executive Directors are alsc the members of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. There is no material commercial transaction entered into between them and the Company, its controlling
Shareholder and their respective subsidiaries, and they have no material interest in the principal operating activities. There
was no evidence in any aspect which demonstrated that the guidelines relating to the assessment of the independence
of Directors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules were not complied with. Each Independent Non-Executive Director
has confirmed their independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the year.

The Company will provide a Memarandum of Respensibilities to every newly appointed Director. Briefing sessions and
training will be delivered whenever necessary during his appointment to ensure that he has a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Company and that he is fully aware of the policies of the Company and his statuiory

responsibilities under the laws and regulations premulgated from time to time.

Maintaining close association with each of the Directors, the Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed, and offers advice and services t¢ the Board members
where necessary. Furthermore, the Company has established the Procedures for Directors to Seek Professional Advice
in order to facilitate the Directors in performing their duties. The Directors may seek independent professional advice
according to such agreed procedures at the expense of the Company.

Moreover, the Company also arranged liabilities insurance for the directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries, providing certain protection to the liabilities risks they may have involved in the discharge of their duties as
well as to the possible legal claims made against the respective companies as a result,
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Meeting Procedures

The time for convening the regular meetings of ihe Board (in this section it also refers to the Board’s Committees) each
year was propased to each Director at the beginning of the year, so that arrangements could be made by each Director
for attending the meetings. During the year, notices of regular board meetings and the relevant materials for board
meetings were given 14 days and 3 days respectively before the date of the meeting in accordance with the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices. In order to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the documents,
the Company also seeks to send the materials not less than 72 hours {excluding Sundays) before the meeting. During
the year, only one of the reports for the second Audit Committee in 2006 failed to be sent 72 hours before the meeting,
but was still given within 3 days as required in the Code. The Company Secretary will contact the Directers for any
matters that are required to be included in the agenda before sending the agenda for reqular meetings of the Board. The
Directors are given the contact information of the management or relevant officers, so that the Directors may have direct
access 1o the relevant officers where necessary for better discharge of their duties as members of the Board.

Minutes of board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered at the meeting, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Board meeting
documents and related materials are open for inspection at any time by any Director. Draft and full versions of minutes
of meetings are to be sent to all Directors by the Company Secretary for their comment and records respectively, in both
cases within a reasonable time after the meeting is held. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a material conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board, the matter will be dealt with at a regular board meeting to be
attended by all Directors, The related Director must abstain from veting and that he will not be counted in the guorum
present at the meeting. Accarding to the provisions of the Articles of Association, a Directar holding 5% or more interests
is regarded as having material interest.

In 2006, five regular board meetings were held by the Company, of which one was conducted in the form of written
resolutions. The average percentage of attendance was 98%. During the year, attendance of the board meetings was as

follows:

Name of Director Attendance/No. of meetings Percentage of Attendance
Executive Directors

Cai Lai Xing 5/5 100%

Cai Yu Tian 5/5 100%

Qu Ding 5/5 100%

Lu Ming Fang 5/5 100%

Ding Zhong De 4/5 80%

Qian Shi Zheng 5/5 100%

Yao Fang 5/5 100%

Tang Jun 5/5 100%
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Name of Director Attendance/No. of meetings Percentage of Attendance

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ka Shui 5/5 100%
Woo Chia-Wei 5/5 100%
Leung Pak To, Francis 5/5 100%

Code for Securities Transactions By Directors

Pursuant 1o the relevant provisions in the Model Code in Appendix 10 and the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Company has established its own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
or Relevant Employees. Directors and employees with the position of senior managers cr above must comply with such
code in dealing with the securities of the Company. The code of the Company was set on terms no less exacting than
the required standarcs set cut in the Model Code. Having made enquiries with all the Directors, it was confirmed that
the requirements of the Model Code and the Company's cede were fully complied with during the year. The interests of
Directors in the securities of the Company and its subsidiaries were set out on pages 54 to 55 of this annual report.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has established an Executive Committee, an Audit Committee and a Remuneration Committee under the
Board. The Executive Committee have given clear directions on the authority of the management executives in particular
on investment appraisal, capital commitment and financial assistance. The heads of various functional departments
handle the daily operation and report to the Executive Committee regularly. The Board will raview the delegation of

authority from time to time where appropriate to the interests of the Group as a whaole.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is a decision-making administrative body under the Board that carries out its responsibilities
on its behalf, Existing members of the Executive Committee are Mr. Cai Lai Xing, Mr. Cai Yu Tian, Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu
Ming Fang, Mr. Qian Shi Zheng and Mr. Yao Fang. Mr. Cai Lai Xing is the Chairman of the committee. The committee is
delegated with autherity by the Board, with & primary purpose of taking charge in major decision making in relation to
the day-to-day business of the Company, ensuring the proper execution of the resalutions approved by the Beard and
the Sharehclders’ Meeting, and reviewing major business activities and investments, Day-to-day operation is delegated
to the Management Executives and the functional departments. Members of the Management Executives are Mr. Cai
Yu Tian, Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Qian Shi Zheng, Mr. Zhou Jie, Ms. Wang Xiao Dong, Shanel and Mr. Zhou Jun. Functional
departments at the Hong Kong headquarters include Administration and Human Resources, Company Secretarial,
Corporate Communications, Finance, Information Technology, Internal Audit, Investment Operations as well as Legal.
Functional departments at the Shanghai Regional Head Office include Administration and Human Resources, Audit,

Enterprise Management, Finzance as well as Investment Planning.
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The Company has established an Investment Appraisal Committee, which is mainly comprised of the functional
departments at the Hong Kong headquarter. The members are currently comprised of the Head of Investments, the
Chief Legal and Compliance Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Head of the Investment
Operations Department. The committee is established to appraise the Company's investment projects from different
perspectives with professional competency and views given by various functional departments based on the Company’s
overall business investment strategies. After conducting comprehensive analysis and discussion of key project elements,
such as industry background, organizational structure, business development plans, return on investment, financial risk
and legal issues, the committee forms its independent professional advice and submits recommendations and reports to
the Management Executives. Such appraisal will then be submitted to the Executive Committee for approval according
to the procedures regarding corporate investment decision-making process. During the year, the Investment Appraisal
Committee conducted appraisals on eight projects.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a standing committee under the Board and plays a vital role in corporate governance. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Lo Ka Shui, Prof. Woo Chia-Wei and Mr.
Leung Pak To, Francis. Dr. Lo Ka Shui is the Chairman of the committee, while the Company Secretary acts as Secretary
for the committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group. It also discusses matters related to financial reporting, as well as internal control and risk management, and reports
to the Board with recommendations in respect of the above matters. The work of the Audit Committee during the year
is set out below. The terms of reference for the Company’s Audit Committee are published in the Company's website

www.sinl.com.hk.

Remuneration Committee

To further enhance corporate governance standards, the Company established the Remuneration Commitiee under the
Board in August 2004. The committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors - Dr. Lo Ka Shui, Prof. Woo
Chia-Wei and Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis and two representatives from the management - Mr, Qu Ding and Mr. Hu Zi Li.
Mr. Qu is the Vice Chairman and Deputy Executive CEO of the Company. Mr. Hu is the officer in charge of the Company's
Human Resources Department. Dr. Lo Ka Shui is the Chairman of the commiitee, while the Company Secretary acts
as the Commitiee Secretary. The committee is responsible for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company as a whole, and makes recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a formal and transparent
pracedure for setting remuneration policy and structure in regard to the Directors and senior management. The work of
the Remuneration Committee during the year is set out below. The terms of reference for the Company's Remuneration
Committee are published in the Company’s website www.siblcom.hk.
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lil.  Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Work performed by the Remuneration Committee

During 2006, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings, one of which was in the form of written resolutions. The
percentage of attendance was 100%. Matters considered include the proposal on distribution of bonuses to the Executive
Directors for 2005 and the determination on adjustment in the basic salaries of Directors for 2006, the proposal on
review of remuneraticn and distribution of bonuses to senior management for 2005, the grant of the third batch of share
options, review and recommendation on the remuneration level for Directors, as well as the payment of remuneration to
senior management for the first half of 2006.

During the year, attendance for the meetings of the Remuneration Committee was as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee Attendance/No. of meetings Percentage of Attendance
Lo Ka Shui (Chairman of the Committee) 3/3 100%
Woo Chia-Wei 3/3 100%
Leung Pak To, Francis 3/3 100%
Qu Ding 3/3 100%
Hu Zi Li 3/3 100%

Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to the operating results of the Company, market
environment and Diractors’ responsibilities, Apart from the basic salaries, the Directors are entitled te discretionary
benuses, the availakility of which is subject to the operating results of the Group, industry remuneration level and
performance of the respective Directors. During the year, based on the market trend, the Remuneration Committee

had made adjustments on the structure of remuneration package of the Directors, cancelling housing allowances and

formulating a policy for setting limits over the total zmount of Directors’ annual remuneration.

st
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For the year ended 31st December 2006, the remuneration for each of the Directors was as follows:

Equity-settled  Retirement

Director’s fee share-based benefits
Name of and committee payment scheme
Director remuneration Salaries Bonuses expense contributions Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Executive Directors
Cai Lai Xing - 3,102,820 2,000,000 358,782 265,956 5,727,558
Cai Yu Tian - 2,250,990 1,900,000 1,660,618 192,942 6,004,550
Qu bBing 50,0600 2,250,950 1,800,000 251,148 192,942 4,545,080
Lu Ming Fang 200,600 - - 215,270 - 415,270
Ding Zhong De - 1,831,200 800,000 1,277,399 156,960 4,065,559
Qian Shi Zheng - 1,587,600 800,000 134,543 133,835 2,655,978
Yao Fang 200,000 - - - - 200,000
Tang Jun 200,600 - - 134,543 - 334,543

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ka Shui 304,095 - - - - 304,095
Woo Chia-Wei 292,095 - - - - 292,095
Leung Pak To, Francis 292,095 - - - - 262,005

1,538,285 11,023,600 7,300,000 4,032,303 942,635 24836823

lll. Accountability and Audit

Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements and interim report of the Company for 2006 were prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and disclosed pursuant to the provisions required by the Listing Rules and Companies
Ordinance. The Board is responsible for preparing and reviewing the Company’s accounts to ensure that they give a true
and fair view on the financial position, profits and cash flows of the Company, and the Board's responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in all Shareholders’ communications extend to the results and conditions
of the Group, price-sensitive information and other information reguired to be disclosed under statutory requirements.
During the year, the management had provided the Board with sufficient and adequate information to review the
Company’s accounts, 5o as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before it for approval. The Company has consistently applied applicable accounting policies, and had made prudent
and reasonable judgments and estimates, and prepared its accounts on a going concern basis, The external auditor had
stated their reporting responsibilities in the independent auditor's report on the relevant financial statements, which is set
out in pages 6i 1o 62 of this annual report.
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Work of the Audit Committee

During 2006, the Audit Committee held four meetings, one of which was in the form of written resolutions. The
percentage of attendance was 100%. Matters considered at the meetings included review of the Group's 2005 annual
results, 2006 interim results, the fees for engaging the external auditor to provide the audit for 2005, nen-audit projects
and non-audit fees for investment projects, the Audit Proposal regarding the audit for 2004, and review of the Company’s
financial control, internal control, risk management system, and the internal audit reports.

Curing the year, attendance for the meetings of the Audit Committee was as follows:

Members of Audit Committee Attendance/No. of meetings Percentage of Attendance
Lo Ka Shui {Chairman of the committee) 4/4 100%
Woo Chia-Wei 4/4 100%
Leung Pak To, Francis 4/4 100%

In considering the re-appointment of external auditor, the Audit Committee had taken into consideration its relationship
with the Company and their independence in the provision of non-audit services. Each year the external auditor
provides to the Audit Committee the relevant information on the internal policies and processes adopted by them for
maintaining independence, including rotation of audit partners and staff regularly. Based on the results of the review and
after taking into account the opinion of the management, the Audit Committee recommended the Board to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the exiernal auditor of the Company for 2007, subject to approvals by the Shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th May 2007. There is no former partner of the existing firm auditing the
accounts of the Company acting as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee within ene year commencing on the
date of his ceasing to ke a pariner of the firm. The audit fee of the external auditor for the year 2006 was HK$8,280,000.
The non-audit services provided to the Group by the Company's external auditor (including their affiliates) and the
relevant fees were as follows:

Non-audit Services Fees

HKS
Financial due diligence for acquisitions of projects 5232430
Taxation adviscry fee 240450

Others . 58,030

5530910
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible to ensure that the internal control system of the Group is sound, proper and effective, and
also endeavours to implement sound risk management and internal control systems, for the purpose of providing
early warning on risks exposed in business operations and financial management, and monitoring of the rationale
behind decisions to be made in operations decisions and resources allocation. This will allow consistent and effective
implementation of the systems, clear delegation of authority and responsibilities, and achievement of pre-determined
objectives. The Group has formulated internal management systems which include Investment Project Appraisal Policy,
Project Manager Management Manual, Financial Management Systemn, Budget System, Connected Transactions Reporting
System, Guidebook on Internal Audit System, Internal Control System for pharmaceutical companies and Informaiion
Flow Guidelines.

The Company has established an Internal Audit Department which is mainly responsible for monitoring the internal
contral system of the Group (including all its major subsidiaries) to ensure prudent and proper operation of the respective
companies. The audit covers financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions. The
department conducts independent reviews, assessment and foilow-up procedures, and reports to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly on a quarterly basis. The internal audit system is currently conducted in a cycle of three years.
Internal audits will be conducted at every major entity under the Group for risk exposure purpose according to the
significance of the individual projects. All these entities are assigned with designated officers to give feedback on audits
made by the Internal Audit Department.

A review of the compliance control systemn of the Company was conducted during the year. The Company Secretarial
Department was responsible for the relevant work and the first report was submitted to the Audit Committee. During
the year, the Internal Audit Department also conductec a review on the Iinternal control system of the Company and
its subsidiaries, The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management. The results of the review revealed that the internal control system of the Company as a whole was
reasonable and proper and there were no material issues arisen from non-compliance of rules or inadequacy on internal
controls. Such results had been submitzed to the Audit Commitiee for its review and was also confirmed and accepted by
the Board.

IV. Communications with the Shareholders

Information for Shareholders and Investors
As at 31st December 2006, Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Lid. the controlling Shareholder of the
Company, indirectly held 968,504,000 shares of the Company. The percentage of shareholding was 56.6%.
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Each year, the Board zommunicates with and addresses questions raised by Shareholders at the annual general meetings.
The Chairman of the Company and Chairman of committees under the Board (or their representatives) had attended
the 2006 Annual General Meeting and addressed questions raised by Shareholders. The Company also communicates
with the Shareholders and the investors from time to time by way of e-mails, telephane or in writing on their valuable
opinions,

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to maintain
transparency of its operation. Apart from information disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports and circulars
to Shareholders, most updated business development of the Group is also published in press conferences and
announcements, as well as on the Company’s website wwwisihlcom.hk. Apart from the Group's business information,
the Company’s webs te also provides access to the websites of the major entities under the Group. The Company meets
with analysts and overseas institutional investors from time to time, and has an e-mail address enquiry@sini.com.hik for the
purpose of investor relations, so that investors can make recommendations and enquiries, During the year, the Group
participated in several seminars organized by assaciations within and outside the PRC for institutional investors. This had
allowed the investors from varicus sectars 10 better understand the investment strategies, aperation and prospects of the
Group. The Company also organized a number of promoticnal activities for its 10th Anniversary, which had strengthened
the communications with its investors.

The Group disseminates information to the public strictly in accordance with its internal guidelines en information
disclosure. This ensures that the related information will be disclosed to the market in a fair, imely and accurate manner.

Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting

The natice for the Annual General Meeting of 2006 was set out in the 2005 Annual Report and dispatched to each
Shareholder on 28th April 2006. At the general meeting, the Chairman had explained the procedures to demand a poll
in such meeting and the procedures were set out in a circular o Shareholders dated 28th April 2006. At the 2006 Annual
General Meeting helc on 30th May 2006, the Chairman had proposed separate resolutions for each separate maiier to be
transacted at the meeting and demanded poll for all resolutions 1o be voted at the meeting with the power canferred
0 him by the Articles of Association. Secretaries Limited, the Share Registrar of the Company, was appointed as the
scrutineer and was responsible for the arrangement of the voting procedures. The Company announced the results of
the poll in the following business day and pubtished the same on the websites of the Company www.siffcom.hk and the

Stock Exchange www.hkex.com.hk for inspection by each of the Shareholders.
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Mechanism for the Trading of the Company’s Shares

The Company currently maintains mechanisms for the trading of its shares in the Hong Kong, New York and London
markets. Investers can trade ADR Level 1 shares set up by the Company in the over-the-counter market in the US. Each
ADR represents 10 ordinary shares of the Company. Bank of New York, US, is the depositary of the Company’s ADR. In
addition, the shares of the Company are alsc admitted to the Automated Quotation System of London Stock Exchange.
Investors in Mong Kong can obtain ADR quotes and shares listing in Lendon for each trading day of the Company's shares
through the media.

V. Human Resources

Remuneration and Benefits Policies

A set of effective remuneration policies has been formulated to determine remuneration and benefits for all staff.
Through its performance appraisal mechanism, the Campany carries out annual reviews in accordance with its business
performance, the individual perfermance of the staff, and market remuneration levels, in orcer to determine a reasonable
and competitive compensation package for its employees. As at 31st Decemnber 2006, the Group's total number of
employees was 11,886 (2005: 13,966), of which 95% were stationed in Mainland China and the rest were the Hong Kong
employees. The average age of the employaes was 37, whereas the average years of service was 1. The ratio of male ta
female staff was 59:41. In addition, 75% of the employees are engaged in sales and production. There is about 20% of
the employees holding university degree or above. This year, staff salaries, allowances and bonuses (including Directors)
totaled HK$615 million (2005: HK$531 million). Meanwhile, in order to ensure effective recruitment and successful
retention of talents, the Company offers staff a compensation package that includes cash allowances, and medical and
personal accident insurance. The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its qualified employees.
Furthermore, in compliance with Mandatery Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, all empioyees are required to participate
in the mandatory provident fund scheme, The assets of the two schemes are administered separately by independent
custodian in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

Share Options

Share aptions allow the Company to provide incentives to Directors, employees and eligible persons in a mare flexible
manner. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 31st May 2002, share options for 27,250,000,
10,000,000 and 5,000,000 shares were granted in September 2002, September 2005 and May 2006 respectively. The
exercise price for the above batches of share options were HK$11.71, HK$14.89 and HK$17.10 per share respeciively. As at
31st December 2006, share options for 20,336,000 shares were exercised, of which share options for 7,383,000 shares were
unexercised and lapsed.
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In addition, the Company adopted a share option scheme for Mergen Biotech on 28th May 2004. The first batch of share
options for 3,400 Mergen Bictech shares was granted in December 2004. Mergen Biotech is a subsidiary in which the
Company owns an 85 percent interest, the major assets of the company is a 73.26 percent stake in Sunway Biotech.
Sunway Biotech is principally engaged in the development and production of anti-cancerous drugs. The primary purpose
for adopting the Mergen Biotech share option scheme was to offer relevant employees the opportunity to acquire a stake

in Mergen Biotech, encouraging them to perform their work with the aim 1o appreciate Mergen Biotech's value.

Details of the share option schemes for the Company and Mergen Biotech are contained in note 38 to the financial
staternents.

Employee Training

The Company considers employees as its vital assets and commits to continuous staff training. We also recognize that,
in a knowledge-based and increasingly competitive environment, a competent, dedicated and commitied team of
excellent employees can significantly contribute to the performance of the Company. During the year, the Company
offered a variety of intarmal training programmes to staff at all levels, which covered financial management, review of new
accounting standards, internal control and interpretations of laws and regulations. The Company also sponsored its staff
to participate in training on specific topics and continuous professional education for specific professions, sc as to expand
their job-related knowledge, leverage their potential and demaonstrate their abilities. Meanwhile, allowances are available
to staff to take job-related courses, This scheme seeks to encourage employees 1o continue their education after work, so
as to better equip themselves and broaden their horizens, allowing them to make a greater contribution to the Company.

Employee Relations

The Company encourages its employees to express opinions directly to the management about the Company's
operation, future development strategies, and other matters of interest to employees. The Company also publishes its
staff manual, which sets out rules for various work areas, company regulations and welfare policies. The Company also
issues ethic codes for compliance by its staff, which allows them to clearly understand their rights and obligations in
discharge of their duties. This will facilitate the staff to devote their best efforts to cope with the future development of
the Company, and grow simultaneously with the Company. In crder to enhance communication between the staff in
Shanghai and Hong Kong, the Company arranges visits for staff between both cities as well as exchange meetings for
the management staff of member enterprises. This helps staff share knowledge and exchange experience, cultivates
teamwork, and enhances their identification and sense of belonging to the corporation.

By Order of the Board
Wong Mei Ling, Marina
Company Secretary

20th April 2007
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Lai Xing

Mr. Cai, aged 64, was appointed the Chairman of the Company in March 1996. He is the chairman of Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd. He graduated from Tongji University. He was formerly a Deputy Secretary of the Shanghai
Municipal Government and was responsible for econamic planning, finance and research. In addition, he was Deputy
Director of the Shanghai Planning Committee and Pudong Development Office, and a Director of the Municipal
Government’s Research Office. He has decades of experience in economics, finance and enterprise management. In
1988, in recognition of his outstanding contribution, he was accredited as a State-Class Economist. Mr. Cai is presently a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. CAl Yu Tian

Mr. Cai, aged 57, was appointed Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
December 2005. He is also an execuiive director and president of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd.
Concurrently he is the chairman of Shanghai Mu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section) Co. Lid. and vice chairman of
General Water of China Co. Ltd. Mr. Cai obtained a master's degree from East China Normal University with major in global
economics, and was a research associate. Mr. Cai had been the manager of Zhong Hua Enterprises Co. and the vice
chairman of Shanghai Gu Bei Joint Develepment Co. During the pericd from Septemnber 1987 to November 2005, he had
been the Deputy Director and the Director of the Shanghai Municipal Housing Administration Bureau, the Director of the
Shanghai Municipal Housing and Land Administration Bureau and the Director of the Shanghai Municipal Housing, Land
and Rescurces Administration Bureau respectively. Mr. Cai has more than 20 years' experience in real estate, economic and

administrative management.

Mr. QU Ding

Mr. Qu, aged 57, joined the Company in August 2004 and is the Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Executive Deputy
CEQ of the Company. He joined Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd. (*SIC") in January 1996, and is an
executive director and executive vice president of SIIC. He is also the chairman of the supervisory committee of Shanghai
Industrial Development Co. Ltd. Mr. Qu graduated from Northeast Normal University, majored in economic management.
Mr. Qu is designated an economist. He was the Director of the Department of International Exchange & Cooperation
of Shanghai Municipal Personnel Bureau, the Director of Shanghai Municipal Professional Examinations Centre and the
Director of the Public Officials Trafning Centre of Shangbhai Municipal Personnel Bureau. He has over 30 years' experience

in the fields of human resources and economic management.
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Mr. LU Ming Fang

M Lu, aged 50, joined the Company in January 2002. He is an Executive Director of the Company and Shanghai
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd. ("SIIC™), chairman of Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd. ("SI
Pharmaceutical”) and $.I. Pharmaceuticals Group Ltd, and a non-executive director and deputy chairman of Lianhua
Supermarket Holdings Co. Ltd, He graduated from Fudan University with a master’s degree in economics and The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a master's degree in professional accounting, and is designated a senior economist. Mr. i
Lu has worked for Shanghai Medical Materials Company, Shanghai Municipal Drug Administration, Shanghai Wen Hui I
Bao and Shanghai Wanguo Holdings Ltd. {now Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd). He joined SIC in July 1995. He
was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, deputy general manager of the assets management departrent of
SIC, a director and executive deputy general manager of Shanghai S. | Capital Co. Ltd, director and general manager of
Shanghai Industrial United Holdings Co. Ltd, (now SI Pharmaceurtical), assistant president and vice president of SIIC and
general manager of its finance and planning department. He has over 20 years’ management experience, including over

10 years' working experience in invesiment banking and listed companies.

Mr. DING Zhong De

Mr. Ding, aged 57, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in January 2004. He joined Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd. ("SIIC") in May 1997, He is an executive director of SIIC and is the chairman of Nanyang
Brothers Tobacco Co. Ltd. He is also a director of Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd. and The Wing
Fat Printing Co. Ltd. Mr. Ding obtained a master's degree in Science from Fudan University and holds the designation
of senior economist. He was the Deputy Director of the Shanghai Municipal Party Committee’s Research Office. He has

extensive experience in economic research and enterprise management.

Mr. QIAN Shi Zheng

Mr. Qian, aged 54, was appointed an Executive Director and Deputy CEO of the Company in January 2002. He graduated
from Fudan University with a master's degree in economics and a doctorate degree in management. He was the deputy
head and associate professor of the faculty of accountancy at Fudan University. He joined Shanghai industrial Investment
{Holdings) Ca. Ltd. (*S1C") in January 1998, and served as chief accountant and the general manager of the internal audit

depariment. Currently, he is vice president of SIC. He has over 20 years' experience in theory and practice of finance and

accounting.
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Mr. YAO Fang

Mr. Yao, aged 37, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in May 2003. He is a director and general
manager of Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd, chairman of Shanghai Medical Instruments Co. Ltd,
Guangdong Techpool Biochem Pharma Co. Lid. and Shanghai Sunway Biotech Co. Ltd. He is also the vice chairman of
Bright Dairy and Food Co. Ltd. and Shenzhen Kangtai Biological Products Co. Ltd. and a director of Xiamen Traditional
Chinese Medicine Co. Ltd, Liaoning Herbapex Pharmaceutical (Group) Co. Ltd, Changzhou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
and MicroPort Medical (Shanghai) Co. Ltd, and a non-executive director of Semniconductor Manufacturing tnternational
Corporation. He graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a master’s degree in business administration.
After working for Bank of Communications (Shanghai branch) and Shanghai Wanguo Holdings Lid. (now Shenyin &
Wanguo Securities Co,, Ltd), Mr. Yao joined Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Lid. in April 1996. He has over
10 years' experience of money and capital markets operations.

Mr. TANG Jun

Mr. Tang, aged 40, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in June 2004, He is the general manager of the
internal audit department and deputy general manager of the finance and planning department of Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd. He graduated from University of South Australia with a master’s degree in business
administration. Mr. Tang holds the designation of senior auditor, and is an associate of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Tang was the Deputy Director of the Foreign Funds Utilization Auditing Department, Shanghai
Municipal Auditing Bureau, and has over ten years' practical experience in the fields of auditing and finance.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. LO Ka Shui

Or. Lo, aged 60, was appointed an Independent Nen-Executive Director of the Company in March 1996. He graduated
with Bachelor of Science Degree from McGilt University and a M. D. from Cornell University, He is also certified in
Cardiology. He has more than 27 years’ experience in property and hotel development and investment both in Hong
Kong and overseas. He is the Chairman and Managing Director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited and the Non-Executive
Chairman of Eagle Asset Management {CP) Limited {Manager of the publicly listed Champion Real Estsate Investrnent
Trust). He is also a Non-Executive Director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Cerporation Limited, Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Limited and China Mabile Limited. He is alsc a Vice President of The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong, a Trustee of the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and a Board Member of the Airport
Authority.
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Prof. WOO Chia-Wei

Prof. Woo, aged 69, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in March 1996, He is
currently Senior Advisor of Shui On Holdings Limited and President Emeritus of the Hong Keng University of Science
and Technology. He sarves on the Commission on Strategic Development and the Chinese Peaple’s Political Consultative
Conference.

Mr. LEUNG Pak To, Francis

Mr. Leung, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in March 1996. He has over
26 years of experience in corporate finance involving in capital raisings, mergers and acquisitions, corporate restructuring
and reorganisation, investments and other general corporate finance advisory activities in Hong Kong and China. in 1980,
he graduated with a master's degree in business administration frem University of Toronto, Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHOU lJie

Mr. Zhou, aged 39, was appointed a Ceputy CEO of the Company in lanuary 2002, He is a vice president of Shanghai
Indusirial Investrnent {Holdings} Co. Ltd. (*SHC"). He is also the chairman of Hangzhou Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd. a director oF Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Ce. Ltd, Chia Tai Qingchunbao Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd, Shanghai Suway Biotech Co. Ltd, The Wing Fat Printing Co. Ltd. and Shanghai Infermation Investment Inc,
a non-executive director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-Pharmaceutical Ceo. Ltd, and chairman of the supervisory
committee of Bright Dairy and Food Co. Ltd. He graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong University with & master’s degree in
engineering management. Mr. Zhou joined SIIC in May 1995 and previously held the paositions of chairman and general
manager of Shanghai 5. Capital Co. Ltd. He was formerly the deputy general manager of the invesiment banking head
office of Shanghai Wanquo Holdings Ltd. (now Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd.). He has over 10 years' experience n
investment banking and capital markets operation.

Ms. WANG Xiao Dong, Shanel

Ms. Wang, aged 45, was appointed a Deputy CEQ of the Company in August 2002. She is also a director and general
manager of General Water of China Co. Ltd. She graduated from Peking University with a bachelor’s degree in law,
She had worked for the Chinese Securities Market Research and Planning Centre, DBS Asset Management Ltd. and
BOC International Holdings Ltd. and served as dealer in bond, capital and stock markets, fund manager of DBSAM and
managing director of BOCI Asia Ltd. Ms. Wang has more than 10 years' professional working experience in the field of

securities, investment and corporate finance.
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Mr. ZHOU Jun

Mr. Zhou, aged 38, was appoinied a Deputy CEQ of the Company in December 2005. He is also the vice chairman of
Shanghai Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section) Co. Ltd. He graduated from Nanjing University and Fudan Universiiy
with a bachelor’s and a master’s degree in economics (international finance). Mr. Zhou worked for Guotal Securities Co.
Ltd. (now Guatai Junan Securities Co.) before joining Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Led. ("SICT) in April
1996, Management positions he had held within the SIC group of companies were deputy general manager of SIIC
Real Estate Holdings {Shanghai) Co. Ltd, deputy general manager of Shanghai United Industrial Co. Lid. (now Shanghai
Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd.), chairman and general manager of Shanghai Galaxy Investment Co. Lid.
and general manager of the strategic investment department of SIC. Mr Zhou has more than 10 years' professional

experience in securities, investment, real estate and project planning.

Ms. WONG Mei Ling, Marina

Ms. Wong, aged 40, joined the Company in March 1997 and was appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in
October 2004. She is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She graduated from City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of arts in accountancy. She also
holds a master’s degree in business administration awarded by the University of Wales and the University of Manchester
in the United Kingdom. Ms, Wong has over 10 years of professional experience in company secretarial practice.

Mr. LEUNG Lin Cheong, Roger

Mr. Leung, aged 53, joined the Company in March 1996 and was appointed Chief Legal and Compliance Officer of
the Company in October 2004, He is also the general manager of the legal and compliance department of Shanghai
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd, He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He also holds a master's degree in laws from University of London and a master's
degree in business administration from Brunel University in UK. in conjunction with Henley Management College. He
has many years of management experience in legal affairs and compliance, listed corporate secretarial practice and

administration.

Mr. ZHAI Pu, Philip

Mr. Zhai, aged 32, was appointed Head of Investments for the Company in MNovember 2003. He graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He obtained his PhD degree from Cambridge University. His
research interests have been focusing on business strategy for MNCs in China, sino-foreign joint venture management
and investment analysis. He worked for Cybercity Investments and Vision Century Corporation, pariicipating in the co-
ordination of project investmeni and capiial management in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
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Ms. CHAN Yat Ying, Cherie

Ms. Chan, aged 39, joined the Company in November 1996 and was apgointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company
in September 2004. Ms. Chan is also the deputy general manager of the finance and planning department of Shanghai
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd. She graduated from University of Hong Keng with a bachelor's degree in social
sciences. She also holds a master's degree in financial management awarded by the University of London. Ms. Chan is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan has extensive working experience in banking and

accounting professions.

Senior Management of Member Companies

Mr. WEN Song Quan

Mr. Wen, aged 60, is ~he chairman of The Wing Fat Printing Co. Ltd. and a director of Shanghai Industrizl Investment
{Holdings) Ce. Ltd. He is also the chairman of Xuchang Yongchang Printing Co. Ltd,, Zhejiang Rongfeng Paper Co. Ltd. and
Chengdu Wing Fat Printing Co. Ltd. Mr. Wen graduated from the Shanghai Academy of Printing. He was the deputy head
of the Shanghai Ne. 10 Printing Factory, head of the People’s Printing Machinery Construction Factory, deputy head of the
Committee of China Fackaging Technology Association and general manager of the Shanghai Packaging Company. Mr.

Wen has extensive experience in printing management,

Mr. LI Wei Da

Mr. Li, aged 59, is the vice chairman of SIC Management {Shanghai) Ltd. and 2 director of Shanghai Industrial Investment
(Holdings) Co. Ltd. He is the chairman of Chia Tai Qingchunbao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. and chairman of the supervisory
committee of Shanghal Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd. He graduated from Shanghai Second Polytechnical
University with a degree in auto control and was the deputy general manager of Shanghai Bearing Limited. Mr. Li has
over 30 years experience of industrial enterprise management.

Mr. WANG Zheng Gang

Mr. Wang, aged 56, is a directer and general manger of SIC Management (Shanghai) Ltd. and chairman of Shanghai
Huizhong Automotive Manufacturing Co. Ltd, Shanghai Wanzhang Automotive Components Co. Ltd, vice chairman of
Zhejiang Jinhua Yongjin Expressway Co. Ltd. and Shanghai SIIC Transportation Electric Co. Ltd. and a director of Shanghai
Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghal Section) Co. Ltd. He graduated from the Schoal of Managernent of Fudan University with
a master's degree In economics. He was the head of Shanghal Dongfeng Rubber No. 2 Factory, Principal of Shanghai
Dongfeng Farm, vice chairman and general manager of Shanghal Agricultural Industrial and Commerical Corp. Ltd.
and a director and general manager of SIC Africa Enterprise Ltd. and general manager of the enterprise management
department of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings} Co. Ltd. Mr. Wang has over 30 years' experience of enterprise

management.
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Mr. JIANG Ben Fu

Mr. Jiang, aged 61, is a director and general manager of Shanghai Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section) Co. Lid. and &
director of Zhejiang Jinhua Yongjin Expressway Co. Ltd. and SIIC Management (Shanghai} Ltd. He graduated from Jiangxi
Finance and Economy Institution majored in accountancy, and he is designated an accountant. He was the deputy
general manager of CNTIC Nan Fang I&E Co. and has over 30 years' experience in finance and enterprise management.

Mr. CHEN Shu Zi
Mr. Chen, aged 59, is the vice chairman and general manager of Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co. Ltd. He graduated from
Fudan University with a master's degree in economics management. He was a director and deputy general manager of

Shanghai Rubber Tyre (Group) Ltd. He has extensive working experience in enterprise management.

Mr. JIN Guo Ming

Mr. Jin, aged 47, is a director and general manager of The Wing Fat Printing Co. Ltd. He is the chairman of Hebei Yongxin
Paper Co. Ltd., vice chairman and general manager of Zhejiang Rongfeng Paper Co. Ltd. and a director of Xuchang
Yongchang Printing Co. Ltd. and Chengdu Wing Fat Frinting Co. Ltd. He graduated fram Zhgjiang Institute of Metallurgy
Economic. He helds the designation of international business profession. Mr. Jin has over 20 years of experience in the
printing industry,

Mr. SUN Wei Guo

Mr. Sun, aged 55, is a director and deputy general manager of Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical (nvestment Co. Ltd. He
is the general manager of Changzhou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd, and chairman of Chifeng Arker Pharmaceutical Technology
Co. Ltd. and S United Changcheng Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd, He graduated from East China Normal University with a
master's degree, and holds the designation of economist. He was the deputy chief of Shanghal Dongfeng Farm and
general manager of Shanghai Agriculture, Industry & Commerce Group Xiangming Corporation. He has several decades’

experience in enterprise management.

Mr. WANG Zhen

Mr. Wang, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd. He is a
director and general manager of Shanghai Medical Instruments Co. Ltd, a director of Guangdong Techpoo! Biochem
Pharma Co. Ltd, Changzhou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. and Shenzhen Kangtai Biological Products Co. Ltd. He graduated
from Macao University of Science and Technology with a master's degree in business administration. He was the deputy
director of Shanghai No. 3 Traditional Chinese Medicines Factory and worked for Shanghai Medicinal Material Export
Co. Lid. as manager, for Shanghai Medical Materials Patent Medicine Co. as deputy general manager, for Shanghai
Lei’s Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. as chairman, and for Shanghai Pharmaceutical (Group} Co. Ltd. as head of the marketing
department and operaticn & managerment department. He has extensive experience in the pharmaceutical business.
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Mr. FENG Gen 5heng

Mr. Feng, aged 72, is the vice chairman and chief executive of Chia Tai Gingchunbao Pharmaceutical Co. Lid, chairman
of Hangzhou Hugingyutang Drugstore Co. Lid. and vice chairman of Hangzhou Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
He is also the chairman of China (Hangzhou) Qingchunbao Group Co. Ltd. He is designated a senior econamist and is
a certified pharmacist. He was the first ever recipient of the country’s Excellent Entrepreneur of the State award. He has
been a director of Hangzhou No. 2 Chinese Herbal Medicine Factory since 1972, and has over 50 years of experience in
the pharmaceutical industry and in enterprise management,

Mr. FENG He

Mr. Feng, aged 49, is a director and general manager of Hangzhou Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. and a director
of Hangzhou Hugingyutang Drugstore Co, Ltd. He is designated an economist and had served as head of the supply and
marketing section of Hangzhou Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical Factory, manager and head of forelgn trade section of
Hainan Qingyu Industrial Co. and deputy general manager of sales and executive deputy general manager of Hangzhou
Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical Factory Co. Ltd. He has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

Mr. QIANG Shi Fa

Mr. Qiang, aged 40, is a director and general manager of Xiamen Traditional Chinese Medicine Co. Ltd. He graduated from
Xiamen University where he majored in chemistry and obtained a master's degree in science. He is a certified pharmacist,
and holds the designation of senior engineer. Mr. Qiang joined Xiamen Traditicnal Chinese Medicine Factory in 1990.
He was the general manager ¢f Xiarnen Ding ind. Corp. and factory directer of Xiamen Traditional Chinese Medicine

Factory. He has extensive experience in enterprise management in the pharmaceutical industry.

Mr. ZHENG Ji Yu

Mr. Zheng, aged 44, is the vice chairman and general manager of Liaoning Herbapex Pharmaceutical (Group) Co. Ltd. He
graduated from LEcole Nationale Supérieure des mines de Nancy with a master’s degree. He is designated an economist.
Mr. Zheng was recognized as an Excellent Entrepreneur of Liaoning Province, one of the Top Ten Young Entrepreneurs
of Liaoning Province end a representative of Liagning Province for the Tenth National Peopla’s Congress. Before he tock
up his current position in 1999, he was the Office Director of the Real Estate Management Office of Huanren County,
Liaoning Province and the Chief of Guaimozi Town of Huanren County. He has over 20 years of experience in local
government administration and enterprise management.

Mr. HU Fang

Mr. Hu, aged 57, is a director and president of Shanghai Sunway Biotech Co. Ltd. He graduated form Shanghai Second
Medical University with a doctorate degree, and later conducted a postdoctorate study at the University of California, San
Franciscc. He was the chairman of Hangzhou Jiu Yuan Gene Engineering Co, president of Zhongshi Internaticnal Biotic
Medical Group and head of Beijing Saiyin Biological Technology Research Institute. He has over 20 years’ experience in

biogenetic study.
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Mr. QIAN Yi

Mr. Qian, aged 54, is the vice chairman and executive president of Shanghai Sunway Biotech Co. Lid. He graduated
from Fudan University with a bachelor's degree in enterprise management and cbtained 2 master’s degree in business
administration from East China Normal University, He holds the designation of senior ecenomist, He served as deputy
head of Shanghai Boiler Works Ltd., deputy chief economist of Shanghai Electric (Group) Corp. and head of Shanghai
Meavy Machinery Plant. He has extensive experience in enterprise management.

Mr. FU He Liang

Mr. Fu, aged 46, is the vice chairman and president of Guangdong Techpool Biochem Pharma Co. Ltd. He is employed
as a part-time professor in the department of biclogy at Peking University and also serves as a consuliant 1o the Expert
Group on Biotechnology for Guangzhou Municipal Government, executive council member of China Biochemical
Pharmaceutical Industry Association, executive member of the Guangdeng Pharmaceutical Association and & member of
the Guangdong Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He worked for Jinhua Bioscience
United Co. as general manager. Mr. Fu graduated from Nanjing University wiih a doctorate degree in biochemistry. He is

designated a senior pharmaceustical engineer.

Mr. WANG 5u Nan

Mr. Wang, aged 56, is the general manager of Sl United Changcheng Pharmaceutical Co. Lid,, chairman of Chifeng Mysun
Pharma. Co. Ltd. and vice chairman of Chifeng Arker Pharmaceutical Technology Co. Lid. Mr, Wang was the director of
Yakeshi Medicine Factory in tnner Mongolia, director of Yakeshi Animal Medicine Factory, deputy general manager of
Changzhou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. and a director of Changzhou Pharmaceutical Factory. He furthered his professicnal
studies and acquired a post-secondary qualification in pharmacy at the Shenyang Pharmacy Institute. He is designated
a senior engineer, pharmacist and economist, and has over 30 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry and in

enterprise management.

Ms. YU Xiao Li

Ms. Yu, aged 44, is a director and general Manager of Chifeng Arker Pharmaceutical Technology Co. Ltd. She was the
deputy section head of the technology division and deputy director of the Medicine Research Institute of Chifeng
Pharmaceutical Factory. She graduated with a bachelor’s degree from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University and is
designated a senior engineer. She has about 20 years experience in pharmaceutical research and development and in

enterprise management.

Mr. LI Zhan Wen

Mr. Li, aged 44, is a director and general manager of Chifeng Mysun Pharma. Co. Lid, and chairman of Chifeng Leimeng
Medicine Distributing Co. Ltd. and Chifeng Leimeng Pharmacy Chain Co. Ltd. He was the operation director of Chifeng
Pharmaceutical Factory, and deputy general manager of Chifeng Pharmaceutical (Group) Co. Ltd. He has over 20 years of

experience in enterprise management.
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Ms. WANG Jia Feng

Ms. Wang, aged 55, is the chairman of Bright Dairy and Food Co. Ltd. She is the vice president of IDF China, deputy
director of the China Dairy Association, deputy director of China Industrial Association and chairman of Shanghai Dairy
Association. She was a director of Industrial & Foreign Economical Division SAICG and chairman and general manager of
Shanghai Dairy (Group) Ce. Ltd. Ms. Wang graduated frem Central TV University with a degree in engineering enterprise
management. She furthered her study at East China Normal University and obtained a master’s degree in international
economics, and subsequently obtained a EMBA master’s degree fram China Europe International Business School. She
holds the designation of senior economist and has received the Excellent Entrepreneur of the State award. She has over

30 years’ experience in enterprise management.

Mr. ZHANG Hong

Mr. Zhang, aged 41, is a director and general manager of Shanghai Huizhong Automotive Manufacturing Co. Ltd. and
Shanghai Wanzhong Automotive Compenents Co. Ltd. He graduated from Nanchang Institute of Aeronautical Technology
with a bachelor's deg-ee in material engineering and welding. He served as deputy head of the technical section of
Shanghai Autemabile Chassis Plant and general manager of Shanghal Automotive Brake Systems Co. Ltd. He has over 10

years of experience in the automotive components industry.

Mr. LI Hong Bo

M. Li, aged 45, is a director and general manager of Xuchang Yongchang Printing Co. Ltd. ("Xuchang Yongchang™. He
was the head of the packaging department of Xuchang Cigarettes Factory and deputy general manager of Xuchang
Yongchong. He graduated from Henan Radio & Television University and obtained a post-secondary qualification. He
holds the designation of senicr economist. He has over 20 years' experience in preduction, operation and management of
the tobacco industry.

Mr. JJANG Zu Ming

Mr. Jiang, aged 44, is a director and general manzager of Chengdu Wingfat Printing Co. Ltd. and Dujiangyan Jiuxing
Printing Co. Ltd. He was the general manager of Chengdu Jiuxing Printing and Packaging Co. Lid. He graduated from
Shanghai Publishing and Printing College, majored in printing technologies and obtained a post-secondary qualification.
He then furthered his studies at Sichuan University and obtained a master’s degree in business administration. He has

over 20 years experience in production, operation and management of printing enterprises.

Mr. WU San Luo

Mr. Wu, aged 54, is the general manager of Hebei Yongxin Paper Co. Ltd. He was the general manager of Jiangxi Paper
Industry Co. Ltd. He graduated with a kachelor's degree from Jiangxi Nermal University and is designated a senior
engineer. He is also the director of the Association of Enterprise Management of the China Chamber of Light industries
and executive director of the Jiangxi Province Association of Quality Management. He has over 30 years' experience in

preduction, cperation and management of pulp and paper manufacturing enterprises,
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The Direciors have pleasure in preseniing their annual report and the audited consolidated financial staterents of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred 1o as "the Group”) for the year ended 3ist December 2006.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in infrastructure facilities, medicine, consumer products and information technology

businesses.

Principal Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Details of the principal subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates at 31st December 2006 are set out in notes
52, 53 and 54 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st Dacember 2006 are set out in the consolidated income statement,

An interim dividend of HK22 cents per share amounting to HK$213,071,000 was paid to the Shareholders during the year.
The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK30 cents per share to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 30th May 2007.

Financial Summary

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2006 and the financial
infarmation of the Group for the previous four years is set out on page 146 of this annual report.

Share Capital

Changes in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 39 to the consolidated financial staterments.

Investment Properties

As at 31st December 2006, the investment properties of the Group were revalued by an independent propenty veluer
based on comparable sales transactions at HKS8G.6 million. Details are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Cai Lai Xing {Chairman)

Cai Yu Tian {(Vice Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Qu Ding (Vice Chairman & Executive Deputy CFO)
Lu Ming Fang

Ding Zhong De

Qian Shi Zheng  (Deputy CFO)
Yao Fang

Tang Jun

independent Non-Executive Directors
Lo Ka Shui

Woo Chia-Wel

Leung Pak To, Francis
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Directors {Continued)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 42 to 45 of this annual report. Details of Directors'
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accardance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors of the Company (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming
Fang, Mr. Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

None of the Directors being propesed for re-election at the foerthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests

As at 31st December 2006, the interests and short positions of the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), as recorded in the register reguirad 1o be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise natified ta the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant o the Model Code, were as follows:

{I) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(a) Ordinary shares

Number of Percentage

Nature of issued of issued

Name of Director Capacity interests shares held share capital
Cai Lai Xing Beneficial owner Personal 4,000,000 041%
Qu Ding Beneficial awner Personal 1,250,000 0.13%
Lu Ming Fang Beneficial owner Personal 4,200,000 0.43%
Ding Zhong De Beneficial owner Personal 200,600 0.02%
Qian Shi Zheng Beneficial owner Fersanal 200,000 0.02%
Yao Fang Beneficial owner Personal 200,000 0.02%

All interests stated above represented long positions.
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Directors’ Interests (Continued)
() Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

(b}  Share options

Exercise Number Percentage
Date of price per of share of issued
Name of Director Capacity grant share  options held share capital
HKS
Cat Lai Xing Beneficial owner 2.9.2005 14.89 800,000 0.08%
Cai Yu Tian Beneficial owner 2.5.2006 17.10 1,300,000 0.13% ;
Gu Ding Beneficial owner 29.2005 1489 560,000 0.06% }
Lu Ming Fang Beneficial owner 2.9.2005 14.89 480,000 0.05%
Ding Zhong De Beneficial owner 25.2006 17.10 1,000,000 0.10%
Qian Shi Zheng Beneficial owner 2.9.2005 14.89 300,000 0.03%
Tang Jun Beneficial owner 292005 14.89 300,000 C.03%
(I interests in shares of S| Pharmaceutical
Number Percentage
Nature of issued of issued
Name of Director Capacity of interests shares held share capital
Lu Ming Fang Beneficial owner Personal 23,400 0.01%
Cing Zhong De Beneficial owner Personal 23,400 001%

All interests stated above represented long pasitions.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor Chief Executive of the Company had any other interests or short

positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFC} as at 31st December 2006,




et e T W s At A g

Bl Shanghaiindustrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006

Directors’ Report

Share Options

Particulars of the share option schemes adopted by the Group are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.
During the year, the movements in the share options to subscribe for the Comnpany's shares were as follows:

Number of shares issuable under the share options
Exercise  Qutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Qutstanding
price at during during during at
Date of grant per share 1.1.2006 the year the year theyear  31.12.2006

HKS

Category 1: Directors
Cai Lai Xing 29.2005 14.89 800000 - - - 800,000
Cai Yu Tian 25.2006 17.10 - 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000
Qu Ding 29.2005 14.89 560,000 - - - 560,000
Lu Ming Fang 29.2005 14.89 480,000 - - - 480,000
Ding Zhong De 25.2(006 1710 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Qian Shi Zheng 29.2005 14.89 300000 - - - 300,000
Tang Jun 29.2005 1489 300,000 - - - 300,000
Total for Directors 2440000 2,300,000 - - 4,740,000
Category 2: Employees

10.9.2002 1.7 7,385,000 - {885,000) (6,500,000) -

29.2005 14.89 4,560,000 - (86,000) (383,000) 4091000

252006 1710 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500000
Total for employees 11,945,000 1,500,000 (971,000) (6,883,000) 5,591,000
Category 3: Others

292005 1439 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000

253006 1710 - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Total for others 3,000,000 1,200,000 - - 4,200,000

Total for all categories 17,385,000 5,000,000 (971,000}  (6,883,000) 14,531,000
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Share Options (Continued)

Share options granted in September 2002 (*First Lot Share Options”) under the Company's share option scheme are
exercisable in three batches within a period of three and a half years commencing from six manths after the respective
dates of acceptance of the share options. The exercisabie period of the First Lot Share Options was expired in September
2006.

Share options granted in September 2005 ("Second Lot Share Options™) under the Company’s share option scheme are
exescisable during the period from 2nd March 2006 to 1st March 2009 in three batches,

Share options granted in May 2006 ("Third Lot Share Options™} under the Company’s share option scheme are exercisable
during the period from 2nd November 2006 to 1st November 2009 in three batches.

During the year, the weighted average closing price of the Company's shares immediately befare the dates on which the
share optians under the Company's share option scheme were exercised was HK$16.16.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 2nd May 2006, being the date of grant of the Third Lot
Share Cptions, was HES16.70.

Directors’ Right: to Acquire Shares and Debentures of the Company

Save as disclosed under the section of *Share Qptions” above, at no time during the year was the Coampany or any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any other arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
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Directors’ Report

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons

As at 31st December 20086, the interests and short positions of the substantial Shareholders of the Company and other
persons, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Number of issued Percentage
Nature ordinary shares of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity of interests beneficially held share capital
(a) Long Positions
SiC Interests held Corporate 548,076,000 56.59%
by controlled (note (i)}
corporations
Templeton Asset Management Investment Corporate 58,123,253 5.00%
Limited manager
{b)  Short Positions
SIC Interests held Corporate 87,653,993 9.05%
by controlled (note {iM)

corperations

Notes:

(i SIC through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely SIH, SIIC Capital and SIC CM Development held 468,066,000,
80,000,000 and 10,000 ordinary shares of the Company respectively, and is accordingly deemed to be interested in the
respective shares held by the aforesaid companies.

(i) SIC was taken to have short positions in respect of 87,653,993 underlying shares of the Company under certain listed
equity derivatives pursuant to the Zero Coupon Guaranteed Exchangeable Bonds issued by STC due March 2009
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by SIC and exchangeable into erdinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kepi under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December 2006.




Annual Report 2006 Shanghai Industnal Hoidings Limited [ISSS] {

Directors’ Report

Connected Transactions

Details of the discloseable connected transactions for the year are set out in note 49{) to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed therein, there were no other transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accorcance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,

The Independent Non-Executive Directars have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out in note 49() o
the consolidated financial statements and in their opinion, these transactions were entered into by the Group:

{iy  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

{il  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable o the Group than terms available to or from
independent th rd parties; and

(i} in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such iransactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole,

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note 49()l) to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests In Contracts of Significance
No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and its holding company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable 1o the Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales and purchases, respectively.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, seld or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling HK$10,000.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Details of the Group's retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 48 to the consolicdated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Rased on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

Corporate Governance

The corporate governance principals and practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 27 io 41 of this annual report.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the arnual general meeting of the Company o re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cai Lai Xing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th April 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
RE)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANGHAI INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
LERMBEREFR A

{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited ihe consolidated financial statements of Shanghai Industrial Heldings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group’} set out on pages 63 to 145, which comprise the consoclidated and
Company balance sheets as at 31st December 2006, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Cenified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, This responsibility inchudes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting pelicies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumsiances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report
our apinion solely 1o you, as a body, in accordance with section 14t of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability 1o any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as 1o whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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iIndependent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internat conirol relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31st December 2006 and the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies QOrginance.

L e S L e
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2Cth April 2007




_ 1 Annual Report 2006 Shanghai industrial Holdings Limited gH]

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 33st [December 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
Turnover 6 6,851,023 6,025,285
Cost of sales (4,307,078) (3,719,705)
Gross profit 2,543,945 2,305,580
Investment income 7 726,676 389,460
Other income 310,815 162,361
Distribution costs (873,253) (830,374}
Administrative experises (792,179) (716,676)
Other expenses {1,900) (9,648}
Finance costs 8 (104,555) {82,024}
Share of resulis of jointly controlled entities 21,152 2,839
Share of results of associates 157,215 102,532
Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries,
assaciates and jointly controlled entities 23,842 180,661
Dilution loss on share reform of a subsidiary 10 (214,955} -
Loss on share reform of an associate (27,739) -
Impairment losses recognised in respect of goodwill
relating to subsidiaries and interests in an associate
and a jointly contiolled entity (32,352) (26,185}
Discount on acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries - 2324
Impairment loss on assets classified as held for sale 34 - {31,247)
Profit before taxation 1,736,712 1,449,603
Income tax expenses H (236,442) (194,042}
Profit for the year 12 1,500,270 1,255,561
Attributable to
- Equity holders of the Company 1,257,778 1,027,940
- Minority interests 242,492 227621
1,500,270 1,255,561
Cividends 14 426,058 529,805
Earnings per share 15
- Basic HK$1.30 HKS$1.07
- Diluted HKS$1.29 HK$1.06
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31st December 2006
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2006 2005
Notes HK$'000 HK5'000
Non-Current Assets
Investment properties 16 80,570 51,830
Property, plant and equipment 17 2,671,797 2,404,338
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion 18 251,016 2257238
Toll road operating right 19 1,778,596 1,776,798
Other intangible assets 20 89,659 95,077
Goodwill 21 421,825 397,987
Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 2,444,993 2,390,508
Interests in associates 24 3,793,820 3,868,057
Available-for-sale investrments 25 197,109 321,054
Loan receivables — nen-current portion 26 3,689 4,277
Deposits paid on acquisition of property, plant and equipment 27 664,945 26,326
Deposit paid on acquisition of a subsidiary 28 - 68,269
Derivative financial instruments 29 - 6,421
Deferred tax assets 41 28,762 25876
12,426,851 11,662,056
Current Assets
Inventories 30 1,216,612 1,215,725
Trade and other receivables 3 1,513,127 1,539,861
Prepaid lease payments - current portion 18 7,035 8,129
Loan receivables - current portion 26 - 62,757
Financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss 32 1,660,111 1,070,042
Pledged bank deposits 33 28,560 28,000
Short-term bank deposits 33 674,845 275,804
Bank balances and cash 33 6,102,154 5,764,596
11,202,444 9,964,914
Assets classified as held for sale 34 28,833 345,185
11,231,277 10,310,099
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 35 1,535,920 1,297,662
Taxation payable 102,464 65,236
Short-term bank and other borrowings 36 614,741 1,320,175
2,253,125 2,683,073
Net Current Assets 8,978,152 7627026
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 21,405,003 19,289,082
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 31st December 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
Capital and Reserves

Share capital 37 96,850 96,753
Reserves 17,408,531 16,279,139
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 17,505,381 16,375,892
Minority interests 2,225,614 1,832,137
Total Equity _ 19,730,995 18,208,029

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term bank and other borrowings 36 1,561,962 973,574
Deferred tax liabilities 41 112,046 107,479
1,674,008 1,081,053
21,405,003 19,289,082

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 145 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 20th April 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

K : i)(xvé&——
Cai Yu Tian Qian Shi Zheng
Chief Executive Officer Deputy CEC
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Balance Sheet

At 315t December 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$000 HK5'000
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 5,388 6,134
Investment in subsidiaries 22 1,023,154 1,023,154
investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 - 141,673
Derivative financial instruments 29 - 6,421
1,028,542 1177382
Current Assets
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 13,299 13,345
Armounts due from subsidiaries 40 12,391,032 13,271,642
Short-term bank deposits 33 453,688 171,823
Bank balances and cash 33 2,864,133 1,940,841
15,722,152 15,397,651
Current Liabilities
Other payables and accrued charges 41,059 38,873
Amounts due to subsidiaries 40 632,762 387,734
Short-term bank borrowings 36 - 800,000
673,821 1,226,607
Net Current Assets 15,048,331 14,171,044
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 16,076,873 15348426
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 37 96,850 96,753
Reserves 39 15,980,023 14,451,673
16,076,873 14,548,426
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term bank borrowings 35 - 800,000
16,076,873 15,348,426

; xv@li__
Cai Yu Tian Qian Shi Zheng
Chief Executive Officer Deputy CEO




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st Cecember 2006

Attributable to equity hokders of the Company
Share Capital (ther PRC
Share Share  options redemption revaluation  Hedging Revaluation Translation  statutory Accumutated Minerity
cpital  premium reserye resenve reserve Teserye reserve reserve  resenves profits Total  interests Total
HES000  HES00  HKSDOD  HKSO00  HHSO0D  HESDOD  HIGDOD HISO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOD  HESO0D  HKSOOO
[notei) [oie i)

AL 15t Janvary 3005 95864 10032631 2800 i - 13328 - 15655 3507 5063069 15613736 14366 1709002
ain on cash flow hedges - - - - - 9749 . - - - 949 - 9749
Exchange dererce ansing from bansiatcn

of Fnancia! sratements - - - - - - - 76042 - - 7694 2118 100128
Share of exchiange J ference ansng from

trangaton of Finannl satements

of jincy cacialed ergiues - - - - - - - #4177 - - uin - 4177
Shere of exchange d ererce ansing from

translaon of Enancial saternents

of assoates - - - - - - - pakic) - - 034 - 033
Far vaue adustonens on acquiseoon of subsiciaries - - - - 8144 - - - - - 8144 5N 8716
Net income recogrised directly in equly - - - - 8144 474 - 141483 - - 159,346 2158 183104
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 0Es 10740 21 1,255,561
Realised on disposal of interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Reafised on disposal of imerest in jointy

continded entities - - - - - - - {3576} 500} - {376 - {#376)
Rea'ied on disposal of interest in an associate - - - - - - - 28 - - J£.3] - 1)
Teual recogresed sncome and expense for the year - - - - §144 9149 - 137862 (00 102790 11828% B3 1434274
Exercise of share opbons ;) - - - - - - - - - 59 - 5
Prarrum anisrg on rsse of shates - 103,271 - - - - - - - - 10320 - 10320
Tressacton costs atwrbutable to isswe of

new shares - 121) - - - - - - - - nm - {121
Recogr:zon of equity-settied share-based

[aymen; EXpenses - - 500 - - - - - - - 507 ANl 638
Transfers - - - - - - - - 58826 (6852€) - - -
Ceprtal contributions by minority shareholder:

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - B39 8159
Dividends paid to minonty sharehalders of

subsiciaries - - - - - - - - - - - (110gM {N0M)
Acquisivon on additonal interests in subsdiar es - - - - - - - - - - - (75,100) {7,100
Actpered on acgessetion of subschanes - - - - - - - - - - - 29706 0706
Partat cisposal of verest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 1885 185
Disposal of 2 subscary - - - - - - - - - - - Q315 2313
Drvidends paid {noce 14) - - - - - - - - - 5B 63509 - BN

Ar 215z December 2005 %753 1013578 13 127 814 640 - 173517 5300 SASLTE 1637691 \E3W 1EME0M
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2006

Attributable ta equity holders of the Company

Shars Capital Other PRC
Share Share  options medemption revaliation  Hedging Revaluation Transhation  statutory Accumulated Minority
capital  premium nesere reserve reserve reserve resenve resene  reserves prafins Total  interests Total
HE0 RSO0 HIG000  HIGO00  HG0E  HGDDD  HGO000  HC000 O HESO0 HRSOO0  HKSU0  HGON K000
Iated foe D)

At 15t Jaruary 2006 %753 10135781 i 10N 8,144 2] - s 453100 54938 16375EW 1B 1BXE0M
Lass on cash flow hedges - - - - - 6421 - - - - [LER)] - (6421}
Exchange diference anisng from translation

of financial statemerts - - - - - - - 156992 - - 155992 63863 130855
Share of exchange difference arising fom

vandation of financial statements

of jointly comioTed endities - - - - - - - 92317 - - n2317 - a7
$hare of exchange dfference ansing from

translation of Frandial siatements

of associanes - - - - - - - £7 - - 8207 - #$47
Far vafue adiusiment on avaabeforsale

ivesmenis - - - - - - 4002 - - - 4002 - 4002
Net income recogrised directly in equity - - - - - 16421 400 19452 - - 9210 63563 15070
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - ERR WY B LY N 22492 1500270
fiealised on dition of interest on share

eform of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 317 B39 3319 3178 - 3778
flealsed on disposal of interest in subsigiares - - - - - - - 6]} - - an - Bl
Reased on disposal of miprest 1 an associate - - - - - - - {13,193) #3934 43931 (13195 - 13199
Duon of inverest on share reform of a scbsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 214431 4481
Tod recogrised ncome and expense ko the year - - - - - 16421} 4902 s W56 130508 5328 SNEE w30
Exercise of share options 97 - - - - - - - - - o - 9
Premium arising on issue of shares - 11547 - - - - - - - - 1547 - 1347
Release of share options reserve on exercise

of share options - 7 72 - - - - - - - - - -
Reversal upon canceflation of share pption - - (321) - - - - - - 32 - - -
Transaction costs aliihutable 10 Bsue of new shares - 9 - - - - - - - - [re)} - "
Racogron of equity-sened share-based

PYTER] Spenses - - 7 - - - - - - - K7 3 11078
Transfers - - - - - - - - 713064 {73064) - - -
Capiaal corssibeizions by mngely shareholders

of subsidaries - - - - - - - - - - - 5% 2509
Capital refunds to minoxity shareholders of a

subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - 11,50 .59
Diidends paid to mincrity shareholders

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 137322 137823
hcquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - {703 4703
hequived on acquisiion of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 19584 19584
Disposal of subsidaries - - - - - - - - - - - {313) 1313)
Partia] disposal of sierest i a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 4607 4507
Dividends paid frove 14) - - - - - - - - - B0 D8 - BBy
AL 3id Decerrher 2006 %550 10047375 18481 1041 8,144 - 4002 451019 418914 £X0508 1750538 L5614 19730995
Notes;

(i} Other revaluation reserve represents fair value adjustment on acquisition of subsidiaries relating 1. interests previcusly held by the Group
as associates.

(il  The People’s Republic of China, other than Hong Kong (the “PRC”) statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevani PRC laws
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, jointly controlled eniities and associates.




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st Decernber 2006

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'G00
Profit before taxation 1,736,712 1,449,603
Adjustments for:
Dividend income from listed equity investments {3,514) {5,231)
Dividend incorme from unlisted equity investments (38,546) (31,371)
Income from invesiments in other projects (3.861) {3,215
Interest income ' (266,562) (156,115)
Interest expense 104,555 82,024
Rental income (6,229) (3,343}
Amortisation of toll road operating right 67,335 41,850
Amortisation of other intangible assets 13,861 6,978
Depreciation and anortisation of property, plant and equipment 234,786 211,538
Release of prepaid ease payments 6,873 5,500
{Gain) loss on dispasal of property. plant and equipment (386) 8,783
Gain on transfer of prepaid lease payments (533)
Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments 1,900 9,648
Increase in fair valuze of investment properties (24,861) (7.133)
Impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts 53,292 24,424
Research and development costs expensed 49,273 64,711
Gain on disposal of avallable-for-sale investrments {268,074) -
Share of results of jointly controlied entities (21,152) {(2.839)
Share of results of zssociates {157,215} (102,532)
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 11,078 6,138
Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities {23,842) (180,661)
Dilution loss on shzre reform of a subsidiary 214,955 -
Loss on share reforn of an associate 27,739
Impairment losses 1ecognised in respect of goodwill relating
to subsidiaries and interests in an associate and a jointly controlled entity 32,352 26,185
Discount on acquis tion of additional interests in subsidiaries - (2,324)
Impairment loss on assets classified as held for sale - 31,247
Operating cash flows hefore movements in working capital 1,739,936 1,473,965
Decrease {increase) in inventories 60,180 (197,012
(Increase} decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (589,481) 13,994
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables {1,647) 3,110
Increase {decrease) in trade and other payables 217,933 (362,361
Cash generated from operations 1,426,921 931,696
PRC income tax paid (123,722) (122,583)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (77,988) (100,721)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 17,772

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,225,211 726,164
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Consolidated Cash Fiow Statement

For the year ended 31st Decermber 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in deposits paid on acquisition of
property, plant and equipment {638,619} (505}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {458,894) (350,112)
{Increase) decrease in bank deposits {399,601} 320,088
Capital contributions 1o jointly controlled entities (62,517) (503,307}
Purchase of available-for-sale investments {60,331) (52,046)
Research and development costs paid (49,273) 64,711)
Increase in prepaid lease payments (28,313) (1,569)
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries {9,187) (83,368)
Capital contributions 1o an associate (2,437) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments 457,369 36,509
Proceeds from disposal of interests in associates 355,312 199,601
Interest received 266,562 155,924
Dividends received from associates 100,364 160,846
Net proceeds from share reform of an associate 83,584 -
Dividends received from jointly controlied entities 70,136 286,812
Repayment of loan receivables 63,345 -
Capital refunds from a jointly controlled entity 53,869 -
Dividends received from unlisted equity investments 38,546 31,371
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 16,726 1,782
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 12,893 4,836
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) 42 11,038 43,896
Disposal of subsidiaries {(net of cash and cash equivalents disposed of) 43 9,149 4,122
Rental income received 6,229 3,343
Proceeds from partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary 4,607 5,686
Government grants received 3,879 2,587
Income received from investments in other projects 3,861 3,215
Dividends received from listed equity investments 3,514 5,231
Proceeds from transfer of prepaid lease payments 1,067 -
Proceeds from disposal of interests in jointly controlled entities - 222628
Decrease in placement of deposits with
financial institutions - 188,962
Repayment from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary - 4,255
Loans advanced to a jointly controlled entity and
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary - (68,350)
Deposit paid on acquisition of a subsidiary - (68,269)
Patents paid - (2,975)

NET CASH {(USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (147,122} 486,482
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st Dacember 2006

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank and ather borrowings (2,066,230) {640,022)
Dividends paid {426,058) (529,805)
Dividends paid to mirority shareholders of subsidiaries (137,822) {110,994)
Interest paic on bank and other borrowings (105,479) {82,024)
Capital refunds to mirority shareholders of a subsidiary (11,250) -
Expenses incurred in connection with the issue of shares (25) (zn
Borrowings raised 1,919,277 524817
Proceeds from issue of shares 11,644 104,160
Capital contsibutions by minority shareholders of subsidiaries 2,509 84,159
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTMITIES (813,434) (650,030)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 264,655 562,616
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 72,903 16,287
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,764,596 5185693
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR,

represented by bark balances and cash 6,102,154 5,764,596
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2006

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the *Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate halding company is Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Heldings; Company Limited, also incorporated in Hong Kong. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the section of “Corporate Information” to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 52.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Heng Kong Financial Reporting
Standards {"HKFRS(s)"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS(S)") and interpretaticns (hereinafter collectively
referred to as "new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") which
are either effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st December 2005 or 1st January 2006. The
adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting years has been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required,

The Group has not early applied the following new standards, amendment or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective, The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these standards,
amendment or interpretations will have no material impact on the results or the financial position of the Group
except for HK(IFRIO)-INT 12 "Service Concession Arrangements” in which the Group has commenced considering the
potential impact but not yet in a position to determine whether it would have a significant impact on the results or
the financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 {Amendment) Capital Disclosures'

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’

HK(FRIC)-INT 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies’

HKUFRICHINT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(FRIC)-INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives®

HK(FRIC)-INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment®

HK{IFRIC)-INT 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions’

HK(FRIC)-INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements’

" Effective for annuaf periods beginning on or after 1st January 2007.

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2008

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March 2006.

* Effective for annual periods beginning cn or after 1st May 2006.

* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2006.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning cn or after 1st November 2006.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 15t March 2007,

8 Effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1st January 2008.




Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and finandial instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA, In addition, the financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
50 as to obtain benefits from its activities,

The resulis of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presenied separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business comb nation and the minerity’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and
equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities anc
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable asssts, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised imrmediately in profit or loss.

The interast of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair
value of the assets, liahilities and contingent liahilities recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly contralied entity for which the agreement
date is before 1st January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the
date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1st January 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1st January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly contralted entity for which the agreement
date is on or after 1st January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabifities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, associate or jeintly
controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated balance
sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled entity {(which is accounted
for using the equity method) is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate or jointly controlled
entity.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goedwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce ihe carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for geodwill is recognised directly n the consolidated income statement. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of
goodwilt capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Additional interests in subsidiaries are measured at the aggregate of the carrying amounts of identified assets and
liabilities of the subsidiaries and any excess of the consideration over the net assets acquired are accounted for as
goodwill. Any excess of the net assets acquired over the consideration is recognised immediately in profit or foss.

For goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled entity, the goodwill included in the
carrying amount of interests in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is not separately tested for impairment.
Instead, the entire carrying amount of the interests in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is tested for
impairment by comparing the Group's share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected 1o be
generated by the associate or jointly controlled entity with its carrying amount. Any impairment foss identified is
recognised and is allocated first to goodwill,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Interest in jointly controlled entities
Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which venturers have joint conirol
over ihe economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are cawied in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that joinily
controlled entity, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated o the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that unrealised
fosses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is
recognised.

The Company's interest in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified impairment loss.
The results of jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Interest in associates
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture,

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the eguity method of accounting. Under the equity methad, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusied for posi-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the asscciates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the exteni that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated 1o the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered

principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met anly

when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present |
condition.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ or disposal
groups' previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Toll fee income from the operation of tall road, net of business tax payable in the PRC, is recognised at the time of
usage and when the toll fee is received.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount,

Income from those investments available-for-sale where the Group is contracted 1o receive a pre-determined
minimum sum aver the period of the investment is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment in these investments.

Renial income, including rental invoiced in advance from letting of properties and plant and machinery under
operating leases, is recognised on a straight line basis over the period of the respective leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including any direcily attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the peried in which
they arise,

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amouni of the asset)
is included in the consolidated income staterment in the year in which the asset is derecagnised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accurnulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of these assets commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method.

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising an derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments
Prepaid lease payments, which represents up-front payments to acquire leasehold land interest, are stated at cost
and amortised cver the period of the lease on a straight line basis.

Leasing
Leases are classitied as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a straight line basis
over the term o the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an cperating iease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognised i1 equity in the consolidated financial staternents. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss far the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of preseniing the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated inte the preseniation currency of the Company (ie. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the daies of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1st January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable o the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment incorne earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary 10 match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets are presented as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and are released to income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense items are recognised in the
same period as those expenses are charged in the consolidated income statement and are deducted in reporting
the related expense.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retiremeni benefits schemes are charged as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them 1o the contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefits
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Group's obligations under the
schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the correspending tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet fiability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary diffecences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilisad. Such assets and liakilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset t¢ be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is alse dealt with in equity.

Intangible assets

On initial recogniticn, intangible assets acquired separately and from business combinations are recognised at cost
and at fair value respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amertisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement wnen the
asset is derecognised.

Toll road operating right

Toll road operating right is stated at cost less amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amaortisation
is provided to write off the cost of toll road operating right on 2 units-of-usage basis, calculated based on the
propertion of actual traffic volume for a particular period to the projected total traffic volume over the periods for
which the Group is granted the rights t¢ operate the toll road.

Patents

Patents with definite useful lives are measured inftially at cost and are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabitities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognitior:.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments {Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or lass, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two subcategories, including financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition if it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurernent” permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to
be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or less are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financia! assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan receivables, ptedged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaited, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an eveni occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet
date subsequert to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of cr is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumu ative gain or loss previcusly recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit
ar loss. Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
available-for-sale equity investments will not reverse in profit or loss in subsequent periods.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whase
fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or less when there
is objective evicdlence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current mar<et rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial fiabilitizs and equity instruments issued Dy a group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residuat interest in the assets of the group after deducting all
of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of the Group's financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out beiow,

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities inchuding trade and other payables and bank and other borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments {primarily interest rate swaps) 0 hedge its exposure against interest
rate risks. Such clerivatives are measured at fair value regardless of whether they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in equity and recycled into the consolidated
income statement when the hedged items affects profit or loss, The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
orofit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Hedge accounting is discantinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or
loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to eccur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was deferred in equity Is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the {inancial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the cbligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to employees of the Group after 7th November 2002 and had not vested on 1st April
2005, the fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in the share
options reserve in equity.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss over the
rernaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to share opticns reserve in equity.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated 1o be less than its carrying amount, the carrying armount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assei is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that standard.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Critical judgment in applying the Group’s accounting policies

Consolidation of a subsidiary

During the year, the Groups equity interest in Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co, Ltd. (formerly
known as Shanghai Industrial United Holdings Co., Ltd) ("SI Pharmaceutical ), a subsidiary of the Cempany, was
diluted from 56.63% to 43.62% upon the completion of a share reform.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group still retains control over SI Pharmaceutical
subsequent to “he share reform plan as the remaining 56.38% shareholding of Sl Pharmaceutical is dispersed and
it is highly unlikely for the other shareholders to organise their interests to exercise control over the board of S
Pharmaceutical. Hence, the diractors of the Company consider control aver Sl Pharmaceutical still exists through
the right to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors of SI Pharmaceutical.
Accordingly, Sl Pharmaceutical continues to be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company and the results of Sl
Pharmaceutical were consolidated in the consolidated financial staterments,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions cancerning the future. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill amounting to HK$421,825,000 as at 31st December 2006 is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
caiculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable cliscount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Details of impairment test are set out in note 21.

Amortisation of toll road operating right

Toll road operating right amounting to HK$1,778,596,000 as at 31st December 2006 is amortised on a units-of-usage
basis, calculatec based on the proportion of actual traffic volume for a particular period to the projected totat traffic
volume over the operating period of the toll road. If the actual traffic volume differs from the original projection,
such difference will impact the amortisation for the remaining pericd to be amortised.

5. Financial Instruments

{(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity and debt investments, borrowings, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, loan receivables and bank balances and cash. Details of these financial
instrumerts are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the polici=s on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Hong Kong and the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly
arises from fluctuations in the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi exchange rates.
Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always been the concern of the Group. As Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi are both under managed floating systems, after reviewing the Group's
exposure for the time being, the Group did not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at minimising
exchange rate risks during the year. However, management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise,

Interest rate risk

To complement the repayment of the original syndication loan of HK$1,60C million, the Group
terminated its related interest rate hedging arrangement during the year To exercise prudent
rmanagement against interest rate risk, the Group will continue tc review the market trend, as well as its
business aperation neads and its financial position, in arder to identify the maest effective interest rate
kedging means for the HK$3 billion syndication loan raised in the fourth quarter of the year.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through available-for-sale investments and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Management manages this exposure by maintaining & portfolio of
investrnents with different risk profiles.

Credit risk

As at 31st December 2006, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure t¢ discharge an abligation by the counterparties or debtors which the Group has
provided financial guarantees is arising from:

the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet; and

the ameunt disclosed in note 46 Contingent Liabilities.

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, equity and debt investments, and trade and
ioan receivables.
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5. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risl (Continued)

The Grouds credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
consolidated balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An gllowance for impairment is
made where there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction
in the recoverability of the cash flows.

With respact to the credit risk of the Group's treasury operations, management has established internal
procedures to monitor the Group's bank balances and cash, securities investments to be placed and entered
into with financial institutions of good reputation. These internal procedures alse impose limitation on the
amount outstanding and to manage the credit ratings on equity Investments to be held, so as to minimise
the Group's credit risk exposure.

The Group's credit risk on bank balances and bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation,

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread cver a number of
counterparties and customers,

(b} Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to
quored market bid prices;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis or using prices from chservable current market transactions; and

the fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve.

The directers of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial staterments approximate their fair values.
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6. Turnover

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts received and receivable from third parties and is summarised

as follows:
2006 2005
HK5'000 HKS'000
Sales of goods 6,574,604 5,843,707
Incorme from infrastructure facilities 276,419 181,578
6,851,023 6,025,285
7. Investment Income
2006 2005
HK$'Q00 HKS$'000
Interest on bank deposits 239,918 135,620
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 268,074 -
Dividend income from unlisted equity investments 38,546 31,371
Net increase in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 139,890 190,185
Interest on debt securities 24,292 15,678
Other interest income 2,352 4817
Dividend income from listed equity investments 3,514 5231
Rental income from property, plant and eguipment 6,229 3,343
Income from invesiments in availabte-for-sale investments 3,861 3,215
726,676 389,460
8. Finance Costs
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Interest on:
Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable
- within five years 105,318 81,916
- over five years 161 108
Total borrowing costs 105,479 82,024
Less: amounts capitalised in construction in progress (924) -

104,555 82,024
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9. Net Gain on Disposal of Interests in Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
Controlled Entities

2006 2005
HK$000 HKS'000
Gain on disposal of interast in associates 26,823 126,541
Gain (loss) on disposal of interest in subsidiaries 3,468 (5,500)
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate 583 12,506
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity (7,.032) - .
Gain on disposal of interest in jeintly controlled entities - 43,259
Gain on partial cisposal of interest in a subsidiary - 3,861
23,842 180,661

10. Dilution Loss on Share Reform of a Subsidiary

During the year, the share reform plan for conversion of all non-floating shares of SI Pharmaceutical into floating
shares of S| Pharmaceutical was completed. Under the share reform plan, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company would offer all holders of floating shares of SI Pharmaceutical three non-floating shares for every ten
floating shares held by each of such holders, in exchange for the consent by the holders of floating shares of Sl
Pharmaceutical to the conversion of all non-floating shares into floating shares of Sl Pharmaceutical. Following
the conversion of all non-floating shares of Sl Pharmaceutical into floating shares of SI Pharmaceutical, the Group's
equity interest in Sl Pharmaceutical was diluted from 56.63% to 43.62%. A {oss on share reform of HK$214,955,000
was recognised during the year.

11. Income Tax Expenses

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'C00
Current tax

- Hong Kong 86,106 75,952
- Other regions in the PRC 149,696 111,313
235,802 187,265

Under{over)provision in prior years
- Hong Keng 1,291 (15,75%)
- Other regions in the PRC (971) -
320 (15,759)
Deferred taxation {note 41) 320 22,536

236,442 194,042
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11. Income Tax Expenses (Continued)

Hong Keng Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year,

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Groups PRC subsidiaries are entitled to certain
exemption and reliefs from PRC income tax for a nurmber of years. Certain PRC subsidiaries are also entitled to
reduced tax rates because they are classified as *high technology entities” under the relevant rules. The current
year's PRC income tax charges are arrived at afier taking into account these various tax incentives, ranging from
7.5% to 33%.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the income statement as

follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS000
Profit before taxation 1,736,712 1,449,603
Tax at PRC Statutory Tax rate of 33% (2005: 33%) 573,115 478,369
Tax effect of share of results of jointly contrelled entities and associates (58,861) (34,772)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 99,793 37372
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (166,482} (105,087)
Under(over)provision in respect of prior years 320 (15,759)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 650 5251
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (9,362) {(19,267)
Effect of tax exemption and tax reliefs granted to PRC subsidiaries (62,472) (74,088)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions {140,648) (76,322}
Others 389 (1,645)

Income tax expenses far the year 236,442 164,042
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12. Profit for the Year

angna INncustral Moings Limited

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$000
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging {crediting):
Employee benefits expense for the year, including direciors’ emoluments:
Basic salaries end allowances 500,810 421,390
Bonuses 73,840 68014
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 8,200 4965
Retirement benefits scheme centributions, net of forfeited
contributions of HK$678,000 (2005: HK$359,000) 31,848 36,604
614,698 530973
Amortisation of toll road eperating right (included in cost of sales) 67,335 41,950
Amortisation of other intangible assets {included in administrative expenses) 13,861 6,978
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment 234,786 211,538
Release of prepa d lease payments to income statement 6,873 5,500
Total depreciation and amortisation 322,855 265,966
Auditors' rernuneration 8,050 7327
Equity-settled share-based payment expense in respect of
options granted to other eligible participants 2,878 1173
Impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts 53,292 24,424
Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments
(included in other expenses} 1,900 9,648
Increase in fair value of investment properties {24,861) (7,133)
{Gain} loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (386) 8,783
Gain on transfer of prepaid lease payments (533) -
Operating lease rentals in respect of equipment and motor vehicles 521 189
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings to
- ultimate holding company 7,640 7,279
- fellow subsidiaries 17,521 17,507
- others 18,078 23,967
Research and development costs 49,273 64,711
Share of PRC income tax of jointly controlled entities
(included in share of results of jointly controlled entities) {1,542) 7,568
Share of PRC income tax of associates (included in share of results of associates) 10,823 45,549
Net foreign exchange gains (39,368) {19,509)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 4,209,506 3,651,223
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13. Directors’ Emoluments and Employees’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2005: thirteen} directars were as follows:

Ding Leung

Cai Gi luMing  Zhong Qian Shi Yao lo  Woo PakTo,
LaiXing YuTan QuDing  Fang De Zheng  Fang TangJun KaShui ChiaWei Francis 2006
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSTOO  HKSO00  HKS00D  KKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS00O  HKS000  HKSD00  HKSYDOO

Directors'fees and committes remuneration

of independent non-executive directors - - - - - - - - 34 9 B; 888
Other emolumens of executive directors;

Directors'fee and commiitee remuneration - - 50 Pl - - 00 X0 - - - 550
Basic salaries and allowancas 1 VL) B - 181 1588 90 - - - - 124
Bonuses W0 190 180 - w8 - - - - ST
Equity-setiled share-based pyment expense. 359 1661 Bi ns o1 134 - 134 - - - 403
Retirement benefiis scheme coniributions 266 193 193 - 157 1% - - - - - w1
Total directors emokuments 5728 6,005 4545 415 4066 155 % E1 ) 4 92 8 BT

bing Leung

G G lubing Zhong QanShi  Yao Lu lo Woo Pakip

laiXing YuTin Quding  Fang D¢ Zheng  Fang Tanglun DaYong LuShen KaShui ChiaWei Framcis 2005
HKSO00 HKS000 HKSTOO HKSD00 HKSD0D HESODC HKSOOD HKSOOD HKSDOO HKS000 HKSD00 HKSO0D HKSOOD HKS000

Directors' fees and committes
remuneration of independent
non-executive directors - - - - - - - - - - n i ! 816
Oiher emoluments of executive
diregiors,
Basic salaries, allowances and
commitiee remuneration EAY) - M5t 139 Ly il 214 P, W) 408 - - - N6
Bonuses 2913 - BB 245 - - - - - - - - - 89
Equity-settled share-Dased
payment expense 33 - 18 - 17 - " - - - - - 04
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 345 - Bm - - - - 135 - - - - 98
Total direciors' emoluments 1142 - 585 5085 49 7 N4 oo 408 m m M 16

In the two years ended 31st December 2006, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during the two years.

Bonus were determined with reference to the Group's operating results, individual performances and comparable
market statistics.
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13. Directors’ Emoluments and Employees’ Emoluments (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

During the yea, the five highest paid individuals included 5 directors (2005: 4 directors) and details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual for the year ended 31st
December 2005 were as follows:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Basic salaries and allowances - 951
Bonuses - 485
Equity-settled share-based payment expense - 94
Retirement benefits scheme centributicns - 95
- 1,625
|
14. Dividends

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Ordinary shares:
Interim — HK22 cents (2005: HK20 cents) per share 213,071 193,458
Final — HK22 cents (2004: HK35 cents) per share 212,987 336,347
426,058 529,805

A final dividend of HK30 cents per share has been proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in annual general meeting,
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15. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Earnings:
Profits for the purposes of basic earnings per share (profit for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company) 1,257,778 1,027,940
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
- adjustment to the share of results of a jointly controlled entity
based on potential dilution of its earnings per share (3.261) (2,240)
Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 1,254,517 1,025,700
2006 2005
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per share 968,164,208 963,971,274
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares 1,625,102 2,925,399
- share options
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
969,789,310 966,896,673

for the purposes of diluted earnings per share
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THE GROUP
HK$'000
FAIR VALUE
AL 1st January 2005 45,672
Exchange adjustments 807
Disposals (1,782)
Net increase in fair value recognised in the income statement 7,133
At 31st December 2005 51,830
Exchange adjustiments 2,748
Transfer from praperty, plant and equipment (note 17) 17,857
Disposals {16,726)
Net increase in fair value recognised in the income statement 24,861
At 315t December 2006 80,570

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured us.ng the fair value model and are dassified and accounted for as investment properties.

The Gioup's investment properties are situated in the PRC and are hefd under medium-term land use rights.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st December 2006 was arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Messrs. Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Messrs. Debenham Tie Leung Limited are members of the Institute of
Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at by reference to

comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

The property rertal income earned by the Group from its investment properties, alf of which are leased out under
operating leases, amounted to HK$6,229,000 (2005: HK$2,327,000) with negligible direct operating expenses,
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold Furniture,
land and fixtures and Motor Plant and Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

THE GROUP
CosT
At 1st fanuary 2005 492979 maz 89,044 1,681,971 180,007 2,755,178
Exchange adjustments 4,966 1,799 1,556 18,000 3,496 29817
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 124,150 45682 9,560 182,269 76,881 397,542
Additions 32513 41,432 16,256 103,484 156,427 350,112
Transfers/reclassifications 144951 5,203 3,505 108,139 (261,798) -
Transfer 1o assets classified as

held for sale (12,394) - - - - (12,394}
Attributable to disposal of subsidiaries (16444) {219) (73) (5,848) - {22,584)
Disposals (725) (12457) (10,928) {20,760) - (44,870
Government grants received - - - (2,587 - (2,587}
At 31st December 2005 765,996 351,617 108820 2,064,668 155,013 3450214
Exchange adjustments 20,954 4,438 4085 45,184 6,575 81,286
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary - 215 412 21,391 - 208
Additions 16,849 13,567 16,293 64,729 348,380 456,818
Transfers/reclassifications 56,720 5,600 £86 214,129 (277,135) -
Transfer to investment properties {note 16) {18,602} - - - - {18,602)
Attributable to disposal of subsidiaries - (1,154) 240) (5,255) - (6,649)
Disposals (1.515) 6321} (11,847) (35,283) (8.575) {63,541)
Government grants received - - - (3,879 - (3,879
At 31st December 2006 844402 368,012 118,308 2,365,684 224258 3,920,665
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
At 1st January 2005 91,824 143,761 40,375 586,784 - 862,744
Exchange adjustments 1,242 850 760 4793 - 7645
Provided for the year 23819 44 270 16,957 126492 - 211,538
Transfer to assets classified as

held for sale (479) - - - - {479
Artributable o disposal of subsidiaries (3,318 (123) (38 (842) - (4,321}
Eliminated on disposals (575) (9.656) (5,220) (11,800) - (31,251)
At 31st December 2005 112,513 179,102 48,834 . 105427 - 1045876
Exchange adjustments 3875 2325 2,108 13,665 - 21973
Provided for the year 31,346 35672 18,495 ; 149,273 - 234,785
Transfer to investment properties (note 16) (745) - - - - {745)
Attributable 1o disposal of subsidiaries - (387) (2i6} {1,385) - (1,988)
Eliminated on disposals (263) {5,839) (9,654} {35.278) - (51,034)
At 31st December 2006 146,726 210873 59567 831,702 - 1,248,868
CARRYING VALUES
At 315t December 2006 697676 157,139 58,742 1,533,982 224,258 261,79/

At 315t December 2005 657483 172,515 60,086 1,359,241 155,013 2,404,338
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
At 31st December 2006, certain owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings amounted to HK$1,015,000 (2005:
HK$1,039,000) is included in property, plant and equipment, as in the opinion of the directors, allocations between

the land and buildings elements could not be made reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a siraight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings the shorter of 4%-5% or over the period of the lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33'/,% or over the period of the lease in case of fixtures in rented premises
Motor vehicles 20%-30%

Plant and machinery 5%-20%

At 31st December 2006, leasehold land and buildings included certain assets carried at cost of HK$9,361,000 (2005:
HK$9,361,000) in aggregate with accumulated depreciation of HK$3,130,000 (2005: +K$2,831,000) in respect of
assets rented out under operating leases. Depreciation charged in respect of those assets in the year amounted to
HK$273,000 (2005: HK$273,000).

At 31st Decerrber 2005, plant and machinery included certain assets carried at cost of HK$20,629,000 in
aggregate with accumulated depreciation of HK$15,751,000 in respect of assets rented out under operating leases.
Depreciation charged in respect of those assets in the year amounted to HK$171,600 (2005: HK$ 1,374,000} for the
year.

The cost of certain plant and machinery, before deduction .of government subsidy of HK$25,938,000 (2005:
HK$22,059,000) is HK$78,117,000 (2005 HK$74,238,000).

At 31st December 2006, construction in progress included net interest capitalised of HK$924,000 (2005: nil).
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY
COST
At 1st January 2005 2,803 25,106 8,162 36,071
Additions - 423 2417 2,840
Disposals - (130) (1,724) (1,854)
At 31st December 2005 2,803 25,399 8,855 37,057
Additions - 1,165 - 1,165
Disposals - {2,585) - (2,585)
At 31st December 2006 2,803 23979 8,855 35,637
DEPRECIATION
At 1st January 2005 373 23,406 6,830 30,609
Provided for the year 112 1,200 856 2,168
Eliminated on disposals - {130) {(1,724) (1,854}
At 31st December 2005 485 24476 5,962 30,823
Provided for the year 112 590 1,209 1811
Eliminated on disposals - (2,585) - (2,585)
At 31st December 2006 597 22481 7171 30,249
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December 2006 2,206 1,498 1,684 5,388

At 31st December 2005 2318 923 2,803 6,134
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
The carrying valJues of property
interests comprises:
Properties erected on land held under
~ medium-term leases in Macau 1,083 1,131 - -
- medium-term leases in Hong Kong 277,963 286,613 - -
- medium-term land use rights
in the PRC 418,630 369,739 2,206 2318
697,676 657,483 2,206 2318
18. Prepaid Lease Payments
THE GRCUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprises:
— shert-term land use rights in the PRC - 349
- medium-term leases in Hong Kong 45,186 46,273
- medium-term land use rights in the PRC 212,865 186,745
258,051 233,367
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current portion 7,035 8,129
Non-current portion 251,016 225,238

258,051 233,367
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19. Toll Road Operating Right

THE GROUP
HK$000

COST
At 1st January 2005 1,826,277
Exchange adjustments 35,197
At 31st Decemnber 2005 1,861,474
Exchange adjustments 74,459
At 31st December 2006 1,935,933
AMORTISATION
At Tst January 2005 41,626
Exchange adjustments 1,100
Charge for the year 41,950
At 31st December 2005 84,676
Exchange adjustments 5326
Charge for the year 67,335
At 31st Decemnber 2006 157,337
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December 2006 1,778,596
At 315t December 2005 1,776,798

The amount represents the right o receive toll fees from vehicles using the Shanghai section of the Shanghai-
Nanjing Expressway and ta operate service facilities in designated areas along the Shanghai section for a period of
25 years.

The Group'’s right to operate the 1oll road is amortised on a units-of-usage basis, calculated based on the proportion
of actual traffic volume for a particular period to the projected total traffic volume over the period for which the
Group is granted the rights to operate the toll road which is 25 years.
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20. Other Intangible Assets

Premium on
prepaid lease

Patents payments Total
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THE GROUP
COST
At 1st January 2005 39,206 - 39,206
Exchange adjustments 753 - 753
Arising on acquisiticn of subsidiaries - 59,121 59121
Additions 2975 - 2975
At 31st Decembker 2005 42534 59121 102,055
Exchange adjustments 1,717 2,365 4,082
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 4,640 - 4,640
At 31st December 2006 45,291 61,486 110,777
AMORTISATION
AU 15t January 2005 - - -
Charge for the year 4956 2,022 6,578
At 31st Decemnber 2005 4,956 2,022 6,978
Exchange adjustments 198 81 279
Charge for the year 12,401 1,460 13,861
At 31st December 2006 17,555 3,563 21,118
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December 2006 31,736 57923 89,659
At 315t December 2005 37978 57099 95,077

Patents are held to produce pharmaceutical products far a period ranging from 5 to 10 years and are amortised on
a straight line basis over usefut lives ranging from 5 ta 10 years.

Premium on prepaid lease payments represents the premium on acquisition of prepaid lease payments which is to
be amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease payments.
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21. Goodwill

THE GROUP
HKS'000

COST
At 1st January 2005 349,365
Exchange adjustments 1479
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 37274
Arising on acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries 6,592
Transfer from goodwill of associates 57,159
Transfer to interests in jointly controlled entities {(1,759)
Transfer to interests in associates (43,560)
Eliminated on disposal of interest in a subsidiary {2,003)
At 31st December 2005 404,547
Exchange adjustments 5521
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 22,569
Eliminated on dilution of interest on share reform of a subsidiary {4,252)
At 31st December 2006 428,385
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January 2005 3,161
Impairment loss recognised for the year 5,402
Eliminated on disposal of interest in a subsidiary (2,003)
At 31st December 2005 and 31st December 2006 6,560
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December 2006 421,825
At 31st December 2005 397,887

Goodwill acquired in business combinations was allocated, at acquisition, to the individual cash-generating units
(*CGUs") that are expected to benefit from that business combination, The carrying amount of goodwill was
allocated as follows:

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sale and manufacture of Chinese medicine and health food 291,814 293,921
Sale and manufacture of biomedicine 130,011 104,066

421,825 397,987
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23.

Goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes 1o selling
prices and direct casts during the year. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes n the market.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management
for the coming year and extrapolates cash flows for the following four years with a steady growth rate of 5%.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is commercial borrowing rate.

Investment In Subsidiaries

THE COMPANY
2006 2005
HK$’000 HKS'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 1,023,154 1,023,154

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2006 are set out in note 52

Interests/Investment in Jointly Controlled Entities

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Cost of unlisted investments in

jointly contrclled entities 1,981,859 1,673,211 112,921 166,790

Share of posi-acquisition profits and
reserves, net of dividends received 585,729 509,879 - -
2,567,588 2,483,090 112,921 166,790
Less: Impairment loss recognised {122,595) (92,582) {112,921) (25,117

2,444,993 2,390,508 - 141,673
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23. Interests/Investment In Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)

Included in the cost of investment is goodwill of HK$17,146,000 (2005; HK$47,275,000) arising on acquisition of
interests in jointly controlled entities. The movement of goodwill is set out below:

THE GROUP
HK$'000

COsT
At 1st January 2005 85436
Exchange adjustments 544
Arising on acquisition of a jointly controlled entity 28,314
Transfer from goodwill of subsidiaries 1,759
At 31st December 2005 116,053
Exchange adjustments 1,155
Eliminated on deemed disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity {1,271)
At 31st December 2006 135,937
IMPAIRMENT
At Tst January 2005 67,369
Impairment loss recognised for the year 1,409
At 31st December 2005 68,778
Impairment loss recognised for the year 30,013
At 31st December 2006 98,791
CARRYING VALUES
At 315t December 2006 17,146
At 31st December 2005 47,275

During the year, the directors considered that in light of the decrease in operating results of a jointly contralled
entity, with reference to the estimated cash flows from the operations of the jointly controlled entity, full
impairment loss in respect of the goodwill of this jointly controlled entity of HK$30,013,000 was recognised in profit
or loss.
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23. Interests/Investment In Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)

A summary of the combined financial information in respect of the Group's jointly controlled entities which are
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

THE GROUP

2006 2005

HK$'000 HKS'000

Group's share of total assets of jointly controlled entities 5,861,209 5,181,395
Group's share of total liabilities of jointly controlled entities (3,422,971) (2,816,045)
Group's share of net assets of jointly controlled entities 2,438,238 2,365,346
Income 6,661,432 6,738,886
Profit for the year 238,999 61,206
Group's share of results of jointly controlled entities for the year 21,152 2,839

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of certain jointly controlled entities. The amounts of
unrecognised share of losses of the jeintly controlled entities, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Unrecognised share of losses of jointly controlled entities for the year 11,722 1,691
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of jointly controlled entities 13,413 1,691

Details of the Group's principal jointly controlled entities at 31st December 2006 are set out in noie 53.
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24. Interests in Associates

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Cost of investment in associates
- Listed in Hong Kong 1,819,766 1,819,766
— Listed in the PRC 141,506 174,824
- Unlisted 230,664 269,785
Share of post-acquisition profits and reserves, net of dividends received 1,630,747 1,632,475
3,822,683 3,896,850
Less: Impairment loss recognised (28,793} {28,793}
3,793,890 3,868,057
Fair value of listed investments 3,640,093 3,265,874

Included in the cost of investments is geodwill of HK$3,320,000 (2005: HK$3,320,000) arising on acquisition of
interests in associates. The movement of goodwill is set out below:

THE GROUP
HKS$000
COST
At 1st January 2005 72,20
Transfer from goodwill of subsidiaries 43,560
Eliminated on deemed disposal of interest in an associate (74)
Transfer to goodwill of subsidiaries (57,159}
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (35,924
At 31st Decemnber 2005 and 31st December 2006 22,694
IMPAIRMENT
Impairment loss recognised for the year ended 31st December 2005
and balance at 31st December 2005 and 31st December 2006 16,374
CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December 2006 3,320

At 31st December 2005 3320
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24, Interests in Associates (Continued)

A summary of the combined financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Total assets 41,261,076 43,287,778
Total liabilities (13,968,625) (14,693,352)
Net assets 27,292,451 28,594,426
Group's share of et assets of associates 3,799,989 3,874,156
Income 19,822,344 18,020,749
Profit (loss) for the year 106,914 (485,328)
Group’s share of -esults of associates for the year 157,215 102,532
Details of the Group's principal associates at 315t December 2006 are set out in note 54.
25. Available-for-sale Investments
THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Available-for-sale investments comprise:
Listed equity securities:
-in Hong Korg 15,523 11,52}
—in the PRC 6,699 17,957
Unlisted equity securities:
-in Hong Korg 5 5
—in the PRC 174,882 291,571
197,109 321,054
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25.

26.

Available-for-sale Investments (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investrments are stated at fair value, except for those unlisted equity
investments of which their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The above investments in unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet
date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The Group’s unlisted investments at the balance sheet date include HKS$34,159,000 (2005: HKS$34,159,000)
investments in the companies with shareholding of 30% and 26.14% respectively established in the PRC which
are engaged in the manufacture and sale of paper products. Pursuant to various addendums to the joint venture
agreements with the respective PRC joint venture partners, the Group has surrendered its economic interests in
connection with the operation and management of these companies in return for the receipt of contracted annual
payments, At the end of the jeint venture period, the Group is entitled to the distribution of alf the remaining assets
in accordance with their shareholdings in these companies. In the opinion of the directors, these companies are not
regarded as the Group’s associates as the Group cannot exercise significant influence on these companies.

During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying amount of the available-for-sale investments in light of
the current market condition with reference to the estimated discounted future cash flows from the business
operated by the investees. The directors identified an impairment loss of HK$1,900,000 (2005; HK$9,648,000) on the
investrment and the amount has been recognised in profit or loss accordingly.

Loan Receivables

THE GROUP

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK5000
Fixed-rate loan receivables at interest rate of 5.5% per annum 3,689 4444
Variable-rate loan receivables at interest rate of HIBOR+1% per annum - 62,550
3,689 67,034

Analysed for reporting purposes:
Non-current portion (receivable after 12 months) 3,689 4,277
Current portion {receivable within 12 moniths) - 62,757

3,689 67,034
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26. Loan Receivables {Continued)

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate loan receivables to interest rate risks and their contractual maturity dates are

as follows:
THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fixed-rate loan receivables:
Within cne year - 167
In more than three years but not more than four years 3,689 4,277
3,689 4,444
The Group’s lean receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
THE GROUP
2006 2005
HKS$'000 HK$000
Hong Kong dollars 3,689 4,444
United States dollars - 62,590
3,689 67,034

At 31st December 2006, the fixed-rate loan receivable of HK$3,689,000 (2005 HKS$4,444,000) represents the amount
due from a mincrity shareholder of a subsidiary (the "MI shareholder”). It is secured by the Ml shareholder’s equity
interest in the subsidiary and the dividend distribution by the subsidiary.

At 37st December 2005, the variable-rate loan receivable of HK$62,590,000 represented the amount due from AR IR
RAKEIEE TR 28] (General Water of China Co, Ltd) ("General Water of China”), a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, and was secured by General Water of China's 55% equity interest in BPSKIEPIRIS/KEEBAR AT and
45% equity interest in B PR E P ER G KGR 27 and fully settled during the year.

27. Deposits Paid on Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group

The deposits wete paid by the Group in connection with the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for new
production facilities and the widening work of the Shanghai section of the Shanghai-Nanjing Expressway.

28. Deposit Paid on Acquisition of a Subsidiary

The Group
At 31st December 2005, the deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the acquisition of a subsidiary
which was engaged in manufacture of pharmaceutical raw materials.




IE8IeY Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2006

29.

30.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative under hedge accounting

THE GROUP

AND
THE COMPANY
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000

Cash flow hedge - Interest rate swaps:
Neon-current asset

Cash flow hedge:

- 6421

At 31st December 2005, the Group used intersst rate swaps to minimise its exposure to changes in cash flow of
interest payments of its floating-rate Hong Keng dollars bank borrowings by swapping HX$800 million long-term
portion syndicated loan, which due at 10th April 2007, from floating rate of HIBOR plus 0.45% to the predetermined

rates. The interest rate swaps was terminated during the year.

Inventories
THE GROUP

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials 643,605 649,608
Work in progress 130,161 112,557
Finished goods 319,371 330,465
Merchandise held for resale 123,475 123,095

1,216,612 1,215,725
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31. Trade and Qther Receivables

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'G00 HKS$'000
Trade receivables 982,142 1,003,161
Less: accumulated impairment (86,908) (60,014)
895,234 943,147
Other receivables 617,893 596,714
Total trade and cther receivables 1,513,127 1,536,861

The Group generally allows credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days to its trade customers. An aged analysis
of trade receivatles net of impairment losses, are as follows:

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade receivables:

Within 30 days 377,371 496,563
Within 31 - 60 days 200,436 174,943
Within 61 - 90 days 93,395 78413
Within 91 - 1£0 days 104,554 106,355
Within 181 - 260 days 99,781 57,750
Over 360 days 19,697 29,123
895,234 943,147
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32. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Investments held-for-trading:
Listed equity securities in
- Hong Xong 155,985 147,806
- Others 153,945 98,356
Unlisted investrment funds in equity and debt securities 785,564 229,767
1,095,494 475,929
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss:
- Conwertible notes/bonds 155,430 103,162
- Structured deposits 329,785 467,271
- Equity-linked notes 79,402 23,680
564,617 594,113
1,660,111 1,070,042

At the balance sheet date, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value. The fair
values are determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets or valuation performed by the respective
issuing barks or financial institutions.

Included in financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is structured deposits of HK$329,785,000
(2005: HK$467,271,000} placed with banks. Under the relevant agreements, these structured deposits contain
embedded derivatives in which their returns are determined by reference to the change in exchange rate of certain
foreign currencies and the change in certain interest rates quoted in the market.

33. Pledged Bank Deposits, Short-term Bank Deposits and Bank Balances and Cash

The Group

Pledged bank deposits with maturity of less than three months represenis deposits pledged to banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group and an associate. Deposits amounting to HK$28,560,000 (2005:
HK$28,000,000) have been pledged to secure general banking facilities and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at fixed interest rate of 3.28% (2005: 3.58%) per annum and the short-
term bank deposits with maturity of more than three months carry interest at market rate ranging from 1.8% to
5.57% (2005: 1.9% to 4.34%) per annum, The bank deposits with maturity of less than three manths carry interest
at market rate ranging from 0.72% 1o 5.31% (2005: 0.72% to 4.37%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits wilt be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

The Company

The short-term bank deposits carry interest at market rate ranging from 5.47% to 5.57% (2005: 4.34%) per annum
and the bank deposits with maturity of less than three months carry interest at market rate ranging from 3.72% to
5.31% (2005: 3.85% to 4.37%) per annum.
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34, Assets Classified as Held for Sale

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets classified as held for sale comprise:
Property interests (hoie a) 28,833 27,790
An associate (note b) - 317,395
28,833 345,185

Notes:

(@  In 2005, the Group resolved to dispose of two pieces of land and buildings with aggregate carrying amaounis of HK$28,833,000
(2005: HK$27,790,000) to an outsider within twelve months subsequent to the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts have
been classified as assets held for sale and are presented separately in the balance sheet. The proceeds of disposal will exceed
their net carrying amounts and, accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised. The disposal transaction was completed in
January 20C7.

(b)  In October 2005, the Group entered into a conditional share repurchase agreement with Shanghai Jahwa United Co. Ltd.
{"Shanghai Jahwa?), a 28.159 held associate of the Group, pursuant to which Shanghal jahwa shall repurchase from the Group its
entire interest in Shanghai Jahwa at a consideration of RMB336,680,000 {equivalent to approximately HK$323,731,000). Accordingly,
the Group’s interest in Shanghai Jahwa of HK$348,642,000 (including goodwill asset of HK$35,924,000) had been reclassified as
assets held for sale and was presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet. Since the net realisable value on the share
repurchase would fall below the carrying amounts of the reclassified assets, an impairment loss of HX531,247,000 was recognised
during the vear ended 31st December 2005. The disposal transaction was completed during the year.

35. Trade and Other Payables

Included in tracle and other payables are trade payables of HK5681,779,000 (2005: HK$578,475,000) and their aged
analysis is as foliows:

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK5'000 HK$'000
Trade payables:

Within 30 cays 483,708 356,876
Within 31 - 60 days 78,084 91,492
Within 61 - 90 days 29,017 42,345
Within 91 - 180 days 42,482 37,727
Within 181 - 360 days 17,499 25,738
Over 360 days 30,989 24297
681,779 578475
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36. Bank and Other Borrowings

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Bank loans 2,112,143 2,171,265 - 1,600,000
Other loans 64,560 122,484 - -
2,176,703 2,293,749 - 1,600,000
Analysed as:
Secured 365,963 393,267 - -
Unsecured 1,810,740 1,900,482 - 1,600,000
2,176,703 2,293,749 - 1,600,000
Carrying amount repayable:
On dermand or within one year 614,741 1,320,175 - 800,000
More than one year but not
more than two years 63,071 865,495 - 800,000
More than two years but not
more than five years 1,490,362 100,812 - -
Over five years 8,529 7,267 - -
2,176,703 2,293,749 - 1,600,000
Less: Amounts due within one
year shown under current
liabilities (614,741) {1,320,175) - (800,000

1,561,962 973574 - 800,000




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Cecember 2006

36. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)

The exposure cf the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the contraciual maturity dates {or repricing dates) are as

follows:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

Fixed-rate borrcwings:
Within one year 279,911 420,974
In more than one year but not more than two years 63,071 65,495
In more than two years but not more than three years 7 62,021
in more than three years but not more than four years 171 38626
In more than four years but not more than five years 170 165
In more than five years 8,529 7,267
352,023 594,548

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings
are as follows:

2006 2005

Effective interest rate;
Fixed-rate borrowings 2.4%to 7.9% 2.4% to 9%
Variable-rate borrowings 432%10936%  0.97% 1o 4.65%

Included in the bank borrowings is an amount of HK$1,500 million drawn under a syndicated loan facility of
HK$3,000 million newly obtained by the Group during the year. Transaction costs directly attributable to such
bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$10.5 million and was deducted from the fair value of the bank
borrowing on initial recegnition. At 31st December 2006, the carrying value of such bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$1,490 million.
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37. Share Capital

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
HK$'C00
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
- at 1st January 2005, 31st December 2005
and 31st December 2006 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
- balance at 1st january 2005 958,638,000 95,864
- exercise of share options 8,895,000 889
— halance at 31st December 2005 067,533,000 96,753
- exercise of share options 971,000 97
- balance at 31st December 2006 968,504,000 96,850

38. Share-based Payment Transactions

Desails of the equity-settled share option schemes adopted by members of the Group are as follows:

(a) SIHL Scheme
The Company has, in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, adopted a new share option scheme
(the “SIHL Scheme™), as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 3tst May 2002. The SIHL Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the adoption of the Scheme, after which period no further share options will be granted. The SIHML Scheme is
to provide the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the eligible participants and for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time.

According to the SIHL Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options to any director
or employee of each member of the Group {including a company in which (i) the Company is directly or
indirectly interested in less than 20% of the issued share capital or equity interest or voting rights of such
company but is the largest shareholder or the heolder of the largest voting rights of such company; or (i) in
the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company is able to exercise significant influence to such company);
and any executive or employee of any business consultant, professional and other advisers in each member
of the Group who have rendered service or will render service to the Group, to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HKS1 for each lot of share options granted. Share options granted should be
accepted within 30 days from the date of grant.

The Board of Directors may at its absolute discretion determine and notified by the Board of Directors to each
grantee the period during which a share option may be exercised, such period should expire not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the share opticns. Subject to the provisions of the SIHL Scheme, the Board of
Directors may at its discretion when offering the grant of a share option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto as it may think fit.
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38. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

(a) SIHL Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price for shares in the Company shall be a price solely determined by the Board of Directors
of the Cornpany and netified to an eligible participant, and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price
of the Corpany’s shares on the date of grant; (i} the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immedately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the SIHL
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the SIHL Schema. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the SIHL Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% {or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time, The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant under the SIHL Scheme and any other option schemes (including both exercised,
cancelled and cutstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The number of shares available for issue, save for those granted but yet to be exercised, under the SIHL
Scheme totalled 49,617,000 shares, which represented 5.1% (2005: 5.6%) of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s options under the SIHL Scheme held by the Group's
employees and other eligible participants and movement in such holdings during the year:

Exercise Qutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding

price at during during during at

Month of grant per share 1.1.2006 the year the year theyear 31.12.2006
HKS

September 2002 1.1 7,385,000 - (885,000) (6,500,000} -

September 2005 14.89 10,000,000 - {86,000) (383,000} 9,531,000

May 2006 17.10 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

17,385,000 5,000,000 {971,000) (6,883,000 14,531,000

Exercisable at the end of the year 4,359,300

Exercise  Cutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

price at during during during at

Month of grant per share 1.1.2005 the year the year theyear  31.12.2005
HKS

September 2002 1. 16,280,000 - (8,895,000 - 7,385,000

September 2005 14.89 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000

16,280,000 10,000,000 (8,395,000 - 17,385000

Exercisable at the end of the year 7385000
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38. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued}

(a) SIHL Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options held by the directors included in the above table are as follows:

Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding

price at during during at

Month of grant per share 1.1.2006 the year the year 31.12.2006
HKS

September 2005 14.89 2,440,000 - - 2,440,000

May 2006 17.10 - 2,300,000 - 2,300,000

2,440,000 2,300,000 - 4,740,000

Exercise  Qutstanding Granted Exercised  Qutstanding

price at during during at

Month of grant per share 1.1.2005 the year the year 31.12.2005
HKS

September 2002 11.71 500,000 - (506,000 -

September 2005 14.89 - 2,440,000 - 2,440,000

500,000 2,440,000 (500,000) 2,440,000

The options granted on 10th September 2002 may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the relevant
scheme as to:

309% of the options within three and a half years commencing on 10th March 2003;
2. afurther 30% of the options within two and a half years commencing on 10th March 2004;
3. the remaining 40% of the options within one and a half years commencing on 10th March 2005; and

4. the options will expire at the close of business on 9th September 2006.
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38. Share-based Payment Transactions {Continued)

(a) SIHL Scheme (Continued)
The opiions granted on 2nd September 2005 may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the relevant
scheme as tc:

1. 30% of the options within three years commencing on 2nd March 2006;

2. afurther 30% of the options within two years commencing on 2nd March 2007,

3. the remaining 40% of the options within one year commencing on 2nd March 2008; and
4. the options will expire at the close of business on 1st March 2009,

The optiens granted on 2nd May 2006 (“Third Lot Share Options”) may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the relevant scheme as to:

1. 30% of the options within three years cammencing on 2nd Novermber 2006;

2. & further 30% of the options within two years commencing on 2nd November 2007;

3. the remaining 40% of the options within one year commencing on 2nd November 2008; and
4. 1he options will expire at the close of business on 1st November 2009.

During the year, the weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which the share options
under the SIHL Scheme were exercised was HK516.16.

The closing price immediately before 2nd May 2006, being the date of grant of the Third Lot Share Options,
was HKS$16.70.

Total cons'deration received for shares issued upon exercise of share options under the SIHL Scheme during
the year was approximately HKS 11,644,000 (2005: HK$104,160,000).

The estimated fair value of the opticns granted to the Groups employees and other eligible participants
during the year is approximately HK$ 12,250,000 (2005: HK$S,946,000).
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38. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

(a) SIHL Scheme (Continued)

(b)

The fair value was calculated using The Black-Scholes option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

2006 2005
Weighted average fair value HK$2.45 HK$0.9946
Weighted average share price HK$17.1 HK$14.85
Exercise price HK$17.1 HK$14.89
Expected volatility 22.21% 16.7%
Expected life 2to 3 years 05 to 1.5 years
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note rate 4.22% to 4.41% 333% to 3.62%
Expected dividend yield 2.5% 3.7%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historicat volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

As the services to be performed by other eligible participants are similar to services performed by the
employees of the Group, the fair value of such services is also measured with reference to the fair value of
share options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The Group recognised an expense of approximately HK$10,872,000 for the year ended 31st Decernber 2006
(2005: HKS$3,911,000) in relaticn to the share options granted by the Company, in which approximately
HKS$7,994,000 (2005: HK$2,738,000) was related te options granted to the Group’s employees and shown as
staff costs, and the remaining balance represents share option expense for other eligible participants.

Mergen Biotech Scheme

A subsidiary of the Company, Mergen Biotech Limited {"Mergen Biotech”) adopted a share cption scheme
(the “Mergen Biotech Scheme™ on 28th May 2004 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible
participants te contribute to Mergen Biotech and to enable Mergen Biotech to recruit and attract high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to Mergen Biotech and its subsidiaries (the “Mergen
Group”), and the scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing an the date of its adoption.

Under the Mergen Biotech Scheme, the Board of Directors of Mergen Biotech (the “Mergen Board") can
grant options to eligible participants, including any director, management, employee (whether full-time or
part-time) or business consultant and professional adviser of the Mergen Group, 0 subscribe for shares in
Mergen Biotech for a consideration of HK51 for each lot of share options granted. Options granted have 1o be
accepted within 30 days from the date of grant.
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38, Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

(b} Mergen Biotech Scheme (Continued)
An option may be exercised in acceordance with the terms of the Mergen Biotech Scheme at any time
during a period ta be notified by the Mergen Board to each grantee, such period shall not be more than 10
years from the date upon which the grant of a share option is made to a participant in accordance with the
Mergen Biotech Scheme but subject to the provisions for early termination contained therein. Subject to the
provisions af the Mergen Biotech Scheme, the Mergen Board may at its discretion when offering the grant of
a share option imposed any conditions, restrictions or lirnitations in relation thereto as it may think fit.

The subscription price of the share options shall be determined by the Mergen Board with reference to the
unaudited net asset per share of Mergen Biotech ("Mergen Share”) as at 31st December 2003 and shall not
be less than LUS$8.22 (or its equivalent in HKS) per Mergen Share, The subscription price of options granted
after the Company has contemplated a separate listing of Mergen Bictech on the Main Board or the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange or any overseas stock exchange and up to the date of
listing of the Mergen Shares shall not be lower than the new issue price of the Mergen Shares on listing.
Without prejudice to the foregoing, any options granted during the period commencing 6 months before
the lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on GEM or any overseas exchange} are subject 1o the
above requirement. The subscription price of any options granted during such period shall be adjusted at the
absolute discretion of the Mergen Board to a price not lower than the new issue price of the Mergen Shares
on listing.

The maximum number of Mergen Shares which may be issued upon exercise of ail outstanding options
granted ard yet to be exercised under the Mergen Biotech Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of
Mergen Biotech shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Mergen Shares in issue from time to time. The
Mergen Bcard will have the right to grant o the eligible participants options to subscribe for Mergen Shares,
which when aggregated with any securities to be granted subject to any other share aption schemes of
Mergen Biotech shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Mergen Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Mergen Biotech Scheme. No eligible participants under the Mergen Biotech Scheme
shall be granted an option which, if exercised, would result in the aggregate number of Mergen Shares issued
and 1o be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such participant, in any 12-month
period (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options), would exceed 1% of the Mergen Shares in
issue unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.
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38. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

(b) Mergen Biotech Scheme (Continued)
The following table discloses details of the options under the Mergen Biotech Scheme during the year:

Exercise Outstanding at 1.1.2005,
Month of grant price per share 31.12.2005 and 31.12.2006
December 2004 Usss.22 63,400

The number of shares available far issue, save for those granted but yet 10 be exercised, under the Mergen
Biotech Scheme totalled 14,600 Mergen Shares which represented 1.879% (2005: 1.87%) of the issued share
capital of Mergen Biotech as at the date of this annual report.

The share options can be exercised during the period from 30th June 2005 to 27th May 2014 with details
below, subject to the performance targets as determined by the Mergen Board to be accomplished by the
grantees:

t. 70% of the options within nine years and eleven months commencing on 30th June 2005;

2. afurther 15% of the opticns within nine years and five months commencing on 31st December 2005;

3. the remaining 15% of the options within eight years and eleven months commencing on 30th June
2006; and

4. the options will expire at the close of business on 27th May 2014.
No options was granted or exercised under the Mergen Biotech Scheme for both years,

The Group recognised an expense of approximately HX$206,000 for the year ended 31st December 2006
{2005: HK$2,227,000) in relation to the share options granted by Mergen Biotech.
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39. Reserves

Share Capital
Share options redemption Capital Hedging Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000

THE COMPANY
At 1st January 2005 10032631 - 1,071 1137728 (3.328) 3035407 14,203,509
Gain on cash flow hedges

and net income re-ognised

directly in equity - - - - 9,749 - 9,749
Prefit for the year - - - - - 661,159 661,159
Total recognised income

and expense for the year - - - - 9,749 661,159 670,508
Premiumn arising on isue

of shares 103,27i - - - - - 103,271
Transaction costs attrbutable

to issue of new shares (121) - - - - - {121)
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payment expenses - 39 - - - - 39
Dividends paid (note 14) - - - - - {529,805) (529,805}
At 3tst December 2005 10,135,781 3911 1071 1137728 64 3,166,761 14,451,673
Loss on cash flow hedges

and net expense recognised

directly in equity - - - - (6421) - {6421)
Profit for the year - - - - - 1,938435 1938435
Total recognised income

and expense for the year - - - - {6421} 1938435 1932014
Premium arising on itsue

of shares 11,547 - - - - - 11,547
Release of share opiions reserve

on exercise of sharz options 72 {72) - - - - -
Reversal upon cancellation

of share option - (321) - - - 3 -
Transaction costs attributable

to issue of new shares (25) - - - - - (25)
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payment expenses - 10,872 - - - - 10,872
Dividends paid (note 14) - - - - - (426,058) {426,058)

At 31st December 2006 10,147,375 14,390 1,071 1137728 - 4679459 15980023
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39. Reserves (Continued)

The Company's reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December 2006 represents its
accumulated profits of approximately HK$4,679.5 million (2005: HK$3,166.8 million).

The Company’s capital reserve which arose in 1997 upon reduction of share premium as confirmed by the Order of
the High Court of Hong Kong was net realised profits and is an undistributable reserve.

40. Amounts Due from (to) Subsidiaries
At 315t December 2006, the amaunts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on demand. Except for
an amount of approximately HKS6C million (2005: HKS80 million) which carries interest at HIBOR pius 045% per

annum, the balances are non-interest bearing.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, nen-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

41. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities {assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the current and prior years:

Other Other

Accelerated  Revaluation deferred deferred

tax of Tax tax tax
depreciation  properties losses liabilities assets Total

HKS$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

THE GROUP
At 1st January 2005 101,945 ~ (4,950) 3394 {41,684) 58,705
Exchange adjustments 62 - - 5 235 362
{Credit) charge to income

for the year {note 11) (595) 2126 (2,850) 6,555 17,300 22,536
Al 315t Decernber 2005 101,412 2126 (7,800) 10014 {24,149) 81,603
Exchange adjustments 161 - - 129 {6,388) (6,098)
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary - - - 7459 - 7459
{Credit) charge to income

for the year (note 11) (6,879) 3546 700 2278 675 320

At 31st December 2006 94,694 5672 (7,100) 19,880 (29,362 83,284
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41. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purpases:

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK5$000

Deferred tax liabilities 112,046 107,479
Deferred tax assets (28,762) (25.876)
83,284 81,603

At 31st December 2006, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$46.5 million (2005: HK$76.9 million) available for
offset against future assessable profits. A deferred tax asset amounting to approximately HK$7.1 million (2005:
HK$7.8 million) .n respect of tax losses amounting to approximately HKS406 mitlion (2005: HK$44.6 million) was
recognised, No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of HKS5.9 million
{2005: HK$32.3 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely,

42. Acquisition of a Subsidiary

On 1st January 2006, the Group acquired 69.63% equity interest in &M & 3 &% % 4 R 2 7] (Changzhou Techpool
Pharmaceutical Zo, Ltd} {"Changzhou Techpool”), a company engaged in developing, manufacturing and sale of
raw and finished bio-chemical pharmaceutical, for a consideration of RMB71,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK568,269,000). The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The amount of
goodwill arising as a result of this acquisition was HK$22,569,000.

During the year 2nded 31st December 2005, the Group acquired ceriain subsidiaries, details of which are as follows:

{a) In February 2005, the Group increased its interest in Chengdu Jiuxing Printing and Packing Co,, Lid. (*Chengdu
Jiuxing™ from 30% to 51%. at a consideration of RMB22,480,000 (equivalent to HK$21,208,000). No goodwill or
discount arose on this acquisition.

{b) In September 2005, the Group increased its interest in HebeiYongxin Paper Co, Ltd. from 39% to 66%, at
a consideration of RMB14,070,000 (equivalent to HK$13,529,000). No goodwili or discount arose on this
acquisitior.

{c) In July 2005, the Group increased its interest in i AR e Bi 5 H R 2 8] (Hangzhou Hugingyutang
Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd) {("Huqgingyutang Pharmaceutical”) from 30.006% to 51.007%, at a consideration of
RMB 134,800,000 (equivalent to HK$129,615,000). The amount of goodwill arising as a result of this acquisition
was HK$37,274,000.
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42. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwil! arising, are as follows:

2006
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value
combination  adjustments Fair value 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 17,335 4,683 22,018 397,542
Prepaid lease payments 1,385 - 1,385 62,776
Other intangible assets 598 4,042 4,640 5911
interests in associates 6,655 - 6,655 -
Available-for-sale investments - - - 18,621
inventories 55,325 11,065 66,390 133,838
Trade and other receivables 11,764 - 11,764 272,083
Taxation recoverable - - - 1,529
Bank balances and cash 11,038 - 11,038 208,248
Trade and other payables (27,097) - (27,097) (426,195)
Taxation payable (12) - (12) (2822)
Deferred tax liabilities (928) (6,531) (7.459) -
Bank and other borrowings (24,038) - (24,038) (302,749)
52,025 13,259 65,284 421,992
Minority interests of investees - - - (9,970)
Minority interests (15,553} (4,031} (19,584) {199,736)
36,472 9,228 45,700 212,286
Other revaluation reserve - (8,715)
Goodwill arising on acguisition (note 21} 22,569 37,274
68,269 240,844
Satisfied by:
Deposit paid on acquisition of
a subsidiary in prior year 68,269 -
Cash consideration paid - 164,352
Interests in associates - 54,505
Interest in a jointly controlled entity - 21,987
68,269 240,844
Net cash {outflow) inflow arising
QN acquisition:
Cash consideration paid - (164,352)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 11,038 208,248

11,038 43,856
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42.

43,

Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

The goadwill arising on the acquisition of Changzhou Techpool is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Groug’s products in the new markets and the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination.

The subsidiary acguired contributed approximately HK$72 million (2005: HK$469.7 million) and HKS9 million (2005:
HKS$26.1 million} ~o the Group’s turnover and profit for the year, respectively.

Had the acquisitons for the year ended 31st December 2005 been completed on 1st January 2005, the Group's
turnover and profit for the year would have been increased by approximately HK$1,011.0 million and HK$60.6
million, respectivialy.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year, -he Group disposed of its entire interests in bR FEHRAEHR DA and HETEBSER AN
EHME 2 E]. The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

Curing the year ended 31st December 2005, the Group disposed of its entire interests in Guiyang Jiuxing Printing
Co, Ltd, China Luck Property Limiied ("China Luck”) and Ningxia SlICViopes Nutracentials Co, Ltd. A net loss on
disposal of interest in subsidiaries of HK$5,506,000 was recognised for that year.

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment 4,661 18,263
Prepaid lease payments 1,047 1,493
Inventories 5,323 3,683
Trade and other 1eceivables 2,055 4,791
Taxation recaoverzble - 130
Bank balances and cash 3,033 1,205
Trade and other payables (6,772) (15,466}
Bank and ather borrewings - (962
Taxation payable (287) -
9,060 13,37
Minority interests {(315) (2,315}
8,745 10,822
Translation rasenve realised {31) 1
8,714 10,833
Gain (loss) on disposal of interest in subsidiaries 3,468 {5.506)

Consideration 12,182 5,327
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43.

44

Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

2006 2005
HK$000 HKS'000
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received 12,182 5327
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash received ' 12,182 5327
Bank balances and cash disposed of (3,033) {1,205)
9,149 4,122

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not make any significant contribution to the results and cash flows
of the Group during the period prior to the disposals.

Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Within one year 33,176 29,831 3,281 6,562
In the second to fifth year inclusive 73,917 67,283 - 3,281
After five years 88,960 92,225 - -
196,053 189,339 3,281 9843

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group and the Company for certain office and factory
properties, Leases are negotiated for an average term of 20 years and rentals are fixed for an average term of 1 to 2 years.

included in the above are operating lease commitments for land and buildings of approximately HK$174 million
{2005: HKS165 million) and approximately HKS3.3 million (2005: HK$S.8 million) payable by the Group and the
Company, respectively, to the ultimate holding campany and fellow subsidiaries,
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44, Operating l.eases (Continued)

The Group as lessor
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease

payments:
THE GROUP

Land and buildings
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Within one year 2,323 797
In the second to fifth year inclusive 8,627 106
Over five years 7,000 -
17,950 903

The Company had no significant cperating lease arrangements as lessor at the balance sheet date,

45, Capital Commitments

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements in respect of
— toll road corstruction costs 1,055,813 29,182
- investments in PRC jointly controlled entities 53,072 40,718
- investments in overseas jointly controlled entity 15,132 -
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment 79,796 85,055
- additions in construction in progress 71,245 73938
1,275,058 228,893
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for in respect of
- toll road corstruction costs - 1,747 066
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment - 85,519

1,832,585
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45. Capital Commitments (Continued)

In addition to the above, the Group’s share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled entities are as follows:

THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements in respect of
- toll road construction costs - 27,519
— investrments in PRC jointly controlled entities and associates 31,735 130m
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment 428,299 430,615
- additions in constructicn in progress 3,229 76,763
463,263 547,908
Capital expenditure authorised but not contractad for in respect of
- additions in construction in progress - 116,550
The Company had no significant capital commitment at the balance sheet date.
46. Contingent Liabilities
THE GROUP
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'C00
Guarantees given to banks in respect of banking facilities utilised by
- associates 38,000 18,000
- a supplier 26,800 1,635
64,800 19635

The Company did not have significant contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date.
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47.

48.

Pledge of Assets

At 31st December 2006, the following assets were pledged by the Group to banks in order to secure general
banking facilities granted by these banks to the Group:

{i  plant and machinery with a carrying value of approximately HK$22.9 million {2005: HK$32.0 millicn);

{it  leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of approximately HK$195.5 million (2005: HK$230.1 million);
{i)  motor vehcles with a carrying value of approximately HK$82,000 {2005: HK$0.2 million); ana

{iv) bank deposits of approximately HK30.6 million (2005: nil}.

In addition, at 31st December 2006, certain of the Groups plant and machinery with a carrying value of
HK$180,322,000 2005: HK5158,548,000) were pledged to an independent third party which provided a guarantee to
a bank in respec of a bank loan granted to the Group.

At 31st December 2006, the Group had bank depasits of approximately HK$28.G million {2005 HK$28.0 million)
pledged to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to an associate.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution retirement benefits scherne for
their qualifying employees pursuant to the Occupational Retirernent Schermes Ordinance. To comply with the
Mandatory Provdent Fund Schemes Ordinance (the "MPFO"), a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) was also established. The assets of both schemes are held separately in funds which are under the control
of independent trustees. The retirement benefits schemes contributions charged 1o the consolidated income
staternent represent contributions payable by the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong to the funds at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes. When there are employees who leave the defined contribution retirernent
benefits scheme prior to becoming fully vested in the contributions, the amount of the farfeited centributions will
be used to reduce future contributions payable by the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-rmanaged retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits schemes 1o fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement banefits schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes.

At the balance sheet date, no forfeited contributions were available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.
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49, Connected and Related Party Transactions and Balances

(I} Connected persons
{a) During the year, the Group had significant transactions and balances with related parties, some
of which are also deemed to be connected persons pursuant to the Listing Rufes. The significant
transactions with the connected parties during the year, and significant balances with them at the
balance sheet date, are as follows:

THE GROUP
Connected persons Nature of transaction 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Transactions
Ultimate holding company:
Shanghai Industrial Rentals paid on land and buildings (note (i) 7,640 7279
Investrnent {Holdings)
Company Limited {"SIIC")
Fellow subsidiaries:
Nanyang Enterprises Rentals paid on land and buildings (note (i) 14,520 13,800
Properties Limited
The Tien Chu {(HK) Co. Lid, Rentals paid on land and buildings (note (i) 26 700
Purchase of materials (note (i)} 276 158
Printing services income (note (ji}) 278 287
LEFE(ER)ERELT Rentals paid on land and buildings (note (i) 2,975 3007
(SIIC Shanghai Holdings Co,, Ltd)
Eternal Success Holdings Disposal of interest in a subsidiary and - 4654
Limited {"Eternal’) assignment of loan {note (iii))
Minority sharefioiders of subsidiaries:
PR SERER Sales of finished medicine
AEALT and health products (nate (iv}) 14 13
{China (Hangzhou)
Qingchunbao Group Co. Ltd)
{"China Qingchunbag”)
and its subsidiaries
HEBEAN Sales of cigarette box packaging
materials {note {iv)} 122,694 11349
Kong Hee Enterprises Acguisition of additional interest in
Limited {"Kong Hee") a subsidiary {note {v)) - 11450
Shanghai Pharmaceutical Acquisition of additional interest
(Group) Co, Ltd. ('SPGC) in a subsidiary (note (vi)) - 71,500

Disposal of interest in a jointly
controfled entity {note (vi)) - 146,981
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49. Connected and Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

(I} Connected persons (Continued)
(@) (Continued) '

THE GROUP
Connected persons Nature of transaction 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$"000
Transactions (Continued)
Minority sharehoders of subsidiaries: (Continued)
Guaniyzhou Bopu Bio- Proposed acquisition of interest in
Technology Co., Ltd. a subsidiary (nate {vii)) - 58,269
{"Guangzhou Bopu®) and Purchase of raw materials (note (iv) 26,381 40,706
its subsidiary Additional capital in a subsidiary
{note (vill) 28,890 -
Famerise Group Limited Disposal of interest in a subsidiary 26,000 -
{"Femerise’) {note (ix))
Sichuan Quanxing Co, Ltd, Sales of packaging materials (note (i)} 26,267 28,688
Xinnan (Tianjin) Paper Purchase of raw materials (note (iv}) 94,514 31,028
Co. Lid. Port agency service fees (note (iv)) 5,173 4,237
Chifeng Pharmaceutical Purchase of raw materials (note (iv}) 9,282 765
{Graup) Co, Ltd.
Fellow subsidiary of
a miinority shareholder
of a subsidiary:
BREUMRess Sales of medicine products
s {note (W) 6,664 7,547
Balarices
Minority shareholders of subsidiaries:
China Qingchunbao Balance at 31st December
and its subsidiaries - trade receivables 191 173
- trade payables 713 i
- dividend payable - 9,230
STE TR Balance at 31st December
- trade receivables 15,139 19,217

- bills receivables 9,100 14,615
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49, Connected and Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

)

Connected persons (Continued)
(Continued)

{a)

Notes:

(i

{ii)

(i)

{iv)

v}

(vid

(vii)

{viii)

(ix)

The rentals were charged in accordance with the relevant tenancy agreements and the prevailing rent was
equivalent or approximate to the cpen market rentals as certified by an independent firm of professional property
valuers when the tenancy agreements were entered into.

The terms of these transactions were determined and agreed by both parties.

On 6th December 2005, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Eternal to dispose of its
entire interest in China Luck and the loan of HK$4,216,000 to China Luck at a consideration of HK$4,654,000.

These transactions were carried out at market prices of, where no market price was available, at cost plus a
percentage of profit mark-up.

On 17th January 2005, SIKC MedTech Health Products Limited (“SIIC Health Products”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which SIIC Health Products acquired a further 5%
interest in Xiamen TCM from Kong Hee at & consideration of HK$11,450,000. Details of this acquisition were included
in a published announcement of the Company on the same date.

On 21st April 2005, SI Pharmaceutical entered into an acquisition agreement with SPGC to acquired an additional
40% interest in Shanghai Medical Instruments Co, Ltd. at a consideration of RMB?75800,000 (approximately
HK$71,508,000).

On the same date, S. I. Pharmaceutical Holdings Ltd, 2 subsidiary of the Company, entered into a disposal
agreement with SPGC to dispose of its entire 48% interest in Shanghai Sunve Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. to SPGC at a
consideration of RMB155,800,000 (approximately HKS 146,981,000}

Details of this acquisition and disposal were Included in a circular issued by the Company dated 13th May 2005.

On 20th QOctober 2005, Guangzhou Techpool International Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Techpool International”), a
subsidiary to be established by the Group, entered inte an acquisition agreement to acquire an approximately
69.63% interest in Changzhou Techpool from Guangzhou Bopu at a consideration of RMB71,000,000 (approximately
HK$68,269,000). Details of this acquisition were included in a published anncuncement of the Company on the
same date.

Cn 28th December 2006, S| Pharmaceutical agreed to contribute additional capital of RMB30,068,600 {approximately
HK$30,069,600) to Guangdong Techpool Biochem Pharma Co. Ltd. ("Guangdeng Techpool”) by subscribing for
13668000 new shares in Guangdong Techpool at RMB2.2 per share. Guangzhou Bopu also agreed to contribute
additional capital of RMB28,890,400 {approximately HK$28,890,400) to Guangdong Techpool by subscribing for
13,132,000 new shares in Guangdong Techpool at RMB2.2 per share. Details of these transactions were included in a
published announcement of the Company on the same date.

On 28th December 2006, Techpeol International entered into a transfer agreement ta transfer its 69.63% interest in
Changzhou Techpool to Guandeng Techpoot at a consideration of RMB71,000,000 (approximately HK$71,000,000).

On the same date, Famerise agreed to transfer its 25.82% interest in Changzhou Techpool to Shanghai United
International Ltd, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of S| Pharmaceutical, at a consideration of HK$26,000,000.

Details of these transactions were included in a published announcement of the Company on 28th December 2006.
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49. Connected and Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

(I) Connected persons (Continued)

(b) At 31st December 2006, SI Pharmaceutical had given guarantees amounting to approximately HK$30
million (2005: nil) to banks in respect of banking {acilities granted to Guangdong Techpool. Details of
this provision of financial assistance were included in a published anncuncement of the Company
dated 13th October 2006.

(c) Details of operating lease commitments with connected parties are set out in note 44

(I) Related parties, other than connected persons
(8 In addition to the transactions with ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries as mentioned
in note 49(1)(a) above, the significant transactions with related parties, during the year, and significant

balances with them at the balance sheet date, are as follows:

THE GROUP
Relatad parties Nature of transaction 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Transactions
A join ly controfled entity:
ALK EER L A) Interest income received - 2528
{Hebei Yongxin Paper Co,, Ltd)
Assocates:
FEskBeEaRAR Purchase of materials 2,667 2316
{Shanghai Shen Yong
Stamping Foit Co, Ltd)
WLASMRDBREE A Sales of cigarette box packaging 10 -
{Z} ejiang Tianwai Printing materials (note(iv))
Co, Lud} Puzchase of materials - 385
Dividend income received 2,040 -
|| R EER LA Printing services income 679 27
Chengdu Jiuxing Interest income received - 107
BRFATKIREFR A0 Printing services income 8,369 9,501
HRKEBREER AT Interest paid 197 2,002
{Xian Wing Fat Packing Co, Ltd)}
BRAEXESEREAR A Sales of materials 3,672 2380
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49. Connected and Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

() Related parties, other than connected persons (Continued)

(@)  (Continued)
THE GROUP
Related parties Nature of transaction 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000
Balances
Jointly controlled entities:
MMARHERERER L Balance at 31st December
(Hangzhou Hugingyutang - non-irade receivable 2,500 2404
Drugstore Co, Ltd)
General Water of China Balance at 31st December
- short-term loan receivable - 62,590
Associates:
HEREBSRNERAR Balance at 31st December
- short-term loan receivable - 3,000
FBRKBEMHERAR Balance at 31st December
(Shanghai Shen Yong - trade payable 2,241 1,980
Stamping Foil Co, Ltd)
RSN B ERELE Balance at 3ist December
{Zhejiang Tianwai Printing - trade receivable 16 251
Co, Ltd)
WEEEEERAF Balance at 375t December
- trade receivable 523 397
- shareholder loan 1,274 1,225
BEPATKLERRLRA Balance at 31st December
- trade receivable 4,075 2,995
BEKBRBREAEEE LT Balance at 315t December
{Xian Wing Fat Packing Co, Ltd) - other short-term loan payable - 27,200
- non-trade receivables 7,477 7477
(b} Details of pledged assets given by the Group to related parties are set out in note 47.
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49. Connected and Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

() Compensation of key management personnel

The remunaration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Short-term benefits 30,752 24413
Share-based payments 5,392 1,204
36,144 25617

The remureration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having

regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The Company’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in the balance sheet of the Ccmpany

and in note 40.

50. Material Transactions and Balances with Other State-controlled Enterprises

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predeminated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
contrelled by the: PRC government (“state-controlled entities”), In addition, the Group itseif is part of a larger group
of companies under SIC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions with SIC, other
cennected persons and related parties disclosed in note 49, the Group alse conducts business with other state-
controlled entities. The directors consider those state-controlled entities are independent third parties so far as the

Group's business transactions with them are concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the

Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is a state-controlled entity or not.

Material transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities are as follows:

2006 2005
HK$'G00 HK$'000
Transactions
Trade sales 906,405 850,703
Trade purchases 371,828 240,810
Balances
Amounis due from other state-controlled entities 249,450 283,988
Amounts due to other state-centrolled entities 48,728 4,591

In view of the nature of the Group's toll road operating business, the diractors are of the opinion that, except as
disclosed above, it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions were with other state-controlled entities.




e e W A L

136

Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2006

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2006

50. Material Transactions and Balances with Other State-controlled Enterprises
(Continued)

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions, including deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions which are state-contrclied entities in its
ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of those banking transactions, the directors are of the opinion
that separate disclosure would not be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that transactions with other state-controfled entities are
not significant to the Group’s cperations.

51. Government Grants

During the year, the Group received government subsidies of approximately HK$3,879,000 (2005: HK$2,587,000)
towards the cost of acquisition of plant and machinery. The amount has been deducted from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset. The amount is transferred to income in the form of reduced depreciation charges over the
useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current year of approximately
HK$2,330,000 (2005: HK$1,985,000), As at 31st December 2006, an amount of HK520,628,000 (2005: HK$18,237,000)
remains to be amortised.

In addition, government grants of HKS$171.76 million (2005: nil) was received in the current year as compensation

for the decrease of the toll fee income arising from the widening project of the toll road. The amount has been
included in other income for the year.

52. Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2006 are as foilows:

Percentage
Nominal value of issued share/
Place of of issued and registered capital
incorporation or fully paid held by the
establishment/ share capital/ Company/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital subsidiaries Principal activities
Chia Tai Qingchunbao PRC RMB128,500,000 55% Manufacture and sale of
{note (i) Chinese medicine and
health products
FERERRLKE(LER) PRC RIIB2,000,000,000 100%  Holding of a right to
ERARAA operzte 3 toll road
(Shanghai Hu-Ning
Expressway (Shanghai
Section) Company Limited)
(note (i}
51 Infrastructure Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Uss 100% Irvestment holding
Limited Hong Kong
SIHL Treasury Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment

- HKS2
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52. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage
Nominal value of issued share/
Place of of issued and registered capital
incorporation or fully paid held by the
establishment/ share capital/ Company/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital subsidiaries Principal activities
SIC Medicial Science and Cayman lslands/ Ordinary shares 100% Investmant holding
Technology {Group) Limited Hong Kong - HK$40,893,400
Nanyang Tobacco (Marketing) British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary shares 100% Sale and marketing of
Company, Limited PRC and Macau -Us$) cigarettes and raw
- HK$100,000,00C materials sourcing
Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and sale of
Company, Limited - HKS2 cigarettes
Non-voting -
deferred shares
- HK58,000,000
The Wing Fat Printing Hong Kong Ordinary shares 9344% Manufacture and sale of
Company, Limited - HK$2,000,000 packaging materials,
printed products and
paper making
Non-voting -
deferred shares
- HKS$1,829510
SI Pharmaceutical (note (i) PRC Ordinary shares 4367% Investment holding
- RMB367,814,821
Pt SE AR AT
Xiamen Treditional Chinese
Medicine Co, Ltd.
("Xiamen TCM™ (note (i) PRC RMB47,830,000 61% Manufacture and sale of
Chinese medicine
BRI AR (BB ERAT
Liaoning Herbapex Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co, Ltd.
("Liaoning Herbapax?) (note (i) PRC RMB51,000.000 55% Manufacture and sale of

Chinese medicine
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52. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage
Nominal value of issued share/
Place of of issued and registered capital
incorporation or fully paid held by the
establishment/ share capital/ Company/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital subsidiaries Principal activities
HE-gEEEER AR PRC US415,343,300 704% Manufacture and sale of
{Shanghai Sunway Biotech biomedicine
Co, Ltd) {note ()
Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical PRC RMBS3,160,000 51.007% Manufacture and sale of

(note (i}

Notes:

(i) The company was established in the PRC as a sinc-foreign equity joint venture company.

(i} The company was established in the PRC as a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

(il The company is a company listed on the A share market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Chinese medicine and
health products

With the exception of S. |. Infrastructure Holdings Limited and SIHL Treasury Limited, all the above subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

None of the deferred shares are held by the Group. The deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice of or to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the respective companies and have practically no rights to dividends or to
participate in any distributions on winding up.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the oginion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give datails of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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53. Principal Jointly Controlled Entities

Particufars of the Group's principal jointly controlled entities at 31st December 2006 are as follows:

Place of Percentage of
incorporation or registered capital
Name of establishment/ attributable
jointly controlled entity operations to the Group Principal activities
FEERBEIEER LT PRC 50% Manufacture and sale of vehicles,
{Shanghai HuizFong Automotive autemobile components and
Manufacturing Company Limited) spare parts
EEMERRERNARDA PRC 20%  Development of communication
{Shanghai Inforration Investment Inc} infrastructure and cable network
and provision of internet-related
services
LEBRARTHYER AR PRC 50%  Manufacture and sale of automobile
{Shanghai Wanzhong Automotive components and spare Darts
Companents Cc., Ltd)
General Water of China PRC 50% Joint investment and operation
of water-related and environment
protection business in the PRC
ML ERSRIERBEBR LA PRC 30%  Construction and operation of a
{Zhejiang Jinhua Yongjin Expressway toll road

Co, Ltd)

All the above jointly controlled entities are sinc-foreign equity joint venture companies and indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the jointly controlled entities of the Group which, in the opinicn of the directors, principally
affected the results of the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
jointly controlled entities would, in the opinicn of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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54. Principal Associates

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st December 2006 and which are all sino-foreign eguity joint
venture companies established in the PRC are as follows:

Percentage of
registered capital

held by the attributable
Name of associate subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
Semiconductor Manufacturing 9.85% 9.85% Investment holding and
International Corporation manufacture and marketing
("SMIC*) (note) of advanced technology
sermiconductors
FEAILERDARDT] 25.17% 2517%  Manufacture, distribution
{Bright Dairy and Food Co, Ltd) and sale of dairy and
{“Bright Dairy") related products
HEBRETRBREBRAA 30% 30%  Manufacture, distribution and
(Shanghai SIIC Transportation sale of automobile
Electric Co., Ltd)) components

Note: In the opinion of the directors, the Group can exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policy decisions of
SMIC through the Group's ability to appaint a board representative and accordingly SMIC is classified as an assoclate.

All the above associates are indirectly held by the Company.
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results of the year cr form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinicn of the directors, result in particulars of excessive fength.
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55. Segment Information

S

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four operating businesses — infrastructure facitities,
medicine, consumer products and information technology. These businesses are the basis on which the Group

reports its primary segment information.
Principal businesses are as follows:

Infrastructure facilities

Medicine

Consumer products

investment in toll road projects and water-related business
manufaciure and sale of medicine and health food; medical equipment

manufacture and sale of cigarettes, packaging materials, printed products, paper

making, dairy praducts, cormmercial vehicles, automobile components and spare

parts

Information technology

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

development of cormmunigation infrastructure and information technology business

Infrastructure Consumer  Information
2006 facilities Medicine preducts technology Unallocated Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Income statement:
External sales 276419 3,729,130 2,845,474 - - 6,851,023
Segment results 388,249 385,908 565,312 - - 1,339,469
Net unallocated corporate income 306,561
Finance costs (104,555)
Share of results of jointly controlled

entities 12,785 43,086 23,832 20,080 (78,631} 21,152
Share of results of assaciates - 15,440 172,855 (31,080) - 157,215
Net gain on disposal of interests in

subsidiaries, associates and jointly

controlled entities 23,842
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investments 268,074
Dilution loss on share reform of

a subsidiary (214,955)
Loss on share reform of an associate {27,739)
Impairment losses recognised in

respect of goodwill refating to

a subsidiary anc interest

in a jointly controlled entity {32,352)
Profit before taxation 1,736,712
Income tax expenses {236,442)
Profit for the year

1,500,270
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55. Segment Information (Continued)

Infrastructure Consumer Information
2006 facilities Medicine products technology Unallocated Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance sheet:

ASSETS
Segment assets 2,656,970 4,269,893 3,712,845 100 - 10,639,808
Interests in jointly controlled entities 773,918 129,261 1,251,863 289,951 - 2,444,993
Interests in associates - 134,466 1,348,282 2,311,142 - 3,793,890
Unallocated corperate assets 6,779,437
Consclidated total assets 23,658,128
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 20,878 905,852 498,893 - - 1,425,623
Unallocated corporate liabifities 2,501,510
Canscfidated total liabilities 3,927,133
Other information:
Capital additions 101,761 295,702 110,986 - 2,741 511,190
Depreciation and amortisation 67,654 120,494 131,833 - 2,874 322,855
Impairment loss on available-

for-sale investments - 1,900 - - - 1,900
tmpairment loss on bad and

doubtful debts - 25,918 27,374 - - 53,292

Equity-settled share-based
payment expense - 206 - - 10,872 11,078
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55. Segment Information (Continued)
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infrastructure Consumer  Information
2005 facilities Medicine products  technology Consclidated
HK5'C00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'C00

Income statement:
External sales 181,578 3,567,264 2,276,443 - 6,025,285
Segment resufts 146,673 336477 551,148 109,578 1143877
Net unaliocated corporate income 156,826
Finance costs (82,024)
Share of results of jaintly controlled entities 26,669 AR,677 (104,648) 3214 2835
Share of results of associates - 26632 162,386 {86,486) 102,532
Net gain on disposal of interests in

subsidiaries, asscciates and jointly

controlled entitiess 180,661
Impairment losses ‘ecognised in respect of

goodwill relating to subsidiaries and

interests in an associate and a jointly

controlled entity (26,185)
Discount on acquisition of additional

interests in subsidiaries 2324
Impairment loss or assets classified

as held for sale (31,247)
Profit before taxation 1,449,603
Income tax expensas (194,042)
Profit for the year

1,255,561
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55. Segment Information (Continued)

Infrastructure Consumer  Information
2005 facilities Medicine products  technology  Unallocated  Consolidated
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Batance sheet:
ASSETS
Segment assets 2419323 4113,766 3,858,753 145,844 - 10,537,686
Interests in jointly contralled

entities 778176 89,527 1,124418 398,387 - 2,390,508
Interests in associates - 563,110 963,308 2,341,639 - 3,868,057
Urallocated corporate assets 5175904
Consolidated total assets 21972155
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 12,560 803,191 418,756 15,000 - 1,249,537
Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,514,589
Consolidated total liabilities 3,764,126
Other information:
Capital additions 15679 374,102 579334 - 4436 973,551
Depreciation and amortisation 42234 90,136 130,264 - 3,302 265,966
fmpairment loss on available-

for-sale investrnents - 9648 - - - 0,648
Impairment less on bad and

doubtful debts - 10,940 13484 - - 24424
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment - 1,365 7474 - (56} 8,783
Equity-settled share-based payment

expense - 2,227 - - 391 6,138
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55. Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical segments

The following tzble provides an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market, irrespective of the arigin of the
goods and services:

Sales revenue by
geographical market

2006 2005

HK$'000 HKS$'000

PRC 5,511,545 4,557,639
Asia 926,123 931,842
Hong Kong 323,438 485,762
Other areas 89,917 50,042
6,851,023 6,025,285

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Additions to
property, plant
Carrying amount and equipment and
of segment assets intangible assets
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Geographical region
PRC 8,996,885 9,413,085 490,322 876,571
Asia 1,083 1,131 - -
Hong Kong 1,641,840 1,067,850 20,868 96,980
QOther areas - 55,620 - -

10,639,808 10,537,686 511,190 973,551
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Year ended 31st December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$'000 HKS°000 HKS'000 HK5'000 HK$'000
RESULTS
Turnover 3,380,037 2825978 3428939 6,025,285 6,851,023
Profit before taxation 1,383,809 1,570,254 1,685,401 1,449,603 1,736,712
Income tax expense {114,363) {165,504) {185,152) (194,042) (236,442}
Profit for the year 1,269,446 1,404,750 1,499,249 1,255,561 1,500,270
Attributable to
- Equity holders of the Company 1,126,343 1,259,166 1,377,660 1,027,540 1,257,778
— Minority interests 143,103 145,584 121,589 227,621 242,492
1,260,446 1,404,750 1,499,249 1,255,561 1,500,270
Earnings per share
- Basic HiK$1.22 HK51.34 HKS1.45 HK$1.07 HK$1.30
- Diluted HK$1.21 HK$1.33 HK$1.42 HK$1.06 HK$1.29

As at 31st December

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$"000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets 16,462,662 17,075,454 20,606,861 21,972,155 23,658,128
Total liabilities (2,346,307) (2,203,680} (3515634 (3.764126)  (3,927,133)

14,116,355 14,871,774 17,091,227 18,208,029 19,730,995

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 13,497 806 14,490,840 15,614,861 16,375,892 17,505,381
Minority interests 618,549 380,934 1,476,366 1,832,137 2,225,614

14,116,355 14,871,774 17,091,227 18,208,029 19,730,995




Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at the Conference Room of the Company at 26th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Wednesday, 30th May 2007 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:-

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
December 2006 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditor thereon.

2. Todeclare a final dividend.

3. Tore-elect retiring Directors and authorise the Board of Directors te fix the Directors’ remuneratian.

4. Tore-appoint Auditor and authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

To consider as special business, and, if thought fit, pass with or without medification, the following resolutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. “THAT:

A, subject to paragraph (B) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase ordinary shares in the capital
of the Company ("Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {*Stock Exchange”) or on any other
stock exchange on which the securities of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
or any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

B.  the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which the Company is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval n paragraph (A) of this Resclution shall not exceed 10 percent of the aggregate nominal amount of
the Shares in issue at the date of the passing of this Resclution and the authority pursuani to paragraph (A) of

this Resol Jtion shall be limited accordingly; and
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“Relevant Period” means the period fram the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

C.  for the purpose of this Resolution:
! the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

|

' ii.  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required
by the Articles of Association of the Company or any applicable laws of Hong Kong to be held; or

iii. the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resclution by ordinary resolution of the
sharehclders of the Company in general meetings.”

6. "THAT:

A, subject to the paragraph {C) of this Resoluticn, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which
would or might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

B. the approval in paragraph (A) of this Resolution shall authorise the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make ar grant offers, agreements and options which would or might require the exercise
of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

C.  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted, issued or dealt with or agreed conditionally or
unconditionzlly t¢ be allotted, issued or dealt with (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (A} of this Resolution, otherwise than
pursuant tc (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined), (i) the exercise of the subscription or conversion rignts
attaching to any warrants, convertible bonds or other securities issued by the Company which are convertible
into shares of the Company, {iii) any share option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted
for the grant or issue to the eligible participants of shares or rights to acquire shares in the capiial of the
Company, or (iv) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the
whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, shall not exceed 20 percent of the aggregate nominal ameunt of the share capital of the Company
in issue as at the date of the passing of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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D.  for the purpose of this Resolution:
“Relevant 2eriod” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of;
i. the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

i.  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required
by the Articles of Association of the Company or any applicable laws of Hong Kang to be held; or

ii.  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by ordinary resolution of the
sharehotders of the Company in general meetings”

"Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Company or by the Directors of
the Company to heolders of shares on the Register of Members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusions or cther arrangements as the
Directors cf the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of, any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong)!

7. "THATY, conditional upon the passing of resolutions numbered 5 and 6 set owt in the notice convening this
meeting, the aggregate nominal amount of the shares which are repurchased or otherwise acquired by the
Company pursuant to Resolution numbered 5 shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of the shares
which may be issued pursuant to Resolution numbered 6, provided that such an amount shall not exceed 10
percent of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of passing of this
Resclution”

By Order of the Board

Waong Mei Ling, Marina
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th April 2007
Registered Office:

26th Floor, Harcourt House,
39 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notes:

1. Amemberentitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to 2ppoint one or more proxies to atiend and
on a poll, vote on his behalf, The proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.

2. Inorder to be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or
a notarially certified copy of that power of attomey or authority, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at 26th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for holding
the meeting or adjourned meeting or po!l {as the case may be). Completion and return of a form of proxy will not preclude a
Shareholder from attending and voting in person if he Ts subsequently able to be present and, in such event, the instrurnent
appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

3. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 28th May 2007 to Wednesday, 30th May 2007, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's Share Registrars, Secretaries
Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 25th May 2007.

4. The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2006 of HK30 cents per share.

5. Concerning Resolution numbered 3 above, Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang, Mr. Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun will reiire by rotation
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. Biographical details of the above
Directors are set out in Appendix Il to the circular to Shareholders dated 30th April 2007 (the "Circular”),

6. Concerning Resolutions numbered 5 and 6 above, the Directors wish 1o state that there are no immediate plans to repurchase
any existing shares or to issue any new shares or warrants. The Explanatory Statement centaining the information necessary
to enable the Shareholders to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the Resolution numbered 5 to
approve the repurchase by the Company of its own shares, as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) is set out in Appendix | to the Circular.

7. Proxy forms for use at the Annual General Meeting will be sent to Shareholders together with the Annual Repert 2006 on
Monday, 30th April 2007. The proxy form will be published on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at
www.hkex.com.hk and can also be downloaded from the Company website at www.sihl.com.hk.




Glossary of Terms

Term used

Bengbu GWC

Bright Dairy

Century Lianhua
Changzhou Pharmaceutical

China Netcom (HK}

Dongfang Cable
Distance Education Group

Exceptional ltems

General Water of China
Guangdong Techpool
Hangzhou Qingchunbao
Hebei Yongxin Paper
Hu-Ning Expressway
Huizhong Automotive
Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical
Huzhou Tianwai Paper
Jinan Quanyong Printing
Lianhua e-Commerce
Lianhua Supermarket
Liacning Herbapex
Listing Rules

Mergen Biotech
MicroPort Medical
Model Code

Brief description

General Water of China (BengBu) Co. Ltd.

Bright Dairy and Food Co. Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600597)
Shanghai Century Lianhua Supermarket Development Co. Ltd.
Changzhou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

China Netcom Group Corporation {Hong Kong) Ltd. (Stock Exchange stock
code: 906)

Dongfang Cable Network Co. Ltd.
Shanghai Distance Education Graup

Exceptional losses of about HK$243 million brought by the share reform
plans of St Pharmaceutical and Bright Cairy and an after-tax exceptional
gain of about HK$ 244 million derived from the disposal of a 10% interests in
Pudong Container

General Water of China Co. Ltd.

Guangdong Techpoot Biochem Pharma Co. Ltd.

Chia Tai Qingchunbao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

Hebei Yongxin Paper Co, Lid.

Shanghai Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section) Co. Ltd.
Shanghai Huizhong Automortive Manufacturing Co. Lid.
Hangzhou Hugingyutang Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

Zhejiang Huzhou Tianwai Paper Co. Ltd.

Jinan Quanyong Printing Co. Ltd.

Shangahi Lianhua e-Commerce Co. Ltd.

Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co. Ltd. (Stock Exchange stock code: 980)
Liaoning Herbapex Pharmaceutical {Group) Ce. Ltd.

Rules Governing the Listing of Secwrities on the Stock Exchange
Mergen Biotech Ltd.

MicraPort Medical {Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

Model Cede for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
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Glossary of Terms

Term used

Nanyang Tobacco

Net Business Profit

Net profit from recurring operations
Pudong Container

SFO

Shanghai Automotive

Shanghai General Motors

Shanghai Information investment
Shanghai Medical Instruments
Shanghai Volkswagen

S| Pharmaceutical

SH

SIC

SIC Capital

SIC CM Development

SIC Transportation Electric

SmiC

SSE

STC

Stock Exchange
Sunve Pharmaceutical
Sunway Bictech

Wing Fat Printing
Xiamen TCM

Xian Wing Fat

Yongjin Expressway

Zhejiang Rongfeng Paper

(ISP Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2006

Brief description

Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co. Ltd.

Net profit excluding net corporate income

Profit contribution before Exceptional ltems

Shanghai Pudong International Container Terminals Ltd.

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Keng)
Shanghai Automotive Manufacture Co. Ltd,

Shanghai General Motors Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Information Investment In¢.

Shanghai Medical Instruments Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Votkswagen Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Industrial Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd. (formerly known as
Shanghai Industrial United Holdings Co. Ltd.) (SSE stock code: 600607)

Shanghai Investment Holdings Ltd.

Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd.
SIC Capital (BVL) Ltd.

SHC CM Development Ltd.

Shanghai SIIC Transportation Electric Co. Ltd.

Semiconductar Manufacturing International Corporation (Stock Exchange
stock code: 981)

Shanghai Stack Exchange

Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Co. Ltd.
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
Shanghai Sunve Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
Shanghai Sunway Biotech Co. Ltd.

The Wing Fat Printing Co. Ltd.

Xiamen Traditional Chinese Medicine Co. Ltd.
Xiar Wing Fat Packing Co. Ltd.

Zhejing Jinhua Yongjin Expressway Co. Lid.
Zhejiang Rongfeng Paper Co. Ltd.
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you

should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor,
professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, you
should at once hand this circular to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or

other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or
transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any

liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this circular,

e L TEZRARLE
o

SHANGHAI INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 363)

PROFOSED GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES .

AND ﬁi

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS '-1-.*- '

SERIENEY

- A notice convening the 2007 Annual General Meeting of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited to

be held at the Conference Room of the Company at 26th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester

Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 30th May 2007 at 3:00 p.m., is set out in the Annual
Report.

Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, please complete and return the form of proxy
in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible and in any event not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting. Completion and return of the

form of proxy shall not preclude you from attending and voting at the 2007 Annual General
Meeting if you so wish.

This circular contains all the information required pursuant to the Listing Rules to be given to

the Shareholders.

30th April 2007

E ]
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context requires otherwise, the following expressions have

the following meanings:
Term

“2007 Annual General Meeting”

*“Annual Report”

“Company”

*

“Connected Person’

“Director(s)”
“Group!!

“Hong Kong”

“Issue Mandate”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Notice”

Meaning

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Wednesday, 30th May 2007 at 3:00 p.m. at the
Conference Room of the Company at 26th Floor,
Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong;

the annual report 2006 of the Company being
despatched to the Shareholders together with this
circular;

Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, the
Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange {stock code: 363);

a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules);

director(s) of the Company;
the Company and its subsidiaries;

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC;

the general and unconditional mandate to allot, issue
and deal with Shares (and securities e¢xercisable or
convertible into Shares} with an aggregate nominal
value not exceeding 20 percent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the Shares in issue at the date of
passing of the resolution;

20th April 2007 which is the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this circular for ascertaining
certain information contained in it;

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange;

the notice convening the 2007 Annual General Meeting
dated 30th April 2007 as set out in the Annual Report;
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“PRC”

“Repurchase Mandate”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“suc”

“SI Pharmac=utical”

“Stock Exchange”

“Takeovers Code”

uH K$”

the People’s Republic of China;

the general and unconditional mandate to exercise all
powers of the Company to repurchase issued and
fully-paid Shares not exceeding 10 percent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Shares in issue at the
date of passing of the resolution;

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of $0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company;

registered holder(s) of Share(s);

Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co. Ltd., a

company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liablity;

THITERETERAFMALAR  (Shanghai  Industrial
Pharmaceutical Investment Co. Ltd.), a limited liabiliry
company established under the laws of the PRC with
limited liability which is a subsidiary of the Company,
listed on the A Shares Market of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600607);

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Repurchases; and

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
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e L8 T ERARLE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability}
{Stock Code: 363)

Directors Registered Office:
Executive Directors: 26th Floor, Harcourt House,
Mr. Cai Lai Xing (Chairman) 39 Gloucester Road,
Mr. Cai Yu Tian Wanchai, Hong Kong

{Vice Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qu Ding

(Vice Chairman & Executive Deputy CEQ)
Mr. Lu Ming Fang
Mr. Ding Zhong De
Mr. Qian Shi Zheng (Deputy CEQ)
Mr. Yao Fang
Mr. Tang Jun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Lo Ka Shui

Prof. Woo Chia-Wei

Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis

30th April 2007

To all Shareholders of the Company
Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSED GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES
AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information regarding the proposals
for the Repurchase Mandate, the Issue Mandate and the re-election of retiring Directors and
to seek your approval at the 2007 Annual General Meeting in connection with, inter alia,
such matters.
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2. PROPOSED GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE THE COMPANY’S
OWN SHARES AND TO ISSUE SHARES

At the annual general meeting held on 30th May 2006, general mandates were given to
the Directors: (i} to allot, issue and deal with Shares (and securities exercisable or
convertible into Shares) not exceeding 20 percent of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of passing of the ordinary resolution and (ii) to exercise the powers of the
Company to repurchase Shares up to a maximum of 10 percent of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of passing of the ordinary resolution. Such mandates will lapse at
the conclusion of the 2007 Annual General Meeting.

An ordinary resolution set out in the Notice will be proposed at the 2007 Annual
General Meeting to grant the Repurchase Mandate to the Directors.

The Repurchase Mandate would continue in force until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company or the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law or the Articles of
Association of the Company to be held or until the Repurchase Mandate is revoked or
varied by an ordinary resclution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is the
earlier.

Two additional ordinary resolutions will also be propased at the 2007 Annual General
Meeting to grant the Issue Mandate to the Directors and to extend the Issue Mandate by
adding to it the number of Shares repurchased by the Company under the Repurchase
Mandate respectively.

The explanatory statement required by the Listing Rules to be included in this circular
is set out in Appendix I to this circular.

3. PROPOSED RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

In accordance with Articles 92 and 101 of the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang, Mr. Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun shall retire at the
2007 Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

Their biographical details which are required to be disclosed by the Listing Rules are
set out in Appendix Il to this circular.

4. 2007 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the 2007 Annual General Meeting, ordinary resolutions will be proposed to approve
the Repurchase Mandate, the Issue Mandate and the extension of the Issue Mandate.

The Notice is set out on pages 147 to 150 of the Annual Report. Sharcholders are
advised to read the Notice and to complete and return the accompanying form of proxy for
use at the 2007 Annual General Meeting in accordance with the instructions printed thereon.
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5. DEMAND FOR POLL AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 73 of the Articles of Association of the Company, at any general
meeting a resolution put to the vote at the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands
unless a poll is taken as may from time to time be required under the Listing Rules or any
other applicable laws, rules or regulations or unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of
the result of the show of hands) demanded. A poll may be demanded:

{a)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

by the Chairman; or

by at least three members present in person or in the case of a member being a
corporation by its duly authorized representative or by proxy for the time being
entitled to vote at the meeting; or

by any member or members present in person or in the case of a member being a
corporation by its duly authorized representative or by proxy and representing not
less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right
to vote at the meeting; or

by any member or members present in person or in the case of a member being a
corporation by its duly authorized representative or by proxy and holding Shares
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum
has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all
the Shares conferring that right.

6. RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the grant of the Repurchase Mandate, the Issue Mandate,
the extension of the Issue Mandate and the re-election of retiring Directors are in the
interests of the Company and the Sharcholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend
Shareholders to vote in favour of the relevant resolutions to be proposed at the 2007 Annual
General Meeting. )

On behalf of the Board
CAIl LAI XING

Chairman




APPENDIX 1 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This explanatory statement contains all the information required under the Listing
Rules for you to consider the Repurchase Mandate.

The Listing Rules permit companies whose primary listings are on the Stock Exchange

to repurchase their fully paid up shares on the Stock Exchange subject to certain restrictions,
the most important of which are summarized below:

1. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company comprised
968,504,000 Shares. On the basis that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to
the date of the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the Company would be allowed under the
Repurchase Mandate to repurchase a maximum of 96,850,400 Shares, representing 10
percent of the issued Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date.

2.  REASONS FOR REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Directors have no present intention to repurchase any Shares and, whilst it is not
possible to anticipate in advance those circumstances in which the Directors might think it
appropriate to repurchase Shares, Shares would only be purchased in circumstances where
the Directors consider that the purchase would be in the interests of the Company and the

Shareholders. Such purchase may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements
at the time, lead to an enhancement of earnings per Share.

3. SOURCE OF FUNDS

It is proposed that repurchases of Shares under the Repurchase Mandate would be
financed from internal funds and available banking facilities of the Company. In
repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for such purpose

in accordance with all applicable laws of Hong Kong and the Company’s memorandum and
Articles of Association.

4. WORKING CAPITAL OR GEARING

If the Repurchase Mandate was exercised in full at any time during the proposed
repurchase period, it would not have a material adverse effect on the working capital
requirements of the Company or its gearing levels (as compared with the position disclosed
in the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31st December 2006). The Directors do not
propose to excrcise the Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would, in the circumstances,
have a material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company or its
gearing levels (as compared with the position disclosed in the Company’s accounts for the

year ended 31st December 2006) which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time
appropriate for the Company.
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5. DIRECTORS AND THEIR ASSOCIATES

None of the Directors, nor to the best of their knowledge and belief having made ali
reasonable enquiries, any of their associates (as defined under the Listing Rules), has any
present intention, in the event that the Repurchase Mandate is approved by Shareholders, to
sell Shares to the Company.

6. CONNECTED PERSONS

No Connected Persons have notified the Company that they have a present intention to
sell any Shares (in issue or to be issued) to the Company or have undertaken not to sell any
of the Shares held by them (in issue or to be issued to them) to the Company, in the event
that the Company is authorized to make repurchases of Shares.

7. UNDERTAKING OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the
Company to make repurchases of Shares pursuant to the proposed resolution in accordance
with the Listing Rules, all applicable laws of Hong Kong, and the regulations set out in the
memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

8. EFFECT OF TAKEOVYERS CODE

If, as a result of a repurchase of Shares, a sharcholder’s proportionate interest in the
voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for
the purposes of the Takeovers Code. Accordingly, a shareholder or group of shareholders
acting in.concert, could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to
make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code and the
provisions may otherwise apply as a result of any such increase.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, SIIC through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely
Shanghai Investment Holdings Ltd., SLIC Capital (B.V.1.) Ltd. and SHIC CM Development
Ltd. held 468,066,000, 80,000,000 and 10,000 Shares respectively, and is accordingly
deemed to be interested in the respective Shares held by the aforementioned companies,
representing approximately 56.59 percent of the total issued share capital of the Company.

Assuming no changes in the aforementioned sharcholdings of the respective companies,
in the event that the Directors exercise in full the power to repurchase the Shares, the
shareholding of SIIC would be increased from approximately 56.59 percent to approximately
62.88 percent. Such increase would not give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer
in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. So the Directors do not aware of any
consequences of any repurchase which would arise under the Takeovers Code. The Company
will not purchase its Shares which will reduce the aggregate amount of the share capital of
the Company in public hands to below 25 percent.




9. SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the Stock
Exchange in each of the previous twelve months from the Latest Practicable Date are as

follows:

Per Share
Month Highest Lowest

HK$ HK3
2006
April 18.15 16.60
May 17.60 14.70
June 15.40 13.50
July 15.18 14.40
August 15.34 14.70
September 15.94 14.38
October 15.60 14.88
November 16.56 15.10
December 16.86 15.92
2007
January 18.16 16.78
Februarv 19.60 16.48
March 18.50 17.00
April (up to the Latest Practicable Date) 20.50 18.18

10. SHARE REPURCHASES

No repurchases has been made by the Company of its Shares in the last six months
prior to the Latest Practicable Date.




APPENDIX 11 BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE RETIRING
DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

The followings are the biographical details of Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang, Mr.
Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun, all of whom shall retire at the 2007 Annual General Meeting in
accordance with Articles 92 and 101 of the Articles of Association of the Company and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

Mr. Qu Ding, aged 57, joined the Company in August 2004 and is the Executive
Director, Vice Chairman and Executive Deputy CEO of the Company. He joined SIIC in
January 1996, and is an executive director and executive vice president of SIIC. He is also
the chairman of the supervisory committee of Shanghai Industrial Development Co. Ltd. Mr.
Qu graduated from Northeast Normal University, majored in economic management. Mr. Qu
is designated an economist. He was the Director of the Department of International
Exchange & Cooperation of Shanghai Municipal Personnel Bureau, the Director of Shanghai
Municipal Professional Examinations Centre and the Director of the Public Officials
Training Centre of Shanghai Municipal Personnel Bureau. He has over 30 years’ experience
in the fields of human resources and economic management.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Qu has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company. He has a personal
interest in 1,250,000 Shares and 560,000 share options altogether representing 0.19% of the
total issued share capital of the Company. Save as aforesaid, he has no other interests in the
Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Qu has a service agreement with the
Company commencing 1st January 2006, which shall be terminated by either party giving to
the other by six months’ prior written notice. He is entitled to receive a basic salary of
approximately HK$2,250,990 annually and fees of HK$50,000 for serving the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. In addition, he may receive a discretionary bonus payment
subject to the absolute discretion of the Company having regard to the operating results of
the Group, industry benchmark and his performance. The Director’s emoluments are
determined by reference to the factors such as the Company’s operating performance,
prevailing market conditions and job responsibilities.

Mr. Lu Ming Fang, aged 50, joined the Company in January 2002. He is an Executive
Director of the Company and SIIC, chairman of SI Pharmaceutical and S.I. Pharmaceuticals
Group Ltd., and a non-executive director and deputy chairman of Lianhua Supermarket
Holdings Co. Litd. He graduated from Fudan University with a master’s degree in economics
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a master’s degree in professional
accounting, and is designated a senior economist. Mr. Lu has worked for Shanghai Medical
Materials Company, Shanghai Municipal Drug Administration, Shanghai Wen Hui Bao and
Shanghai Wanguo Holdings Ltd. (now Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd.). He joined
SIIC in July 1995. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, deputy general
manager of the assets management department of SIIC, a director and .executive deputy
general manager of Shanghai S. I. Capital Co. Ltd., director and general manager of
Shanghai Industrial United Holdings Co. Ltd. (now SI Pharmaceutical), assistant president
and vice president of SIIC and general manager of its finance and planning department. He
has over 20 years’ management experience, including over 10 years” working experience in
investment banking and listed companies.




APPENDIX I BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE RETIRING
DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

As al the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lu has no relationship with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company. He has a personal
interest in 4,200,000 Shares and 480,000 share options altogether representing 0.48% of the
total issued share capital of the Company and in 23,400 shares of S1 Pharmaceutical
representing 0.01% of the total issued share capital of SI Pharmaceutical. Save as aforesaid,
he has no other interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. His
appointment as an Executive Director of the Company shall continue for a term of three
years until 31st December 2008 subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association or any other applicable laws. For the year ended 31st December 2006, Mr. Lu
received from the Company a director’s fee of HK$200,000 per annum. Such fees are
determined by reference to job responsibilities and industry benchmark as reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Mr. Yao Fang, aged 37, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in May
2003. He is a director and general manager of SI Pharmaceutical, chairman of Shanghai
Medical Instruments Co. Lid., Guangdong Techpool Biochem Pharma Co. Ltd. and Shanghai
Sunway Biotech Co. Ltd. He is also the vice chairman of Bright Dairy and Food Co. Ltd.
and Shenzhen Kangtai Biological Products Co. Ltd. and a director of Xiamen Traditional
Chinese Medicine Co. Ltd., Liaoning Herbapex Pharmaceutical (Group) Co. Ltd., Changzhou
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. and MicroPort Medical (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., and a non-executive
director of Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation. He graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a master’s degree in business administration. After
working for Bank of Communications (Shanghai branch) and Shanghai Wanguo Holdings
Ltd. (now Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd.}, Mr. Yao joined SIIC in April 1996, He
has over 10 years’ experience of money and capital markets operations.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Yao has no relationship with any Directors,
senior management or substaatial ot controlling Shareholders of the Company. He has a
personal interest in 200,000 Shares representing 0.02% of the total issued share capital of
the Company. Save as aforesaid, he has no other interests in the Shares within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO. His appointment as an Executive Director of the Company shall
continue for a term of three years until 31st December 2008 subject to the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association or any other applicable laws. For the year ended 31st
December 2006, Mr. Yao received from the Company a director’s fee of HK$200,000 per
annum. Such fees are determined by reference to job respensibilities and industry benchmark
as reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Mr. Tang Jun, aged 40, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in June
2004. He is the general manager of the internal audit department and deputy general
manager of the finance and planning department of SIC. He graduated from University of
South Australia with a master’s degree in business administration. Mr, Tang holds the
designation of senior auditor, and is an associate of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountanis. Mr. Tang was the Depuly Director of the Foreign Funds Utilization Audiing
Department, Shanghai Municipal Auditing Bureau, and has over ten years’ practical
experience in the fields of auditing and finance.
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APPENDIX II BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE RETIRING
DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Tang has no relationship with any Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company. He has a
personal interest in 300,000 share options representing 0.03% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. Save as aforesaid, he has no other interests in the Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO. His appointment as an Executive Director of the Company
shall continue for a term of three years until 31st December 2008 subject to the provisions
of the Company’s Articles of Association or any other applicable laws. For the year ended
31ist December 2006, Mr. Tang received from the Company a director’s fee of HK$200,000
per annum. Such fees are determined by reference to job responsibilities and industry
benchmark as reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Save for the information disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor is there any information required to be
disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the 2007 Annual General Meeting.
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' N~/ SHANGHAI INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 363)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited
(the *Company”) will be held at the Conference Room of the Company at 26th Floor, Harcourt House, 3%
| Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 30th May 2007 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:—

' ORDINARY BUSINESS

l. ‘To receive and consider the audited consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
51st December 2006 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditor thereon.

2. o declare a final dividend.

3. o re-elect retiring Directors and authorise the Board of Directors to fix the Directors” remuneration.

4. ‘To re-appoint Auditor and authorise the Board of Directors to fix Auditat’s remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following ordinary resolutions:

5. To grant a geneml and unconditional mandate to the Directors to repurchase issued and fully-paid shares not
exceeding 10 percent of the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
assing the resolution. :

6. ‘To grant a generat and unconditional mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with shares of the
Company with an agpregate nominal value not exceeding 20 percent of the aggrepate nominal amount of the
shares of the Campany in issue at the date of passing the resolution.

7. Conditional on the passing of Resolutions numbered 5 and 6, to extend the general and unconditional
mandate granted by Resolution numbered 6 by adding thereto the shares repurchased pursuant to the general
mandate granted by Resolution numbered 3.

-—%

By Order of the Board
Wong Mei Ling, Marina
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th April 2007

Notes: .

(1) This is a summary of the full text of the notice of Annual General Meeting, The full text of Resolutions numbered 5,6 and 7
above is sei out in the notice of Annuat General Meeting which was included in the Annual Report 2006 despatched to
Shareholders together with the proposed general mandates to repurchase shares and to issug’ shares and re-ciection of
retiring Directors dated 30th April 2007 {the "Circular”). .

(2) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Arnual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend a2nd
on a poll, vote on his behalf, The proxy nced nat be o Shareholder of the Company.

(3} In order to be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other autherity {if any) under which it is signed
or o notarially certified copy of that power of attarney or authority, must be deposited at the repistered office of the
Company at 26th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
for holding the meeting or sdjourned meeting or poll (as the case may be). Completion and return of a form of proxy will
not preclude o Shareholder from attending and voting in person if he is subsequenily able 1o be present and, in such event,
the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed 10 be revoked.

{4) The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 28th May 2007 to Wednesday, 30th May 2007, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order 1o qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all trunsfers nccompanied by the relevaat share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Secretaries
Limited of 26th Floar, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 25th May 2007.

{5) The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2006 of HK30 cents per share.

(6) Concerning Resolution numbered 3 above, Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang, Mr. Yoo Fang and Mr. Tang Jun will retire by
rolation and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. Biographical details of
the above Directors are set out in Appendix ([ to the Circular. !

(7) Concerning Resolutions numbered 5 and 6 above, the Directors wish to state that there are no immediate plans to repurchase
any existing shares or to issue any new shares or warrants, The Explanatory Statement containing the information pecessary
to enable the Sharcholders to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the Resolution nutbered 5 to
approve the repurchase by the Company of its own shares, as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securitics on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is set out in Appendix 1 to the Circular.

(8) The proxy form for use at the Annual General Meeting is sent to Sharcholders together with the Annual Report 2006 on
Monday, 30th April 2007 and is published on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at hitp://
www,hkex.com.hk and can also be downloaded from the Company website at hetp:/fwww.sihl.com.hk.

As at the date of this notice, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises eight Executive Directors, namely
Mr: Cai Lai Xing, Mr. Cai Yu Tian, Mr. Qu Ding, Mr. Lu Ming Fang. Mr. Ding Zhong De, Mr. Qian Shi Zhenyg,
Mi: Yao Fang and Mr. Tang Jun; three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Lo Ka Shui, Prof. Woo
Chia-Wei and Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis. .

END




